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SECTION | - GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates
or implies, shall have the same meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline
or policy shall be to such legislation, act, regulation, rule, guideline or policy, as amended, supplemented or re-enacted
from time to time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to
time under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the

Depositories Act or the

rules and regulations made there under.

GENERAL AND COMPANY RELATED TERMS

Issuer”, or “CLN”

Term Description
Ci?nmginz ’ “(t)}lll; CLN Energy Limited, a Company incorporated in India under the provisions of Companies
Comgani”’ “the Act, 2013, having its Registered office at Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,

Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305, Uttar Pradesh, India

Our Promoter(s)

CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. and Rajiv Seth. For further details, please see the section entitled “Our
Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 148 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Promoter Group

Companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined under Regulation
2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 which is provided in the chapter titled “Our
Promoters and Promoter Group”.

COMPANY RELATE

D TERMS

Term

Description

Articles / Articles of
Association/AOA

Articles of Association of our Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors constituted in accordance with Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section titled “Our Management” on page 134
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Auditor
Auditor/

/ Statutory

The Statutory Auditors of our Company being M/s. Suraj Mishra & Associates., Chartered
Accountants (F.R.N: 037503N).

Bankers to the

Company

Banker to our Company, namely ICICI Bank Limited.

Board of Directors/

The Board of Directors of the Company unless otherwise specified.

Board/BOD

Companies Act The Companies Act, 1956/2013 as amended from time to time.

CIN Corporate Identification Number of our Company i.e. U33100UP2019PLC121869
gllflfcfer (CFOI):manmaI The Chief Financial officer of our Company, being Ashish Kumar.

Company  Secretary

and Compliance | The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company, being Sonal Jhanwar
Officer (CS)

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time

DIN Director Identification Number

Equity Shares

Equity Shares of our Company of Face Value of ¥ 10/- each unless otherwise specified in the
context thereof

Equity Shareholders

Persons/ Entities holding Equity Shares of Our Company

Executive  Director/
ED

Executive Director

Group Companies

Companies with which there have been related party transactions, during the last three financial
years, as covered under the applicable accounting standards and other companies as considered
material by the Board in accordance with the Materiality Policy.

Independent Director

A non-executive & Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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Term Description
Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
ISIN International Securities Identification Number. In this case being INEOWDX01010.
E:r);onnel Ma}nagir:aal The officer vested with executive power and the officers at the level immediately below the
M ; Y| Board of Directors as described in the section titled “Our Management” on page 134 of this
anagerial )
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
Employees

Materiality Policy

The policy on identification of group companies, material creditors and material litigation,
adopted by our Board on June 24, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

MOA/Memorandum

/Memorandum of | Memorandum of Association of our Company as amended from time to time.

Association

Non-Residents A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA.

Nomination and | The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Board of Directors constituted in
Remuneration accordance with Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section titled “Our Management” on
Committee page 134 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

g:)rr;iérecutlve A Director not being an Executive Director or an Independent Director.

NRIs / Non Resident
Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a citizen of India or a
Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Outside India Regulations, 2000

Peer Review Auditors

M/s D G M S & Co., Chartered Accountants having its office located at Office No. 10, Vihang
Vihar, Opp. Gautam Park Building, Panchpakhadi, Thane West, Thane — 400602.

Registered Office

The registered office of our Company, which is situated at Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz
Post Office, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements
or Restated
Consolidated

Financial Information
or Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Restated Standalone Financial Information comprising the Standalone Consolidated
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2024, the Restated Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Restated Standalone Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, the Standalone Summary Statement of
Significant Accounting Policies, and other explanatory information, prepared in terms of the
Section 26 of Part | of Chapter I11 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended; the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
as amended; and the Guidance Note on “Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to
time. For further details, see “Restated Financial Information” on page 154 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus

Restated Standalone
Financial Statements
or Restated
Standalone Financial
Information or
Standalone Financial
Statements

The Restated Standalone Financial Information comprising of the Restated Standalone
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
the Restated Standalone Statements of Profit and Loss, the Restated Standalone Cash Flow
Statement, each for the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, the
Standalone Summary Statement of Significant Accounting Policies, and other explanatory
information of the Company, prepared in terms of the Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended; the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended; and the Guidance Note
on “Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to time. For further details, see “Restated
Financial Information” on page 154 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Restated Financial

Information

Restated financial information of our Company comprising of our Restated Standalone
Financial Statements

ROC / Registrar of
Companies

Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, having its office at 37/17, Westcott Building, The Mall,
Kanpur-208001, Uttar Pradesh.

Senior Management

Senior Management of our Company in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For details, see
“Our Management” beginning on page 134

Shareholders

Shareholders of our Company, from time to time.

Stakeholders
Relationship
Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of our Board of Directors constituted in accordance
with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section titled “Our
Management” on page 134 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Subscriber to MOA

Initial Subscribers to MOA being Jeevan Chand and Sanjay Chopra




CL y /ENERGY

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Terms

Description

Abridged Prospectus

Abridged Prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a
Prospectus as may be specified by SEBI in this behalf

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an Applicant as proof of
registration of the Application

Allotment

Issue of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue to the successful applicants

Allotment Advice

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Bidders who have been allotted Equity
Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the Designated Stock Exchanges

Allotment/Allot/Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires, allotment of Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Issue
pursuant to successful Bidders.

Allottee(s)

The successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are being / have been issued

Anchor Investor

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, applying under the Anchor Investor Portion in accordance
with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring
Prospectus and who has Bid for an amount of at least T 200 lakhs.

Rs. [e]/- per equity share i.e. the price at which Equity Shares were made available for

Anchor Investor | allocation to the Anchor Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus,
Allocation Price which was decided by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager
during the Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue Period.
The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor Portion
Anchor Investor - X S . .
L and which was considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the Red Herring
Application Form
Prospectus and the Prospectus
Anchor Investor Bid/ | [e], being one working day prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by Anchor
Issue Period Investors was submitted and allocation to the Anchor Investors was completed.
Anchor Investor Issue | Rs. [¢]/- per equity share being the final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to
Price the Anchor Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

Anchor Investor Portion

Upto 60% of the QIB Portion consisting of [e] Equity Shares which were allocated by our
Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, to the Anchor Investors on
a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Application  Supported
by  Blocked Amount /

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by applicants to make an application
authorizing a SCSB to block the application amount in the ASBA Account maintained with

ASBA the SCSB.

Application Form The Form in terms of which the applicant shall apply for the Equity Shares of our Company

ASBA Account An account_ maintained With the SCSB and specifieq in the ap_pliqation form submitted by
ASBA applicant for blocking the amount mentioned in the application form.

ASBA Bid A Bid made by ASBA Bidder

Bankers to the Issue

Banker to the Issue, Public Issue Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor Bank, being [e]

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which equity shares will be allotted to successful applicants under the Issue and
which is described in paragraph titled “Basis of allotment” under chapter titled “Issue
Procedure” starting from page no. 240 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

An indication to make an Issue during the Bid/lssue Period by an ASBA Bidder pursuant to
submission of the ASBA Form to subscribe to or purchase the Equity Shares at a price within

Bid the Price Band, including all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the relevant Bid cum
Application Form. The term “Bidding” shall be construed accordingly.

Bid Amount The amount at which the bidder makes a bid for the Equity Shares of our Company in terms

of Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Bid cum Application
Form

The form in terms of which the bidder shall make a bid, including ASBA Form, and which
shall be considered as the bid for the Allotment pursuant to the terms of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Bid Lot

[e] Equity Shares and in multiples of [®] Equity Shares thereafter

Bid/ Issue Period

The period between the Bid/ Issue Opening Date and the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, inclusive
of both days, during which prospective Bidders can submit their Bids, including any revisions
thereof in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus. Provided, however, that the Bidding shall be kept open for a minimum of three
Working Days for all categories of Bidders.

Our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager may consider closing
the Bid/lssue Period for the QIB Portion One Working Day prior to the Bid/Issue Closing
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Date which shall also be notified in an advertisement in same newspapers in which the
Bid/lssue Opening Date was published, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In cases of force majeure, banking strike or similar circumstances, our Company in
consultation with the BRLM, for reasons to be recorded in writing, extend the Bid / Issue
Period for a minimum of one Working Days, subject to the Bid/ Issue Period not exceeding
10 Working Days.

Bid/Issue Closing Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after which the
Designated Intermediaries will not accept any Bids, being [®], which shall be notified in all
editions of English national daily newspaper, [®], all editions of Hindi national daily
newspaper, [®] a (Hindi being the regional language of Uttar Pradesh, where our Registered
Office is located).

In case of any revisions, the extended Bid/ Issue Closing Date will be widely disseminated by
notification to the Stock Exchanges, by issuing a public notice, and also by indicating the
change on the websites of the Book Running Lead Manager and at the terminals of the other
members of the Syndicate and by intimation to the Designated Intermediaries and the Sponsor
Bank.

Our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, may consider closing
the Bid/Issue Period for QIBs one Working Day prior to the Bid/lssue Closing Date in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Bid/Issue Opening Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after which the
Designated Intermediaries will not accept any Bids, being [e], which shall be notified in all
editions of English national daily newspaper, [®], all editions of Hindi national daily
newspaper, [®] a (Hindi being the regional language of Uttar Pradesh, where our Registered
Office is located).

Bidder/ Investor

Any prospective investor who makes a bid for Equity Shares in terms of Red Herring
Prospectus.

Bidding Centers

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Bid cum Application Forms
i.e. Designated SCSB Branch for SCSBs, Specified Locations for members of the Syndicate,
Broker Centers for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated
CDP Locations for CDPs.

Bidding Centers

Centers at which the Designated Intermediaries shall accept the Application Forms i.e.
Designated SCSB Branch for SCSBs, Specified Locations for members of the Syndicate,
Broker Centers for Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated
CDP Locations for CDPs.

Book Building Process

Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
in terms of which the Issue is being made.

BRLM / Book Running
Lead Manager

Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue, in this case being Aryaman Financial Services
Limited, SEBI Registered Category | Merchant Banker.

Broker Centers

Broker centers notified by the Stock Exchanges where investors can submit the Application
Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker Centers, along with the names and
contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange.

Cap Price

The higher end of the Price Band, subject to any revisions thereto, above which the Issue
Price will not be finalized and above which no Bids will be accepted.

Cut-Off Price

The Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price band as finalized by our Company
in consultation with the BRLM. Only Retail Individual Bidders are entitled to Bid at the Cut
off Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investor) and Non-Institutional Investors are not entitled
to Bid at the Cut-off Price.

Client Id

Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to demat
account.

Collecting  Depository
Participants or CDPs

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered with SEBI
and who is eligible to procure bids at the Designated CDP Locations in terms of circular no.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI.

Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the BRLM, the Registrar to the Issue and
the Stock Exchange.

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Applicants such as their Address, PAN, name of the applicant
father/husband, investor status, and occupation and Bank Account details.
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Depository

A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018.

Depository Participant

A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996

Designated
Intermediaries/
Collecting Agent

The members of the Syndicate, sub-syndicate/agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers, CDPs and
RTAs, who are categorized to collect Application Forms from the Applicant, in relation to
the Issue.

Such locations of the CDPs where bidder can submit the Bid cum Application Forms to
Collecting Depository Participants.

Eg;gt]?oa;gd CDP The det_ails of sugh Design_at_ed CDP_ L_ocations, along_ with names an_d contact details (_)f the
Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Bid cum Application Forms are available
on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The date on which amounts blocked by the SCSBs are transferred from the ASBA Accounts,
as the case may be, to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as appropriate, in

Designated Date terms of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, after finalization of the Basis of Allotment in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, following which the Board of Directors
may Allot Equity Shares to successful Bidders in the Issue.

Such locations of the RTAs where bidder can submit the Bid cum Application Forms to RTAs.

Designated RTA | The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact details of the

Locations RTAs eligible to accept Bid cum Application Forms are available on the website of the Stock
Exchange.

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Bid cum Application Form from

Designated SCSB |the ASBA bidder and a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at

Branches http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/list/5/33/0/0/ Recognized-Intermediaries or at such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

g}fﬁ;}%’;a;d Stock | SME Platform of BSE Limited (“BSE SME?)

DP ID Depository Participant’s Identity Number

Draft Red Herring | Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated June [¢], 2024, filed with SME Exchange of BSE Limited

Prospectus in accordance with Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Electronic Transfer of
Funds

Refunds through ECS, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.

Eligible NRI

NRIs from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or invitation
under the Issue and in relation to whom the Draft Red Herring Prospectus constitutes an
invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares Allotted herein.

Eligible QFls

QFIs from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an Issue or
invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Draft Red Herring Prospectus
constitutes an invitation to purchase the Equity Shares Issued thereby and who have opened
demat accounts with SEBI registered gualified depositary participants.

Escrow Account

The account(s) to be opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favour the Anchor
Investors will transfer money through NACHY/direct credit/ NEFT/ RTGS in respect of the
Bid Amount when submitting a Bid.

First/ Sole bidder

The bidder whose name appears first in the Bid cum Application Form or Revision Form.

Floor Price

The lower end of the Price Band, subject to any revision(s) thereto, not being less than the
face value of Equity Shares, at or above which the Issue Price will be finalized and below
which no Bids will be accepted.

Foreign Venture Capital
Investors

Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000.

FPI / Foreign Portfolio
Investor

A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registered under Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, provided that any FIl or QFI who
holds a valid certificate of registration shall be deemed to be a foreign portfolio investor till
the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as per the SEBI (Foreign
Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended.

Fraudulent Borrower

Fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1) (lIl) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Fugitive Economic | An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Offender Economic Offenders Act, 2018

. The General Information Document for investing in public issues prepared and issued in
General Information

Document (GID)

accordance with the circulars (CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013, Notified by
SEBI and updated pursuant to the circular (CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated
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November 10, 2015 and (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) dated January 21, 2016 and
circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) dated November 1, 2018 notified by SEBI.
GIR Number General Index Registry Number

Issue

This issue of Upto 28,92,000 Equity Shares of face value of R10 per Equity Share for an Issue
Price of X [] per Equity Share, aggregating upto X [¢] Lakhs.

Issue Agreement

Agreement dated July 23, 2024 entered amongst our Company and the Book Running Lead
Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements have been agreed to in relation to the Issue.

Issue Closing

Our Issue shall close on [e].

Issue document

Includes this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and Prospectus to be
filed with Registrar of Companies.

Issue Opening

Our Issue shall open on [e].

Issue Period

The periods between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive of both
days and during which prospective Applicants may submit their Bidding application.

Issue Price

The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company through this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, being X [@] /- (including share premium of X [e]/- per Equity Share).

Issue Proceeds

Proceeds to be raised by our Company through this Fresh Issue, for further details please refer
chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” page 70 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Listing Agreement

The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and the BSE Limited.

Market Maker

The Market Maker to the Issue, in this case being [e].

Market Maker
Reservation Portion

The reserved portion of [@] Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at an Issue price of X [@] each
aggregating to X [e] Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in this Issue.

Market Making
Agreement

The Market Making Agreement dated [e] between our Company, Book Running Lead
Manager and Market Maker.

Mutual Funds

A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as
amended from time to time.

Mutual Fund Portion

5% of the Net QIB Portion, (other than anchor allocation), which shall be available for
allocation to Mutual Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids being received
at or above the Issue Price.

Net Issue

The Issue excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion of [@] Equity Shares of Face
Value of % 10.00 each fully paid for cash at a price of X [e] Equity Share aggregating X [e]
Lakhs by our Company.

Net QIB Portion

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allocated to the Anchor
Investors

Net Proceeds

The proceeds from the Issue less the Issue related expenses applicable to the Issue.

Non-Institutional
Applicant / Investors

All Applicants, including FPIs which are individuals, corporate bodies and family offices,
that are not QIBs or Rlls and who have Application for Equity Shares for an amount of more
than %2.00 Lakhs (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs)

Non-Institutional
Portion

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Net Issue consisting of [e] Equity
Shares which shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional
Bidders, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price or through such other
method of allocation as may be introduced under applicable law

NPCI

NPCI, a Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initiative, is an umbrella organization for all retail
payments in India. It has been set up with the guidance and support of the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) and Indian Banks Association (IBA).

Person/Persons

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated organization,
body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture,
or trust or any other entity or organization validly constituted and/or incorporated in the
jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, as the context requires.

Price Band

Price Band of a minimum price (Floor Price) of X [e] and the maximum price (Cap Price) of
% [e]. The Price Band will be decided by our Company in consultation with the BRLM and
advertised in [®] editions of [@] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper), [®]
editions of [@] (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and Hindi editions of [e]
(a Hindi language newspaper with wide circulation, Hindi being the regional language of
Uttar Pradesh, where our Registered Office is located), at least two working days prior to the
Bid / Issue Opening Date.

Pricing Date

The date on which our Company, in consultation with the BRLM, will finalize the Issue Price.

Prospectus

The Prospectus to be filed with the RoC in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, and
the SEBI ICDR Regulations containing, inter alia, the Issue Price that is determined at the
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end of the Book Building Process, the size of the Issue and certain other information,
including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.
Public Issue  Account Agreement to be entered int_o by our Company, the Registrar to the Issqe, the Book Rynn!ng
Agreement Lead Manager, and the Public Issue Bank/Banker to the Issue for collection of the Application

Amounts.

Public Issue Account

Account to be opened with the Banker to the Issue to receive monies from the SCSBs from
the bank account of the ASBA bidder, on the Designated Date.

Public Issue Account | The bank with whom the Public Issue Account shall be opened for collection of Bid Amounts
Bank from the Escrow Account and ASBA Accounts on the Designated Date, in this case being [e]
Qualified Institutional | The qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR

Buyers / QIBs

Regulations.

QIB Category/
Portion

QIB

The portion of the Net Issue (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not more than
[#]% of the Net Issue, consisting of [¢] Equity Shares which were made available for
allocation to QIBs (including Anchor Investors) on a proportionate basis, (in which allocation
to Anchor Investor were made available on a discretionary basis, as determined by our
Company in consultation with the BRLM), subject to valid Bids being received at or above
the Issue Price.

Red Herring Prospectus /
RHP

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which will not have complete
particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares will be Issued and the size of the Issue,
including any addenda or corrigenda thereto.

Refund Bank(s) /Refund
Banker(s)

Bank(s) which is / are clearing member(s) and registered with the SEBI as Bankers to the
Issue at which the Refund Accounts will be opened in case listing of the Equity Shares does
not occur, in this case being [e].

Refund Account

The ‘no-lien” and ‘non-interest bearing’ account opened with the Refund Bank, from which
refunds, if any, of the whole or part, of the Bid Amount to the Anchor Investors shall be made.

Registered Broker

Individuals or companies registered with SEBI as “Trading Members”(except Syndicate/
Sub-Syndicate Members) who hold valid membership of either BSE or BSE Limited having
right to trade in stocks listed on Stock Exchanges ,through which investors can buy or sell
securities listed on stock exchanges, a list of which is available on https://www.bseindia.com/

Registrar / Registrar to
the Issue/ RTA

Registrar to the Issue being Bigshare Services Private Limited.

Registrar Agreement

The registrar agreement dated July 23, 2024 entered into between our Company and the
Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the
Issue pertaining to the Issue.

Regulations

Unless the context specifies something else, this means the SEBI (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

Retail Individual

Investors/(RII)

Individual investors (including HUFs applying through their Karta and Eligible NRI Bidders)
who applies or bids for the Equity Shares of a value of not more than % 2,00,000.

Retail Portions

Portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Net Issue consisting of [®] Equity Shares
which shall be available for allocation to RIBs (subject to valid Bids being received at or
above the Issue Price), which shall not be less than the minimum Bid Lot subject to
availability in the Retail Portion, and the remaining Equity Shares to be Allotted on a
proportionate basis

Revision Form

The form used by the bidders to modify the quantity of Equity Shares or the bid Amount in
any of their Bid cum Application Forms or any previous Revision Form(s)

SCSB

A Self Certified Syndicate Bank registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Bankers to an Issue)
Regulations, 1994 and Issues the facility of ASBA, including blocking of bank account. A list
of all SCSBs is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&int mld=35

SME Platform of BSE

The SME platform of BSE, approved by SEBI as an SME Exchange for listing of equity
shares issued under Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Sponsor Bank

The Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI and appointed by our Company to act as a
conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the NPCI in order to push the mandate collect
requests and / or payment instructions of the Retail Individual Bidders into the UPI and carry
out other responsibilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars.

Sub Syndicate Member

The sub-syndicate members, if any, appointed by the BRLM and the Syndicate Members, to
collect ASBA Forms and Revision Forms.
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Syndicate Agreement

The agreement dated [®] entered into amongst our Company, the BRLM and the Syndicate
Members, in relation to the collection of Bids in this Issue

Syndicate Member(s)

Syndicate members as defined under Regulation 2(1) (hhh) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
namely [eo].

Transaction Registration
Slip/ TRS

The slip or document issued by a member of the Syndicate or an SCSB (only on demand), as
the case may be, to the bidders, as proof of registration of the bid.

Underwriter

[e]

Underwriting
Agreement

The Agreement dated [e] entered into between the Underwriter and our Company

UPI

Unified payment Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism, developed by NPCI.

UPI Circular

Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018 issued by SEBI
as amended or modified by SEBI from time to time, including circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50  dated  April 3, 2019, circular  no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76  dated  June 28, 2019, circular  no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85  dated  July 26, 2019, circular  no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50  dated  March 30, 2020, circular  no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M  dated March 16, 2021, circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, the circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, the circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, the circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022, SEBI master circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/TPD1/CIR/P/2023/140 dated August 9, 2023, and any other circulars issued
by SEBI or any other governmental authority in relation thereto from time to time

UPI ID

ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the NPCI.

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the Retail Individual Bidder by way of a notification on the Mobile App
and by way of a SMS directing the Retail Individual Bidder to such Mobile App) to the Retail
Individual Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorize blocking of funds on the Mobile
App equivalent to Bid Amount and Subsequent debit of funds in case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism

The bidding mechanism that may be used by a RII to make a Bid in the Issue in accordance
with the UPI Circulars.

UPI PIN

Password to authenticate UPI transactions.

Wilful Defaulter and
Fraudulent Borrower

A wilful defaulter(s) and fraudulent borrower(s) as defined under SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Working Days

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means all days
on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Further, in respect of Issue
Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on
which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the time period
between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on NSE, working day means
all trading days of NSE, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by
SEBI

CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ ABBREVIATIONS

Term

Description

“” or “Rs.” or
“Rupees” or “INR”

Indian Rupee

“Consolidated FDI
Policy” or “FDI
Policy”

Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy notified by DPIT through notification issued
by DPIIT, effective from October 15, 2020

“Financial Year” or
“Fiscal Year” or
6$FY”

Period of 12 months ending March 31 of that particular year

“OCBs” or
“Overseas Corporate
Body”

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the
extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than 60% of
beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in existence
on October 3, 2003 and immediately before such date had taken benefits under the general
permission granted to OCBs under FEMA

Alc

Account
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AGM Annual General Meeting
AIE Alternative Investment_Fund, as dgfined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012, as amended
AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate
CAN Confirmation Allocation Note

Category | AIF

AlFs who are registered as “Category I Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category | FPIs

FPIs who are registered as “Category 1 foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category I AIF

AlFs who are registered as “Category Il Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category Il FPIs

FPIs who are registered as “Category II foreign portfolio investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category Il AIF

AIFs who are registered as “Category III Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AlF
Regulations

CBDT

Central Board of Direct Taxes, Government of India

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Central Government

Central Government of India

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

CIN Corporate Identification Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CLRA Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

Companies Act 1956 | Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the relevant rules made thereunder
Companies Act,

2013 / Companies
Act

Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder

CS

Company Secretary

CSR

Corporate Social Responsibility

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996

Depository(ies)

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996

DIN Director Identification Number
DP ID Depository Participant’s Identification Number
EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
ECB External Commercial Borrowings
ECB Master | Master Direction — External Commercial Borrowings, Trade Credits and Structured
Directions Obligations dated March 26, 2019 issued by the RBI
ECS Electronic Clearing System
EGM Extraordinary General Meeting
EPF Act Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
EPS Earnings per share
ESI Act Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948
FCNR Account Foreign Currency Non Resident (Bank) account established in accordance with the FEMA
FEMA The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations thereunder
. The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident
FEMA Regulations Outside India) Regulations, 2017
FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019
Financial The period of 12 months commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year
Year/Fiscal and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year
FIR First information report
FPls Foreign portfolio investors as defined and registered under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Fugitive Economic
Offender

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018

FVCI

Foreign Venture Capital Investors as defined and registered under the SEBI FVCI
Regulations

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

Gol / Government

The Government of India
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GST Goods and Services Tax
HUF(s) Hindu Undivided Family(ies)
ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
IFSC Indian Financial System Code

Income Tax Act/ IT

Income Tax Act, 1961

Act

The Indian Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Ind AS

Rules, 2015, as amended
Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
Insider Trading Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
Regulations amended from time to time

Insolvency Code

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended from time to time

ISIN

International Securities Identification Number

IT

Information Technology

MCA

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Gol

Merchant Banker

Merchant banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant
Bankers) Regulations, 1992 as amended

Mn / mn Million

MOF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MSME Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises

Mutual Eunds Mutual funds registered_ with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

N.A. or NA Not Applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NAV Net Asset Value per Equity Share at a particular date computed based on total equity divided
by number of Equity Shares
Net worth as defined under Regulation 2(1)(hh) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., the
aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits, securities
premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account, after deducting the

Net Worth ; -
aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous
expenditure not written off as per the restated balance sheet, but does not include reserves
created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of depreciation and amalgamation

NR Non-resident or person(s) resident outside India, as defined under the FE

NRE Non- residential external

NRE Account Non- residential external account

NRI A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the same meaning as
ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2016

NRO Non- resident ordinary

NRO Account Non-resident ordinary account

BSE BSE Limited

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NTA Net Tangible Assets

OCl Overseas Citizen of India

ODI Off-shore Derivate Instruments

p.a. Per annum

P/E Ratio Price/Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

PIO Person of Indian Origin

PLR Prime Lending Rate

R&D Research and Development

RBI The Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

RoNW Return on Net Worth
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Term Description
RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement
SAREAESI Act The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security

Interest Act, 2002

SAT Securities Appellate Tribunal
SCRA Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956
SCRR The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957
SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, as amended
SEBI Act The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended
SEBI AIF | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012,
Regulations as amended
SEBI BTI . . .
Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994
SEBI . FPI The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019
Regulations
SEBI FVCI . . . . .
Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000
SEBI ICDR | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations Regulations, 2018, as amended
SEBI Listing | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations Regulations, 2015, as amended
SEBI Takeover | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations Regulations, 2011, as amended
SEBI VCEF | Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, since
Regulations repealed and replaced by the SEBI (AlF) Regulations
SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, as amended from time to time
SME Small and Medium Enterprises
Stamp Act The Indian Stamp Act, 1899, as amended from time to time

State Government

The Government of a state in India

State Government

The Government of a State of India

Stock Exchange

Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the BSE Limited

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source

Trademarks Act

Trademarks Act, 1999, as amended

U.S. GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America
ggﬁgr USD/ US United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America
United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the United States of
USA/ U.S./US . . .
America and the District of Columbia
VAT Value Added Tax
VCFs Venture Capital Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under the SEBI VCF
Regulations or the SEBI AlF Regulations, as the case may be
w.e.f. With effect from

Year/Calendar Year

Unless context otherwise requires, shall refer to the twelve-month period ending December 31

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS RELATED TERMS

Terms Description
WEO World Economic Outlook
GDP Gross Domestic Product
UK United Kingdom
FRE First Revised Estimates
HFI High-Frequency Indicators
us United States
CAD Current Account Deficit
GST Goods and Services Tax
CGST Central Goods and Services Tax
SGST State Goods and Services Tax
FDI Foreign Direct Investment
1P Index of Industrial Production
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Terms Description
MoSPI Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation
CPI Consumer Price Index
Fll Foreign Institutional Investors
DIl Domestic Institutional Investors
FPI Foreign Portfolio Investors
MSME Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
DPIIT Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
CGSS Credit Guarantee Scheme for Start-ups
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India
AFI Alternative Investment Funds
TTDF Telecom Technology Development Fund
USOF Universal Service Obligation Fund
RBI Reserve Bank of India
Al Artificial Intelligence
AlDef Al in Defense’

FTAs Free Trade Agreements

UAE United Arab Emirates

CEPA Comprehensive Partnership Agreement
IndAus ECTA India-Australia Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreement
SPI Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry

ETP Effluent Treatment Plant

PLI Productivity Linked Incentive

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

EV Electric Vehicles

CAFE Corporate Average Fuel Economy

LCV Light Commercial Vehicles

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

LED Light-Emitting Diode

LCO Lithium Cobalt Oxide

LFP Lithium Iron Phosphate

NCA Lithium Nickel Cobalt Aluminium Oxide

UPS Uninterruptible Power Supply

LTO Lithium Titanate

FY Financial Year

GVA Gross Value Added

LIB Lithium-lon Battery

GW Gigawatts

BU Billing units

UN United Nations

ACC Advanced Chemistry Cell

GSI Geological Survey of India

G2G Government-To-Government

LMO Lithium Manganese Oxide

FAME Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of (Hybrid &) Electric VVehicles
PLI Production Linked Incentives

ACC Advance Chemistry Cells

C-MET Centre for Material for Electronics Technology
NITI National Institution for Transforming India
MWH Mega Watt per Hour

KWH Kilo Watt per Hour

BMS Battery Management System

R&D Research & Development

UPS Uninterruptible Power Supply

ISO Independent System Operator

KWH Kilowatt-Hour

ICAT International Centre For Automotive Technology
ARAI The Automotive Research Association Of India
IEC International Electrotechnical Commission
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Terms Description
TSEC Technical Specification Evaluation Certificate
PFMEA Process Failure Mode And Effects Analysis
DFMEA Design Failure Mode And Effects Analysis
DPR Digital Path Receiver.

NPD Nano Diamond Battery

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate
PBT Profit Before Tax

PAT Profit After Tax

ESS Energy Storage System

DC-DC Direct Current

AIS Air-Insulated Switchgear

OTA Operational Transconductance Amplifier
SOC State Of Charge

CAN Controller Area Network

PPC Production Planning And Control
IR Internal Resistance

PQC Product Quality Control

0QC Outgoing Quality Control

MRS Material Requisition Slip

AGV Automatic Guided Vehicle
MHE Material Handling Equipment
SQA Supplier Quality Assurance

IQA Incoming Quality Assurance
PDI Pre-Delivery Inspection

BESS Battery Energy Storage System

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in “Main Provisions of Articles of Association”, “Statement of Possible Tax
Benefits”, “Industry Overview”, “Key Industrial Regulations and Policies”, “Financial Information”, “Outstanding
Litigation and Material Developments” and “Issue Procedure” on pages 270, 154, 83240, 121, 154, 216 and 200,
respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in these respective sections.
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL

Certain Conventions

All references in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus to ‘India’ are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions
and all references herein to the ‘Government’, ‘Indian Government’, ‘Gol’, ‘Central Government’ or the ‘State
Government’ are to the Gol, central or state, as applicable

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”).

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are to the page numbers of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has presented numerical
information in “lakhs” units. One lakh represents 1,00,000.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, the financial information in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is derived from our Restated
Financial Statements. The Restated Financial Statements included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are for the period
ended December 31, 2023 and Fiscals ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021, and have been
prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, and have been restated in accordance with the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations. For further information, see please refer —Financial Information beginning on page no. 154 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

In this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed
are due to rounding off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the second decimal and all percentage figures
have been rounded off to two decimal places.

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references
to a particular financial year, unless stated otherwise, are to the 12 month period ended on March 31 of that year. Unless
stated otherwise, or the context requires otherwise, all references to a “year” in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus are to
a calendar year.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not attempted to
quantify their impact on the financial data included herein and urges you to consult your own advisors regarding such
differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. Accordingly to what extent, the financial statements
included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s
level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices / Indian GAAP. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian
Accounting Practices on the financial disclosures presented in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus should accordingly be
limited.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations” on page nos. 23, 97, and
182, respectively, of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, and elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus have been
calculated on the basis of the Restated Financial Statements of our Company.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to “Rupees”, “Rs.” or “X” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. All references
to “US$” or “US Dollars” or “USD” are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of America.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus may contain conversions of certain US Dollar and other currency amounts into Indian
Rupees that have been presented solely to comply with the requirements of the SEBI Regulations. These conversions
should not be construed as a representation that those US Dollar or other currency amounts could have been, or can be
converted into Indian Rupees, at any particular rate.
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Definitions

For definitions, please refer the Chapter titled “Definitions and Abbreviations” on page no. 1 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. In the Section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association of Our Company” beginning on page no.
270 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, defined terms have the meaning given to such terms in the Articles of
Association.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, the industry and market data and forecasts used throughout this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
has been obtained from industry sources as well as Government Publications. Industry sources as well as Government
Publications generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed
to be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability
cannot be assured.

Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is meaningful
depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking statements
generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”,
“objective”, “plan”, “propose”, “project”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue” or other words or phrases of similar
import. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals are also forward-looking statements.
All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, expectations and assumptions about us that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. These forward-
looking statements, whether made by us or a third party, are based on our current plans, estimates and expectations and
actual results may differ materially from those suggested by such forward-looking statements.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties
associated with expectations relating to and including, regulatory changes pertaining to the industries in India in which
we operate and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and
expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India which
have an impact on its business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation,
unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance
of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic laws, regulations and taxes and changes in competition
in the industries in which we operate.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations, see “Risk
Factors”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of
Operations” beginning on Page Nos. 23, 97 and 182, respectively, of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. By their nature,
certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future.
As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct.
Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not
to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect current views as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and are not a
guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in
turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-
looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-
looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our Directors, the Promoters,
the Syndicate nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements
reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the
underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company, the Promoters and the Book Running Lead Manager will
ensure that the Bidders in India are informed of material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading
permission by the Stock Exchange for the Issue.
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SECTION Il - SUMMARY OF ISSUE DOCUMENT

The following is a general summary of the terms of the Issue. This summary should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus,
including the sections entitled “Risk Factors”, “Industry Overview”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material
Developments”, “Our Promoters and Promoter Group”, “Financial Information”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Our Business”,
“Issue Procedure” and “Main Provisions of Articles of Association” beginning on Page Nos. 23, 83, 200, 148, 154, 70,
97, 240 and 270, respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

. Summary of Industry

The global lithium-ion battery market, valued at USD 54.4 billion in 2023, is expected to grow at a 20.3% CAGR through
2030, driven by rising EV registrations.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Industry Overview” beginning on Page No. 83 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

. Summary of Business

Our company manufactures custom lithium-ion batteries, motors, and powertrain components for EVs, including

CL | 4 /ENERGY

controllers and converters. We offer B2B solutions for mobility and stationary applications under the
brand.

For further details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on Page No. 97 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

. Promoters

The Promoters of our Company are CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. and Rajiv Seth. For further details, please refer to the chapter
titled “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” beginning on Page No. 148 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

. Details of the Issue

Our Company is proposing the public issue of upto 28,92,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each for cash at a
price of X [®]/- per Equity Share including a share premium of X [®]/- per Equity Share aggregating upto X [e] lakhs, of
which 1,56,000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each for cash at a price of X [e]/- per Equity Share including a share
premium of X [e]/- per Equity Share aggregating to X [e] lakhs will be reserved for subscription by Market Maker to the
Issue (the “Market Maker Reservation Portion”). The Issue less the Market Maker Reservation Portion i.e. Net issue
0f 27,36,000 Equity Shares of face value of % 10/- each at a price of X [@]/- per Equity Share including a share premium
of T [e]/- per Equity Share aggregating to X [e] lakhs is herein after referred to as the “Net Issue”. The Issue and the Net
Issue will constitute 27.40% and 25.93%, respectively, of the post issue paid up Equity Share capital of our Company.
The face value of the Equity Shares is X 10/- each.

The price band will be decided by our company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager (“BRLM”) and
will be advertised in [®] editions of [®] (a widely circulated English national daily newspaper), [®] editions of [@] (a
widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper) and Hindi editions of [e] (a Hindi language newspaper with wide
circulation, Hindi being the regional language of Uttar Pradesh, where our Registered Office is located), each with wide
circulation, at least 2 (two) working days prior to the bid/ issue opening date with the relevant financial ratios calculated
at the Floor Price and the Cap Price and shall be made available to the SME Platform of BSE Limited (“BSE SME”,
referred to as the “Stock Exchange”) for the purpose of uploading on their website for further details kindly refer to
chapter titled “Terms of the issue” beginning on page 228 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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5. Objects of the Issue

The Fund requirements for each of the objects of the Issue are as stated below:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds of the Issue [e]
Less: Issue related expenses® [o]
Net Proceeds of the Issue [e]
MThe Issue related expenses are estimated expenses and subject to change
6. Utilization of Net Issue Proceeds
The details of the utilisation of Net Proceeds of the Issue are set out in the following table:
(% in lakhs)
Amount to be degr:;elijn:r?n? ihe
Sr. No. Particulars funded from the .
Net Proceeds Net Proceeds in FY
2024-25
1. Purchase of machinery and equipment 970.80 970.80
2. Funding Working capital requirements 4,122.50 4,122.50
3. General Corporate Purpose [o] [e]
Total [e] [e]

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on Page No. 70 of this Draft Red Herring

Prospectus.

Following are the details of the pre-Issue shareho

. Aggregate Pre Issue Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group

Iding of Promoters:

Pre-lIssue Post - Issue

Sr . el Al Number of Yo O gt
' Name of the Shareholders Number of Equity | Issue Equity - Issue Equity

No. Equity
Shares Share Shares Share
Capital Capital

Promoters

1. | CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. 76,61,238 99.99 76,61,238 72.54
Total 76,61,238 99.99 76,61,238 72.54

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Rajiv Seth and members of our Promoter Group do not hold any

shareholdings in our Company.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on Page No. 59 of this Draft Red

Herring Prospectus.

8. Summary of Financial Information

Following are the details as per the Restated Financial Statements as at and for the Financial Years ended on March 31,

2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

(R in lakhs, except share data)

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
1. | Share Capital 340.50 113.50 113.50
2. | Net Worth 1,337.34 358.49 285.62
3. | Revenue from operations 13,270.87 12,881.94 12,168.96
4. | Profit after Tax 978.85 72.87 364.13
5. | Earnings per Share 39.28 31.59 25.16
6. Net Asset Value per equity share (with Bonus 17.46 4.68 378
effect)
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For further details, please refer to the section titled “Financial Information’ beginning on Page No. 154 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

9. Auditor qualifications which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial Information
The Restated Financial Information do not contain any qualifications.
10. Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summary of the pending tax proceedings and other material litigations involving our Company, our Promoters, our
Directors and our Group Companies is provided below:

Disciplinary
actions by the | Material
Statutory or | SEBI or | Civil
Regulatory Stock Litigation
Proceeding Exchanges Other
against our | Litigations
Promoters

Aggregate
amount
involved (Rs
in lakhs) to
the extent
quantifiable

Name of | Criminal Tax
Entity Proceeding Proceeding

~

Company
By the
Company
Against  the
Company
Directors
By our
Directors
Against  the
Directors
Promoters
By Promoters - - - - - -
Against 1 i ) i 50.00
Promoters
Group Companies
By Group
Companies
Against
Group - - - - - -
Companies

5 - - - 2 691.95

- 2 - - - 291

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” beginning on
Page No. 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

11. Risk Factors

The following is a summary of the top ten risk factors in relation to our Company or the Equity Shares, or the industry in
which we operate:

1. Our Company, Group Companies, Promoters and Directors are parties to certain legal proceedings. Any adverse
decision in such proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

2. We require certain approvals and licenses in the ordinary course of business and are required to comply with certain
rules and regulations to operate our business, and the failure to obtain, retain and renew such approvals and licenses
or comply with such rules and regulations, and the failure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner or at all may
adversely affect our operations.

3. We derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sale of batteries, cells and motors and any reduction in
demand or in the manufacturing of such products could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations
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and financial condition.

4. We have not entered into any agreement with the suppliers of machinery and equipment as specified in the objects
of the Issue. Further the amount allocated for purchases of machinery and equipment are based on the quotation
received from suppliers.

5. We are dependent on a few suppliers for supply of raw materials and any major disruption to the timely and adequate
supplies of our raw materials could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition

6. Our business of manufacturing and supply of lithium-ion batteries, motors and powertrain components, and services
required by electric vehicle industry, solar industry, telecom industry etc is significantly dependent on the technology,
process and product development of our products.

7. Trade Receivables, Inventories and other current assets form a substantial part of our current assets and net worth.
Failure to manage our trade receivables and inventories could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability,
cash flow and liquidity.

8. Majority of revenue contribution comes from the Delhi, Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh and Haryana which contributed
77.49%, 75.69% and 79.93% of our revenue from operations in Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

9. Our company is significantly dependent on few customers for our revenue in a particular financial year. The loss of
any one or more of such customers may have a material effect on our business operations and profitability.

10. Our manufacturing facilities and Registered Office are not owned by us and we have only leasehold rights. In the
event we lose or are unable to renew such leasehold rights, our business, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows may be adversely affected.

Specific attention of Investors is invited to the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on Page No. 23 of this Draft Red

Herring Prospectus. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the

Issue.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

There are no material contingent liabilities as of March 31, 2024.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

As per the Restated Financial Information as at and for the Financial Years ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022, following are the details of the related party transactions of our Company:

Particulars For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Directors

Loan Taken - - 5.00
Loan Repaid - 3.80 1.20
Managerial Remuneration 92.50 78.02 40.85
Balances at the end

Due to Directors 40.24 3.50 6.49

For further details, kindly refer “Restated Financial Information —Related Party Disclosures under AS 18” from the
chapter titled “Restated Financial Information” on Page No. 154 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Financing Arrangements
There are no financing arrangements whereby the Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, the Directors of our
Company and their relatives, have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in

the normal course of the business of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately preceding the date
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.
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15. Weighted Average Price of the Equity Shares acquired by our Promoters in the last one year preceding the date

of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

The details of the weighted average price of the Equity Shares acquired by our Promoters in the last one year preceding
the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is as follows:

Name of Promoter No. of shares acquired in last one year from the date
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus”™

Weighted Average
Price (in 3)#

CLN Energy Pte. Ltd.

65,26,240

Nil*

AFor arriving weighted average price at which the Equity Shares of the Company were acquired by the Promoters only

acquisition of Equity Shares has been considered.

# As certified by M/s. DGMS & Co., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated July 22, 2024.
*Represent cost of Bonus Shares issued at Nil consideration

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Rajiv Seth does not hold any shares in our Company.

Weighted average cost of all Equity Shares transacted in the three years, eighteen months and one year preceding the date

of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Weighted Average Ra.nge_z 2 acqumtgon Cap Price ([®]) is ‘X’ times
Particulars Cost of Acquisition lsEs G e the Weighted Average
(in%) Highest P-rice (in Cost of Acquisition

Last one year preceding the date of this Nil* [*] [*]

Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Last eighteen months preceding the date Nil* [*] [*]

of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Last three year preceding the date of this 3.95 [*] [*]

Draft Red Herring Prospectus

16. Average Cost of Acquisition of Equity Shares for Promoters

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares for the Promoters is as follows:

Name of Promoter

No. of shares held

Average Cost of Acquisition
(in )#

CLN Energy Pte. Ltd.

7,661,238

3.95

# As certified by M/s. DGMS & Co., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated July 22, 2024.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no Shareholders holding any special rights in our Company,
including the right to nominate Director(s) on our Board.
As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Rajiv Seth does not hold any shareholding in our Company.

17. Pre-1PO Placement

Our Company shall not undertake any pre-IPO placement.

18. Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Except as set out below we have not issued equity shares for consideration other than cash:

EGM held on November
1, 20230

Number .
. Benefit accrued Source out of
Date of of equity Face Issue .
. Nature of allotment to our which bonus
allotment shares Value Price .
Company shares issued
allotted
Bonus Issue in the ratio
of 2:1 authorised by our
November Shareholders pursuant to . Bonus issued out
02, 2023 22,70,000 10 N.A. a resolution passed at the Nil of free reserves.
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Number .
Date of of equity Face Issue Benefit accrued Sou_rce out of
. Nature of allotment to our which bonus
allotment shares Value Price .
Company shares issued
allotted
Bonus Issue in the ratio
of 125:100 authorised by
June 07, 42.56.250 10 NA our Sharehold_ers Nil Bonus issued out
2024 pursuant to a resolution of free reserves.
passed at the EGM held
on June 6, 2024@

®Bonus issue of 22,70,000 Equity Shares in the ratio of 2:1 Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. (22,69,996 shares); and Jeevan
Chand (2 shares ); Sunil Gandhi (2 shares).
@Bonus issue of 42,56,250Equity Shares in the ratio of 125:100 Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. (42,56,244 shares); Jeevan
Chand (1 share); Sunil Gandhi (1 share); Manish Shah (1 share); Mainak Bhanja (1 share); Sunjiv Kumar Bhardwaj (1
share); and Sanni Kumar(1 share).

19. Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

There has not been a split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year.

20. Exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws, if any, granted by SEBI

Our Company has not applied or received any exemptions from SEBI from complying with any provisions of securities

laws.
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SECTION IlI- RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. You should carefully consider all information in
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, including the risks described below, before making an investment in our Equity
Shares. The risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete or comprehensive in terms of all the risk factors
that may arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This
section addresses general risks associated with the industry in which we operate and specific risks associated with our
Company. Any of the following risks, as well as the other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus, could have a material adverse effect on our business and could cause the trading price of our Equity Shares
to decline and you may lose all or part of your investment.

This Draft Red Herring Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. We
have described the risks and uncertainties that our management believes are material, but these risks and uncertainties
may not be the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties, including those we are not aware of or deem
immaterial, may also result in decreased revenues, increased expenses or other events that could result in a decline in
the value of our Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own
examination of our Company and the Offer, including the merits and risks involved. Unless specified or quantified in the
relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks
described in this section. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in
this Offer. Investors should not invest in this Offer unless they are prepared to accept the risk of losing all or part of their
investment, and they should consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences to you of
an investment in the Equity Shares.

To obtain a better understanding of our business, you should read this section in conjunction with other chapters of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus, including the chapters titled “Our Business”’, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, “Industry Overview” and “Financial Information” on page no’s 97,
182, 83 and 154 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, together with all other financial information contained
in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward
looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus Unless otherwise stated, the financial data in this chapter is derived from our Restated Financial
Statements for the year ended, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 as included in “Financial
Information” on page no. 154 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. Our Company, Group Companies, Promoters and Directors are parties to certain legal proceedings. Any adverse
decision in such proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial

condition.
Disciplinary
actions by the | Material ,:rggzer?tate
Name of | Criminal Tax Statutory or | SEBI or C.'V.'I . involved (Rs
. . . Regulatory Stock Litigation /| .
Entity Proceeding Proceeding - in lakhs) to
Proceeding Exchanges Other
. . the extent
against our | Litigations pe
quantifiable
Promoters
Company
By the . : 2 691.95
Company
Against  the ) i ) 291
Company
Directors
By our ) i ) )
Directors
Against  the ) i ) )
Directors
Promoters
By Promoters | - - - -
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Disciplinary
actions by the | Material ':ragzer?tate
Name of | Criminal Tax Statutory or | SEBI or C.'V.'I . involved (Rs
. . . Regulatory Stock Litigation /| .
Entity Proceeding Proceeding : in lakhs) to
Proceeding Exchanges Other
. e the extent
against our | Litigations i
quantifiable
Promoters
Against 1 ) i ) 50.00
Promoters '
Group Companies
By Group i i i )
Companies
Against
Group - - - - - -
Companies
*For further details of the outstanding litigation proceedings, see “Outstanding Litigations and Material
Developments” beginning on page 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

There can be no assurance that these litigations will be decided in favour of our Promoter, Director, Promoter Group
Entity and consequently it may divert the attention of our management and Promoter and waste our corporate resources
and our Director and Promoter may incur significant expenses in such proceedings. If such claims are determined against
our Director and Promoter, there could be a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and
results of operations, which could adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. For the details of the cases filed
by and against our Company, Group Companies, our Subsidiary, our Promoters and Directors, please refer to the chapter
titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” on page no 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

We require certain approvals and licenses in the ordinary course of business and are required to comply with certain
rules and regulations to operate our business, and the failure to obtain, retain and renew such approvals and licenses
or comply with such rules and regulations, and the failure to obtain or retain them in a timely manner or at all may
adversely affect our operations.

Our Company requires certain statutory and regulatory permits, licenses and approvals to operate our business, some of
which our Company has either received, applied for or is in the process of application. Many of these approvals are
granted for fixed periods of time and need renewal from time to time. Non-renewal of the said permits and licenses would
adversely affect our Company’s operations, thereby having a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Further, there can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue any of such permits or approvals in the time-
frame anticipated by us or at all. Furthermore, our regulatory permits and approvals are subject to numerous conditions,
some of which are onerous and require us to make substantial expenditure and we cannot provide any assurance that we
will be able to continuously meet such conditions or be able to prove compliance with such conditions to the statutory
authorities, which may lead to the cancellation, revocation or suspension of the relevant permits, licenses or approvals.
Any failure by us to apply in time, to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits, licenses or approvals, or the
cancellation, suspension or revocation of any of the permits, licenses or approvals may result in the interruption of our
operations and may have a material adverse effect on our business. If we fail to comply with all the regulations applicable
to us or if the regulations governing our business or their manner of implementation change, we may incur increased
costs, or be subject to penalties or may suffer a disruption in our business activities, any of which, could adversely affect
our business or results of operations. For further details, please see “Key Industry Regulations and Policies” and
“Government and Other Statutory Approvals” beginning on page nos. 121 and 207 respectively of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sale of batteries, cells and motors and any reduction in demand
or in the manufacturing of such products could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Our total revenue from sale of goods in the last three years were Rs. 10,966.72 lakhs in FY 2023-24, Rs. 11,151.41 lakhs

in FY 2022-23 and Rs. 12,129.05 lakhs in FY 2021-22. We derive a significant portion of our revenue from batteries,
cells and motor business. The product wise break up of our sale of goods is entailed below:
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(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Batteries 9,886.78 90.15% 5,398.17 48.41% 2,752.17 22.69%
Cell 796.12 7.26% 5,5680.73 50.05% 9,098.20 75.01%
Motor 123.43 1.13% 6.08 0.05% - -
Total 10,806.33 98.54% 10,984.98 98.51% 11,850.37 97.70%

Our failure to effectively react to demand and supply situations or to successfully introduce new products or services in
the markets could adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows. Any
factor which affects the demand for our products would lead us to change our manufacturing as well as marketing
strategies and set ups and could entail additional cost outlay and losses. Further, any materially adverse social, political
or economic development, natural calamities, civil disruptions, regulatory developments or changes in the policies of the
government could adversely affect our manufacturing and distribution activities, further resulting in modification of our
business strategy, or require us to incur significant capital expenditure, which will in turn have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. The occurrence of, or our inability to effectively
respond to, any unfavorable events or effectively manage the competition in the region, could have an adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and future business prospects.

We have not entered into any agreement with the suppliers of machinery and equipment as specified in the objects of
the Issue. Further the amount allocated for purchases of machinery and equipment are based on the quotation
received from suppliers.

One of the Objects of issue is to deploy funds of ¥ 970.80 lakhs (1.16 million dollars) in purchases of capital equipment
and plant and machinery. This will lead to higher capacity in our production and with better technology we will be able
to fulfil growing demands. We have received quotation of the equipment from one vendor with the limited time period
validity. We are yet to place orders for our plant & machinery required for our proposed expansion, as specified in the
section titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 70 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. We may pass the time validity and
might have to incur additional cost and delay in occupying the asset. We may also be subject to risks on account of
inflation in the price of machinery and other equipment that we require and exchange rates of dollar in which we need to
pay. Hence, our installation could face time and cost over-run which could have an adverse effect on our operations.

The amount proposed to be allocated for purchases of machinery and equipment is based on the quotation received from
supplier and has not been appraised by any independent agency and may be subject to various factors beyond our control.

Management may change the estimate as per new order, or arrival of new technology in the market or change in demand
or supply of any machine and other such reasons. We cannot assure that all the machines will be purchased as per the
schedule give in the Objects. Any delay in entering such agreements may delay the implementation schedule, which may
also lead to increase in prices and availability of these equipments in future affecting our costs, revenue and profitability.

We are dependent on a few suppliers for supply of raw materials and any major disruption to the timely and adequate
supplies of our raw materials could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our Company is dependent on a few suppliers for procuring the raw materials for manufacturing of its products. For the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, our top ten suppliers accounted for
approximately 78.92%, 88.09% and 96.56% of our total purchases. We believe that the quality of raw materials, the
transparent pricing, location advantage, etc. are also some of the major reasons our Company prefers to procure these raw
materials from these suppliers. Further, we have entered into agreement with few suppliers which are subject to renewal
each year. Any failure of the supplier to deliver the raw materials in the necessary quantities or to adhere to delivery
schedules or specified quality standards and technical specifications would adversely affect our business operations and
our ability to deliver orders on time and at the desired level of quality. As a result, we may lose customers and incur
liabilities for failure to execute orders, which could have a material adverse effect on our business financial condition and
results of operations

Our business of manufacturing and supply of lithium-ion batteries, motors and powertrain components, and services
required by electric vehicle industry, solar industry, telecom industry etc is significantly dependent on the technology,
process and product development of our products.

Our manufacturing facility is built in a way to cater the requirements of the electric vehicle industry, Commercial and
Industrial application, Material and equipment handling Industry, Solar Industry, Golf cart manufacturing companies and
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Telecommunication Industry for power generation and storage purpose. For manufacturing the specific battery, we
specialize in technology, process knowhow and product development through our Research & Development activities in-
house. To manufacture this product, we have set up Research & Development team and our KMP’s has experienced and
technical knowledge in this industry over the years transfer us its technology, process, knowhow and product
development. With a focus on innovative and evolving markets, we seek to continuously innovate and provide solution
for the application of our product and service offerings. In the field of our product, the design, prototype are critical and
customized in nature, we continually work on developing innovative and cost competitive designs to maintain a
technological edge across our product and services. Our R&D team provides solutions for new stationary applications
and mobility applications who are moving towards green revolution and less carbon emissions

Without the technology, process knowhow and product development through our Research & Development activities, we
may not be able to manufacture the product we specialize in and it may affect our reputation and future business
operations. Considering the nature of our business activities, our Company shall consistently make all efforts to develop
new product prototype and expand our business operations. Thus in case of failure to meet the specific requirements of
for our product our business operations may have adverse effect. For further details refer “Our Business” page no 97

Trade Receivables, Inventories and other current assets form a substantial part of our current assets and net worth.
Failure to manage our trade receivables and inventories could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability,
cash flow and liquidity.

Our business is working capital intensive and hence, Trade Receivables, Inventories and other current assets form
substantial part of our current assets and net worth. Our, Trade Receivables, Inventories and other current assets as on
March 31, 2024 were X 2,477.82 lakhs, X 3,548.56 lakhs and X 1,856.49 respectively which comprises of 69.59% of Total
Assets and as on March 31, 2023, were X 2,520.70 lakhs, 3,192.72 and % 1,859.84 lakhs respectively which comprises of
68.45% of Total Assets. The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our
inventory, other current assets and trade receivables. We generally procure materials on the basis of management
estimates based on past requirements and future estimates. In case we fail to sell the products, we manufactured based on
the specific requirement of our customers, we may be required to write-down our inventory or create additional vendor
financing, all of which could have an adverse impact on our income and cash flows. To effectively manage our trade
receivables, we must be able to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers and ensure that suitable terms
and conditions are given to them in order to ensure our continued relationship with them. We run a risk to accurately
evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers moreover because they are foreign customers, it may lead to bad debts,
delays in recoveries and / or write-offs which could lead to a liquidity crunch, thereby adversely affecting our business
and results of operations. A liquidity crunch may also result in increased working capital borrowings and, consequently,
higher finance cost which will adversely impact our profitability.

Majority of revenue contribution comes from the Delhi, Maharashtra, Uttar Pradesh and Haryana which contributed
77.49%, 75.69% and 79.93% of our revenue from operations in Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Our operations are susceptible to local and regional factors, such as accidents, political factors, economic and weather
conditions, natural disasters, and demographic and population changes, the outbreak of infectious diseases and other
unforeseen events and circumstances. The table below sets forth our revenues generated from these states/ union territory
and as a percentage of our revenue from operations for the Fiscals indicated:

Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Amount |% Amount [% Amount |%
Delhi 3,505.67 | 31.97% | 2,072.53| 18.59% | 2,988.47 24.64%
Maharashtra 2,764.09 | 25.20% | 1,544.05| 13.85% | 1,052.47 8.68%
Uttar Pradesh 1,827.42 | 16.66% | 2,697.05| 24.19% | 2,826.79 23.31%
Haryana 401.34 3.66% | 2,125.73 | 19.06% | 2,825.53 23.30%
Total 8,498.52| 77.49% | 8,439.36 | 75.69% | 9,693.26 79.93%

Further, we have not entered into any agreement with our customers for long term sales. Any change in governmental
policies or occurrence of natural disasters in any of this states/ union territory may impact our impact on our business,
results of operations and cash flows.
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Our company is significantly dependent on few customers for our revenue in a particular financial year. The loss of
any one or more of such customers may have a material effect on our business operations and profitability.

The percentage of revenue derived from our top five and top ten customers for year ended 2023-24, 2022-23, 2021-22
are given below:

FY23-24 FY22-23 FY21-22
% of % of
Sr.no Particulars % of Revenue Revenue Revenue
Amount from Amount f Amount f
Operation rom rom
Operation Operation
1 | Income fromtop 5 8,271.01 62.48%| 5,064.68 39.39%| 3,310.54 27.24%
Customer
p | Income from top 10 9,762.13 73.75%)| 6,786.22 52.78%| 5,336.71 43.91%
Customers

Our top five and ten customers may vary from period to period depending on the demand and thus the composition and
revenue generated from these customers might change as we continue to add new customers in normal course of business.
Since our business is dependent among few significant customers, we could experience a reduction in our results of
operations, cash flows and liquidity if we lose one or more of these customers or the amount of business we obtain from
them is reduced for any reason.

Further, in the event of loss of one or more set of such customers on whom we are dependent for our business, we cannot
assure you that we may be able to offset such loss of business by identifying a new customer of our products. Further, we
also cannot assure you that the customers which contribute to the major part of our revenue stream will pay us the amounts
due to us on time, or at all. In the event any of our significant customers fail to fulfil their respective obligations, our
business, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely affected. While we believe we have maintained
good and long-term relationships with our customers, there can be no assurance that we will continue to have such long-
term relationship with them. We cannot assure that we shall generate the same quantum of business, or any business at
all, from these customers, and loss of business from one or more of them may adversely affect our revenues and
profitability

Our manufacturing facilities and Registered Office are not owned by us and we have only leasehold rights. In the
event we lose or are unable to renew such leasehold rights, our business, results of operations, financial condition and
cash flows may be adversely affected.

Presently, our company has two manufacturing facilities one located at Noida, Uttar Pradesh and other at Pune,
Maharashtra. Our registered Office and manufacturing facility, located at Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh, India- 201305 is taken on lease for a period of nine years valid up to October 19,
2030. Our Pune manufacturing facility, located at GAT NO.375/1 AND 376, Koregaon Bhima, Taluka Shirur, Pune,
Maharashtra- 41221 is taken on lease for a period of 5 years valid up to January 31, 2027. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to renew our leases on commercially acceptable terms or at all. In the event that we are required to vacate
our current premises, we would be required to make alternative arrangements for our infrastructure and we cannot assure
that the new arrangements will be on commercially acceptable terms. If we are required to relocate our business
operations, we may suffer a disruption in our operations or have to pay increased charges, which could have an adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

In addition to normal remuneration our Key Management Personnel (including our promoters) are interested in our
Company to the extent of their shareholding and dividend entitlement in our Company. Further we have entered in
related party transaction with them.

Some of our Directors, Key Management Personnel and Promoters are interested in our Company to the extent of their
shareholding and dividend entitlement in our Company, in addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement
of expenses. Our Promoter currently holds 99.99% of shareholding of our Company and will hold 72.60% of post issue
shareholding of our Company. We cannot assure you that our directors or our Key Management Personnel would always
exercise their rights as Shareholders to the benefit and best interest of our Company. As a result, our promoters will
continue to exercise significant control over our Company, including being able to control the composition of our board
of directors and determine decisions requiring simple or special majority voting, and our other shareholders may be unable
to affect the outcome of such voting. Our directors may take or block actions with respect to our business, which may
conflict with our best interests or the interests of other minority Shareholders, such as actions with respect to future capital
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raising or acquisitions. We cannot assure you that our directors will always act to resolve any conflicts of interest in our
favor, thereby adversely affecting our business and results of operations and prospects.

We have entered into related party transactions which are at an arm’s length basis from time to time with our Key
Managerial Personnel. A summary statement of the related party transactions is as follows:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars For the period ended For the period ended For the period ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Directors

Loan Taken - - 5.00
Loan Repaid - 3.80 1.20
Managerial Remuneration 92.50 78.02 40.85
Balances at the end

Due to Directors 40.24 3.50 6.49

Our Key Managerial Personnel play key role in our functioning and we heavily rely on their knowledge and experience
in operating our business and therefore, it is critical for our business that they remain associated with us.

Our success also depends upon the continued services of our Key Managerial Personnel and our ability to retain them.
Our performance depends largely on the efforts and abilities of our senior management and other key personnel. The
inputs and experience of our senior management and key managerial personnel are valuable for the development of
business and operations and the strategic decisions taken by our Company. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
retain these employees or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require a long period of time
to hire and train replacement personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our Company. We
may also be required to increase our levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive
in attracting employees that our business requires. The loss of their services could impair our ability to implement our
strategy, and our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Further, our Key Managerial Personnel have also promoted other companies and may continue to do so. If they divert
their attention to the other companies, we may not be able to function as efficiently and profitably as before. We may
have to incur additional costs to replace the services of our promoters or we may not be able to do so at all, which could
adversely affect our business operations and affect our ability to continue to manage and expand our business. Any
inability to attract and retain talented employees or the resignation or loss of key management personnel, may have an
adverse impact on our business, future financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Furthermore, our ability to successfully carry out research and development depends on our ability to attract and retain
skilled persons. The personnel at the helm of our R&D functions are critical for new product launches and creating
differentiated offering for our businesses. Currently, we have an experienced technical and production team, we may not
be able to continuously attract or retain such personnel, or retain them on acceptable terms, given the demand for such
personnel. Competition for qualified personnel with relevant industry expertise in India is intense and the loss of the
services of our key personnel may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our warranty reserves may be insufficient to cover future warranty claims, which could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

We offer warranty to our customers on purchase batteries for e-vehicles with two, three and four wheeler, and traction
application as well as stationary applications such as solar, ESS, and telecommunications, for motors and also on power
train components. Our warranty programs are intended to cover all parts and labour costs to repair defects in material and
workmanship. For more details on our warranties, see “Our Business —Warranty” on page 97. The following table shows
the warranty provision created for the year for the periods indicated:

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars F.Y 2023-24 F.Y 2022-23 F.Y 2021-22

Provision for Warranty 82.68 36.75 12.34

We are subject to warranty claims under warranty agreements. Although we have provision for warranties, we may
receive warranty claims that are more than our provisions and incur significant expenses. During the last three years, our
Company has not faced any warranty claims, but we face claims in future. In addition, if there is an increase in our sales
volumes in line with our business strategy, we could experience an increase in the number of warranty claims
and be required to increase our warranty provisions. These factors in turn could affect our financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.
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14. We have reported negative net cash flows in the past and may do so in the future.

15.

16.

The following table sets forth net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating, investing and financing activities for Fiscals

2024, 2023 and 2022:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net cash flow from

operating activities 677.13 1,502.48 792.85
Net cash flow from

Investing activities (464.05) (1,535.66) (928.28)
I\_Iet _cash _ _f!ow from i i 202.50
financing activities

We have negative cash flows from investing activities for the three financial year 2023-24, 2022-23 and 2021-22, since
the Company has invested in plant and machinery, capital work in progress, intangible assets during this period.

We cannot assure you that our net cash flows will be positive in the future. If our Company is not able to generate
sufficient cash flows, our Company may not be able to generate sufficient amounts of cash flow to finance our projects,
make new capital expenditure, pay dividends, make new investments or fund other liquidity needs which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our failure to keep our technical knowledge confidential could erode our competitive advantage. We possess certain
technical knowledge about our products.

Our Key Managerial Personnel possess technical knowledge and has over the time given us access to their knowledge,
process, design, research and development results. This has been resulted from continuous effort and experience of our
key managerial personnel in this industry. Goodwill of our company in the manufacturing of lithium-ion batteries over
the years has been rewarded with such technical knowledge that we possess which gives us a competitive edge. Some of
our technical knowledge is protected only by secrecy. As a result, we cannot be certain that our technical knowledge will
remain confidential in the long run. Even if all reasonable precautions, whether contractual or otherwise, are taken to
protect our confidential technical knowledge of our products and business, there is still a danger that certain proprietary
knowledge may be leaked, either inadvertently or willfully, at various stages of the production process.

A significant number of our employees have access to confidential design and product information and there can be no
assurance that this information will remain confidential. Moreover, certain of our employees may leave us and join our
various competitors. Although we may seek to enforce non-disclosure agreements in respect of research and development
and certain other key employees, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to successfully enforce such agreements. In
the event that the confidential technical information in respect of our products or business becomes available to third
parties or to the general public, any competitive advantage that we may have over other companies in this sector could
be harmed. If a competitor is able to reproduce or otherwise capitalize on our knowledge, it may be difficult, expensive
or impossible for us to obtain necessary legal protection. Consequently, any leakage of confidential technical information
could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and future prospects.

We are dependent on a few suppliers for supply of raw materials and any major disruption to the timely and adequate
supplies of our raw materials could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our Company is dependent on a few suppliers for procuring the raw materials for manufacturing of its products. For the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, our top ten suppliers accounted for
approximately 78.92%, 88.09% and 96.56% of our total purchases. We believe that the quality of raw materials, the
transparent pricing, location advantage, etc. are also some of the major reasons our Company prefers to procure these raw
materials from these suppliers. Further, we have entered into agreement with few suppliers which are subject to renewal
each year. Any failure of the supplier to deliver the raw materials in the necessary quantities or to adhere to delivery
schedules or specified quality standards and technical specifications would adversely affect our business operations and
our ability to deliver orders on time and at the desired level of quality. As a result, we may lose customers and incur
liabilities for failure to execute orders, which could have a material adverse effect on our business financial condition and
results of operations.
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Our Company has in the past experienced a major fire at our Manufacturing Facility cum Registered Office which
resulted in major losses for our Company. Hence our past performance may not be comparable with our future
performance.

On June 1, 2022, a major fire broke out at the company’s factory situated Plot No.18, Sector 140, Phase-I1, Noida resulting
in loss of assets. Except for some amount of inventory, fixed assets and tooling, all other assets were lost in the fire. A
Surveyor was appointed to assess the losses incurred and subsequently the insurance claim was filed with the insurance
company for the claim and was accepted by them on December 18, 2023. However the insurance policy covered plant
and machinery and loss of stock, but did not cover loss of business due to disturbance in operations nor reduced scale of
operations. Hence the losses reported by the Company during the fiscal years 2022-23 as well as trends in our financials
cannot be used as a comparison for our future operations or results. Although we have taken sufficient precautions,
insurances and measures to ensure that such an event does not occur in the future we cannot guarantee that such an event
will not happen in the future and that we would not be affected in a similar manner as earlier.

Our Company is dependent on the continuing operation of our manufacturing facilities.

Any significant interruption in manufacturing at our facilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition. Our Company has two manufacturing facility, one at Pune where the lithium-ion
batteries for two-wheeler is manufactured and other at Noida where other than batteries for two-wheeler all of our
manufacturing and business takes place, which are subject to the normal risks of industrial production, including
equipment breakdowns, labor shortages, natural disasters, industrial accidents, power interruptions etc. In case of any
disruption at such facilities, it may adversely affect the manufacturing cycle, and may lead to time over-run in the
execution of the project and timely delivery of our product. Our manufacturing facilities require a significant amount and
continuous supply of electricity and any shortage or non-availability of electricity may adversely affect our operations.

The restated financial statements have been provided by peer reviewed chartered accountants who is not statutory
auditor of our Company.

The Restated Financial Statements of our Company has been provided by a peer reviewed chartered accountant who is
not statutory auditor of our Company. Our statutory auditor does not hold a valid peer reviewed certificate and hence the
same has been provided by the different chartered accountant.

Association of our promoter and director with a previously Struck-off Company may adversely impact our Company
in the event of future litigation or penalties.

Our Company's Promoter and Director, Mr. Rajiv Seth, was previously associated with Cosmique Poly Products Pvt. Ltd.
(CPPPL), which was struck off by the Registrar of Companies (RoC) before 2006. However, the exact date of the strike-
off and the reasons for it are not available on the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) portal. Due to technical issues on
the MCA portal, CPPPL still appears in Mr. Rajiv Seth's directorship record. A certificate issued by Practicing Company
Secretary Himanshu Gupta on July 31, 2024, confirms that Mr. Seth's Director Identification Number (DIN) status is
active and there are no pending litigations or actions against him related to CPPPL. However, in the event that any future
litigation or penalties arise related to CPPPL, Mr. Rajiv Seth may be held liable, which could have an adverse impact on
our Company's business and financial performance.

We have offered Equity Shares during the last one year at a price below the Offer Price.

Our Company had issued Bonus shares of 42,56,250 equity shares on June 07, 2024 in ratio of 125:100 and of 22,70,000
equity shares on November 01, 2023 in ratio of 2:1 in the last 12 months at price which is lower than the Offer Price. The
Equity Shares allotted to shareholders pursuant to this Offer may be priced significantly higher due to various reasons
including better performance by the Company, better economic conditions and passage of time. For further details, see
“Capital Structure” on page 59 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The market for energy sector products such as lithium-ion batteries and motors and powertrain components are
growing and getting competitive.

We are facing competition in the lithium-ion batteries from various domestic and multinational companies in India. We
expect competition could increase with new entrants coming into the energy industry, who may have more flexibility in
responding to changing business and economic conditions, and existing players consolidating their positions. Further,
expansion of our brand in new markets will require substantial advertising and promotional expenditures and some of
our competitors may have access to significantly greater resources, including the ability to spend more on advertising
and marketing and hence the ability to compete more effectively. Competitors may, whether through consolidation or
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growth, present more credible integrated or lower cost solutions than we do, which may have a negative effect on our
business. We cannot assure you, that we can continue to compete effectively with our competitors. Our failure to compete
effectively, including any delay in responding to changes in the industry and market, together with increased spending on
advertising by competitors, may affect the competitiveness of our products, which may affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our Promoters will continue to hold a significant equity stake in our Company after the Offer and their interests may
differ from those of the other shareholders.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Corporate Promoter, CLN Energy Pte Ltd, holds approximately
99.99% of the paid-up equity share capital of our Company. For further information on their shareholding pre and post-
Offer, see “Capital Structure” on page 59. After the completion of the Offer, our Corporate Promoter will continue to
collectively hold majority of the shareholding in our Company and will continue to exercise significant influence over
our business policies and affairs and all matters requiring Shareholders’ approval, including the composition of our Board,
the adoption of amendments to our constitutional documents, the approval of mergers, strategic acquisitions or joint
ventures or the sales of substantially all of our assets, and the policies for dividends, lending, investments and capital
expenditure or any other matter requiring special resolution. This concentration of ownership also may delay, defer or
even prevent a change in control of our Company and may make some transactions more difficult or impossible without
the support of these stockholders. The interests of the Promoters as our controlling shareholders could conflict with our
interests or the interests of our other shareholders. We cannot assure you that the Promoters will act to resolve any
conflicts of interest in our favor and any such conflict may adversely affect our ability to execute our business strategy or
to operate our business. For further information in relation to the interests of our Promoters in our Company, please see
“Our Management” and “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” on pages 134 and 148 respectively.

Industrial accidents at our manufacturing facility may adversely affect our operation.

Our manufacturing facility are subject to operating risk resulting in fatal accidents which can cause injury to the labour
and employees of the company and this could also cause damage to the property and plant and machinery situated at the
factory which could have an adverse effect on our operations. Our Company has suffered damage due to fire accident at
the manufacturing facility at Noida during the year 2022-23. Our Company has taken various safety measures for fire
accidents. We have installed hydrant at our facility, fire and smoke alarms and has deployed special fire suppression
systems for lithium-ion batteries. Our Company schedules fire and safety training for our employees and also conducts
mock testing of same from time to time to ensure we are well prepared for any unfortunate events. Our company also has
gets fire and safety audit from third party and has also obtained NOC from fire department Though, we have taken
adequate safety measures in order to avoid such mishaps, but in case of any such happening of the event out of our control,
we cannot assure you whether it will be sufficient or not. Further occurrence of such accidents could impact our production
schedules, costs, revenue and ability to meet customer demand.

Failure in supply of electricity or power can lead to significant disruption in manufacturing process and can affect
our operations.

We consume substantial power and fuel at our manufacturing facilities. Electricity expenses represent a significant portion
of the direct cost associated with cost of material consumed. For the financial year 2023-24, 2022-23 and 2021-22,
electricity cost was Rs. 92.72 lakhs, Rs. 79.68 lakhs, and Rs. 43.69 lakhs constituting 0.70%, 0.62% and 0.36%
respectively, of our total revenue from operations. If electricity cost rises or supply arrangements were disrupted, our
profitability could decline. We source most of our electricity requirements for our manufacturing facility at Noida from
the Pashchimanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited and at Pune from Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd.
The cost of electricity from state electricity boards could be significantly higher, thereby adversely affecting our cost of
production and profitability. Further, if for any reason such electricity is not available, we may need to temporary shut
down our plants until an adequate supply of electricity is restored which will lead to the loss of production in progress
and may affect our results of operations

We face foreign exchange risks, primarily in our import and procurement operations that could adversely affect our
results of operations.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange risk as we have imported our raw materials from foreign countries, in
particular China and also generate service income from foreign parties. We deal with supplier and customer in foreign
currency and are affected with its fluctuation. We have even recorded foreign fluctuation gain and losses in our financial
statement.
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Fluctuation in currency exchange rates influences our results of operations. As and when outflows are incurred, the
required foreign exchange is bought from market at the then prevailing exchange rate. In future we may continue to incur
capital expenditures, including raw materials, equipment and machinery, denominated in foreign currencies. The
exchange rates between Rupee and USD and between Rupee and EUR have changed substantially in recent years and
may continue to fluctuate significantly in the future. Accordingly, any decline in the value of the Rupee against the U.S.
Dollar and Euro or any other foreign currency would increase the Rupee cost of such raw materials.

While we have hedged our purchase costs denominated in U.S Dollars against foreign currency fluctuations, however,
we cannot assure you that we will not incur potential losses if currencies fluctuate significantly.

Although we closely follow our exposure to foreign currencies in an attempt to reduce the risks of currency fluctuations,
these activities are not always sufficient to protect us against incurring potential losses if currencies fluctuate significantly.
Any such losses on account of foreign exchange fluctuations may affect our results of operations.

Restrictions on the import of our materials and other regulations could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We design and manufacture lithium-ion batteries for mobility and stationary applications. Our major raw materials are
imported, therefore limitation or withdrawal, if any (in the case, for example, of embargoes or geopolitical conflicts), of
the authorization to import the products might have a negative impact on our operations and financial situation. Further,
failure to comply with the regulations and requirements could result in contract modifications or termination and the
imposition of penalties, fines and withdrawal of authorizations, which could negatively affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Authorizations can be revoked which may change in response to international conflicts
or other political or geopolitical factors. Such factors could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

The deployment of the Net Proceeds from the Fresh Issue are based on management estimates and have not been
independently appraised by any bank or financial institution and is not subject to any monitoring by any independent
agency and our Company’s management will have flexibility in utilizing the Net Proceeds from the Fresh Issue.

The deployment of the funds towards the objects of the Issue is entirely at the discretion of the Board and our Board will
monitor the utilization of Net Proceeds. Also, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we are not
required to appoint a monitoring agency since the Fresh Issue size is not in excess of ¥ 100 crores. The management of
our Company will have discretion to use the Net Proceeds from the Issue, and investors will be relying on the judgment
of our Company’s management regarding the application of the Net Proceeds from the Issue.

Given the dynamic nature of our business, we may have to revise our business plan from time to time and consequently
our funding requirements and deployment on account of variety of factors such as our financial condition, business and
strategy, including external factors such as market conditions, competitive environment, costs of commodities and
interest/ exchange rate fluctuations which may not be within the control of our management. Any inability on our part to
effectively utilize the Issue proceeds could adversely affect our operational and financial performance.

Further, pursuant to Section 27 of the Companies Act 2013, any variation in the objects would require a special resolution
of the Shareholders and would be required to provide an exit opportunity to the shareholders who do not agree with our
proposal to change the Objects of the Issue, at a price and manner as specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
Additionally, the requirement on Promoters or controlling shareholders to provide an exit opportunity to such dissenting
shareholders may deter the Promoters or controlling shareholders from agreeing to the variation of the proposed utilization
of our Net Proceeds, even if such variation is in our interest. Further, we cannot assure you that our Promoters or the
controlling shareholders will have adequate resources at their disposal at all times to enable them to provide an exit
opportunity at the price which may be prescribed by SEBI. Accordingly, prospective investors in the Issue will need to
rely upon our management’s judgment with respect to the use of Net Proceeds.

Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient or may not adequately protect us against any or all hazards, which may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business and assets could suffer damage from fire, natural calamities and the goods transported to our customers by
our supplier could suffer from damage, misappropriation or other causes, resulting in losses, which may not be covered /
fully compensated by insurance. Our Company has suffered damage due to fire accident at the manufacturing facility at
Noida during the year 2022-23. The damage in the accident is 32,457.32 lacs which includes carrying value of inventories
0f%2,388.16 lacs (including expenses) and carrying value of property, plant and equipment of *69.16 lacs. Our Company
has adequately covered assets by a fire policy and we have filed insurance claim amounting to Rs. 1820.72 Lacs for the
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loss incurred. The insurance receivable amounting to Rs. 1,781.71 has been accepted and approved by the insurance
company.

Further, a legal proceedings or other actions may be initiated against us or any of our employees for acts and conduct of
our employees which may occur due to various reasons including misconduct with customers. In the event of personal
injuries, damage or other accidents suffered by our employees or our customers or other people, we could face claims
alleging that we were negligent, provided inadequate supervision or be otherwise liable for the injuries. Our principal
types of insurance coverage include Plant and Machinery, Building and Stock Insurance. While we believe that the
insurance coverage which we maintain would be reasonably adequate to cover the normal risks associated with the
operation of our businesses, we cannot assure you that any claim under the insurance policies maintained by us will be
honored fully, in part or on time, or that we have taken out sufficient insurance to cover all our losses. In addition, our
insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our insurance coverage in the normal course
of our business, but we cannot assure you that such renewals will be granted in a timely manner, at acceptable cost or at
all. To the extent that we suffer loss or damage, or successful assertion of one or more large claims against us for events
for which we are not insured, or for which we did not obtain or maintain insurance, or which is not covered by insurance
which exceeds our insurance coverage or where our insurance claims are rejected, the loss would have to be borne by us
and our results of operations, financial performance and cash flows could be adversely affected. For further details on our
insurance arrangements, see “Insurance — Our Business” on page no 97 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company, Promoters and Directors are parties to certain legal proceedings. Any adverse decision in such
proceedings may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

There can be no assurance that there will be no future litigations and those will be decided in favour of our Promoter or
Director and consequently it may divert the attention of our management and Promoter and waste our corporate resources
and our Director and Promoter may incur significant expenses in such proceedings. If such claims are determined against
our Director and Promoter, there could be a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition and
results of operations, which could adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. For the details of the cases filed
by and against our Company, our Promoters and Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and
Material Developments” on Page No. 200 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Any disruption to the steady and regular supply of workforce for our operations, including due to strikes, work
stoppages or increased wage demands by our workforce or any other kind of disputes with our workforce or our
inability to control the composition and cost of our workforce could adversely affect our business, cash flows and
results of operations.

Our activities are labour intensive, require our management to undertake significant labour interface, and expose us to
the risk of industrial action. As on March 31, 2024, we had 123 permanent employees. We may be subject to industrial
unrest, slowdowns, and increased wage costs, which may adversely affect our business, financial conditions, cash flows
and results of operations. While we consider our relationship with our employees to be good and there has been no such
instance in the three Fiscals of any disruptions in work due to disputes or other problems with our work force, we could
experience disruptions in work due to disputes or other problems with our work force in future, which may adversely
affect our ability to perform our business operations.

As of March 31, 2024, we have 133 off-roll employees. Although we do not engage these laborers directly, it is possible
under Indian law that we may be held responsible for wage payments to laborers engaged by contractors should the
contractors default on wage payments. Any requirement to fund such payments may adversely affect our business,
financial conditions, cash flows and results of operations. Furthermore, pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Labour
(Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, we may be directed to absorb some of these contract laborers as our employees.
Any such order from a court or any other regulatory authority may adversely affect our business, cash flows and results
of operations.

Further, work stoppages due to strikes or other events could result in slowdowns or closures of our operations which
could have an adverse effect on our business, cash flows and results of operations. While our labours are not unionized
and there has been no instance in the last three Fiscals where we experienced work stoppages due to strikes or labour
unrest that resulted in closure of our operations, there is no assurance that we may not experience any such events in the
future.
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We have applied for few trademarks which are pending registration. A delay in, or failure to obtain, registration may
result in our inability to adequately defend intellectual property rights.

Any infringement of our logo or failure to protect our trademarks may adversely affect our business. Any kind of negative
publicity or misuse of our brand name and our logo could hamper our brand building efforts and our future growth strategy
could be adversely affected. Our ability to protect our intellectual properties, namely our trademark / logo is restricted
until we receive registered trademark from the appropriate authority. Few applications are still pending with the Trade
Marks Registry, Mumbai. Further, the same may involve costly litigations and penal provisions if the case may be. We
believe that our future growth and competitiveness would depend on our ability to establish and strengthen our brand.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to make a lasting brand image with our clients and other people in the absence
of a logo. Although, we believe that that our present systems are adequate to protect our confidential information and
intellectual property, there can be no assurance that our intellectual property data, trade secrets or proprietary technology
will not be copied, infringed or obtained by third parties. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not
be adequate and may lead to erosion of our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. This may lead
to litigations and any such litigations could be time consuming and costly and their outcome cannot be guaranteed. Our
Company may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our
intellectual property, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. For further
details pertaining to our intellectual property, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page no. 97
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our cost of production is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials required for the manufacture as well
as its availability.

Our company is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of various raw materials like cells, BMS, connector as well as its
availability and all the above-mentioned raw materials are bought by our Company from suppliers on an order to order
basis. The prices of the various raw materials used in our manufacturing process are subject to fluctuations in the prices
due to changes in core prices of minerals as a natural resource etc. Also, we procure some of the raw materials from
international markets and the prices of these raw materials may fluctuate based on exchange rate, customs & duties levied
on imports or changes in government policies with respect to these materials or the countries supplying the same. We
may be unable to make adequate provisions for the price fluctuations and, consequently, any adverse fluctuations that we
have not factored in or provided for may adversely affect the consolidated results of our operations and our consolidated
financial conditions. We also face the risks associated with compensating for or passing on such increase in our cost of
production on account of such fluctuations in prices to our customers. These factors could adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on third party transportation providers for the delivery of our products to our customers.

We rely substantially on third party transportation providers for the supply of our products to our customers.
Transportation strikes / non-availability of Transportation could have an adverse effect on our ability to deliver the same
to our customers. Increase in transportation costs or unavailability of transportation services for our products, as well the
extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. In addition, transportation costs in India have been steadily increasing over the past several
years. While usually the end consumer bears the freight cost, we may not always be able to pass on these costs to our
customers. In addition, India’s physical infrastructure is less developed than that of many developed nations, and problems
with its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other public facility could disrupt
our normal business activity, including delivery of our products to customers by third-party transportation providers. Any
deterioration of India’s physical infrastructure would harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and
supplies, and add costs to doing business in India. These problems could interrupt our business operations, which could
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to manage our growth effectively or raise additional capital, our business, future financial
performance and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

The success of our business will depend greatly on our ability to effectively implement our business and growth strategy.
As part of our growth strategy, we aim to, among other things. For details, see “Our Business — Our Business Strategy”
on page 97. This could place significant demands on our operational, credit, financial and other internal risk controls. In
pursuing our growth strategy, we will require additional capital investments and cash outlays, which may have a material
impact on our cash flows and results of operations
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Our ability to manage our growth effectively requires us to forecast accurately our sales, growth and manufacturing
capacity and to expand funds to improve our operational, financial and management controls, reporting systems and
procedures. Moreover, even if we secure the required funding, there is no assurance that we will be able to successfully
implement our strategies. We may also face difficulties in effectively implementing new technologies required in
designing, developing and manufacturing new products and solutions and may not be able to recover our investments.
Many of our contracts contain performance obligations that require innovative design capabilities are technologically
complex or involve developmental costs. An inability to implement our future business plan, manage our growth
effectively or failure to secure the required funding on favorable terms or at all could have a material and adverse effect
on our business, future financial performance and results of operations.

The outbreak of COVID-19 or outbreak of any other severe communicable disease could have a potential impact on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

An outbreak of a novel strain of corona virus (COVID-19) was recognized by the World Health Organization as a public
health emergency of international concern on January 30, 2020, and as a pandemic on March 11, 2020. The outbreak of
COVID-19 has significantly and adversely impacted and will likely continue to impact economic activity and has
contributed to significant volatility in global financial markets and led to operational challenges. It is possible that the
outbreak of COVID-19 will cause a prolonged global economic crisis, stagnation, recession or depression, despite
monetary and fiscal interventions by governments and central banks globally. In particular, a number of governments and
organizations have revised GDP growth forecasts for 2021 downwards in response to the economic slowdown caused by
the spread of COVID-19, and it is possible that the COVID-19 pandemic will cause a prolonged global economic crisis
or recession. In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, the governments of many countries, including India have taken
preventive or protective actions, such as issuing advisories and imposing country or state wide lockdowns, including
restrictions on travel and temporary closure of business operations and increased remote working protocols, which have
significantly slowed down economic activity.

On March 14, 2020, India declared COVID-19 as a “notified disaster” and imposed a nationwide lockdown announced
on March 24, 2020. While there have been progressive relaxations and calibrated easing of lockdown measures by the
Government, we cannot predict if stricter lockdowns will not be re-introduced or extended in the future. On account of
the government-imposed lockdown in India, operations at our manufacturing facility was temporarily shut down. The
COVID-19 pandemic and resulting government actions may affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition, in the future, in a number of ways such as requiring a complete or partial closure of our operations. The
pandemic outbreak has caused an economic downturn on a global scale, including closures of many businesses and
reduced consumer spending, as well as significant market disruption and volatility. The demand for our products is
dependent on and directly affected by factors affecting industries where our products are supplied. We continue to closely
monitor the impact that COVID-19 may have on our business and results of operations.

It is difficult for us to predict the impact that COVID-19 will have on us, our customers or suppliers in the future. Further,
due to the rising number of infected cases of COVID-19 in the country, there is no certainty if additional restrictions will
be put back in place or if another lockdown would be re-imposed to control the spread of the pandemic. We cannot assure
you that we may not face any difficulty in our operations due to such restrictions and such prolonged instances of
lockdown may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company may not be able to bring growth or successfully implement our business plan which could have an effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The success of our business will depend greatly on our ability to effectively implement our business and growth strategy.
Our growth strategy involves focusing on Optimal Utilization of Resources and to develop relationshipswith customer and
suppliers. For further details, see the section titled “Our Business — Our Strategies” on page no. 97 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus. Our success in implementing our growth strategies may be affected by:

e Our ability to identify new markets to expand;

e Our ability to maintain the quality of our products;

e Changes in the Indian regulatory environment field;

If our Company is not able to execute our strategy on time and within our estimated budget, any of these factors could
impact our results of operations. Further, we expect our growth strategy to place significant demands on our management,
financial and other resources and require us to continue developing and improving our operational, financial and other
internal controls. Our inability to manage our business and implement our growth strategy could have an effect on our
business, financial condition and profitability.
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Employee misconduct, errors or fraud could expose us to business risks or losses that could adversely affect our
business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Employee misconduct, errors or frauds could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions,
penalties and serious harm to our reputation. Such employee misconduct includes breach in security requirements,
misappropriation of funds, hiding unauthorized activities, failure to observe our operational standards and processes, and
improper use of confidential information. It is not always possible to detect or deter such misconduct, and the precautions
we take to prevent and detect such misconduct may not be effective. In addition, losses caused on account of employee
misconduct or misappropriation of petty cash expenses and advances may not be recoverable, which we may result in
write-off of such amounts and thereby adversely affecting our results of operations. Our employees may also commit
errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions in which case,
our reputation, business prospects, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We may also be unable to obtain future financing to fund our operations, expected capital expenditure and working
capital requirements on favorable terms, or at all.

Our business requires funding for capital expenditure and working capital requirements which are currently met by
internal accruals. The actual amount and timing of future capital expenditure may depend on several factors, among
others, new opportunities, availability of land, regulatory approvals, regulatory changes, economic conditions,
technological changes and market developments in our industry. Our sources of additional funding in future, if required,
to meet our capital expenditure may include the incurrence of debt or the issue of equity or debt securities or a combination
of both. If we decide to raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest and debt repayment obligations
will increase, and could have a significant effect on our profitability and cash flows and we may be subject to additional
covenants, which could limit our ability to access cash flows from operations.

In case there is insufficient cash flow to meet our working capital requirement or we are unable to arrange the same from
other sources or there is delay in disbursement of arranged funds, or there is any increase in interest rate on our
borrowings, it may adversely affect our operations and profitability. These factors may result in an increased amount of
short-term borrowings. Continuous increase of our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. Further our ability to arrange for additional funds on acceptable terms is
subject to a variety of uncertainties, including future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows; economic,
political conditions and market scenario for our products; costs of financing, liquidity and overall condition of financial
and capital markets in India; issuance of necessary business/government licenses, approvals and other risks associated
with our businesses; and limitations on our ability to raise capital in capital markets and conditions of the Indian and
other capital markets in which we may seek to raise funds. Any such inability to raise sufficient funds could have a
material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Any delay or defaults in receipt of payments or dues from our customers could result in a reduction of our profits.

We regularly commit resources prior to receiving payments from our customer. We may be subject to working capital
shortages due to delays or defaults in receipt of payments or dues from such customers. If our customers default in their
payments or if any order/ assignment in which we have invested significant resources is delayed, cancelled or curtailed,
it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The requirements of being a public listed company may strain our resources and impose additional requirements.

With the increased scrutiny of the affairs of a public listed company by shareholders, regulators and the public at large,
we will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other expenses that we did not incur in the past. We
will also be subject to the provisions of the listing agreements signed with the Stock Exchange(s) which require us to file
unaudited financial results on a half yearly basis. In order to meet our financial control and disclosure obligations,
significant resources and management supervision will be required. As a result, management’s attention may be diverted
from other business concerns, which could have an adverse effect on our business and operations. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to satisfy our reporting obligations and/or readily determine and report any changes to our
results of operations in a timely manner as other listed companies. In addition, we might have to increase the strength of
our management team and hire additional legal and accounting staff with appropriate public company experience and
accounting knowledge and we cannot assure that we will be able to do so in a timely manner. This could have an adverse
effect on our profit and reputation.
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Any future issuance of Equity Shares may dilute your shareholding and sale of Equity Shares by the Promoter may
adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

We may be required to finance our growth, whether organic or inorganic, through future equity offerings. Any future
equity issuances by us, including a primary offering or through exercise of employee stock options, may lead to the
dilution of investors’ shareholdings in our Company. Any future equity issuances by us (including under an employee
stock option scheme) or disposal of our Equity Shares by the Promoters or any of our other principal shareholders or
any other change in our shareholding structure to comply with minimum public shareholding norms applicable to
listed companies in India or any public perception regarding such issuance or sales may adversely affect the trading price
of the Equity Shares, which may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in raising capital through offering
of our Equity Shares or incurring additional debt. There can be no assurance that we will not issue further Equity Shares
or that our existing shareholders including our Promoters will not dispose of further Equity Shares after the completion
of the Offer (subject to compliance with the lock-in provisions under the SEBI ICDR Regulations) or pledge or encumber
their Equity Shares. Any future issuances could also dilute the value of shareholder’s investment in the Equity Shares and
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Such securities may also be issued at prices below the Offer Price.
We may also issue convertible debt securities to finance our future growth or fund our business activities. In addition,
any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur may also affect the market price of our Equity Shares.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working
capital requirements, capital expenditures and restrictive covenants in our financing arrangements.

Our future ability to pay dividends will depend on the earnings, financial condition and capital requirements of our
Company. Dividends distributed by us will attract dividend distribution tax at rates applicable from time to time. We
cannot assure you that we will generate sufficient income to cover our operating expenses and pay dividends to our
shareholders, or at all. Our business is working capital intensive and we may plan to invest additional working capital
expenditures to effect purchase of inventory or pay creditors. Our ability to pay dividends could also be restricted under
certain financing arrangements that we may enter into. WWe may be unable to pay dividends in the near or medium term,
and our future dividend policy will depend on our capital requirements and financing arrangements for the products
proposed to purchased, financial condition and results of operations.

There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue will be listed on the SME Platform of BSE
in a timely manner, or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the
Issue will not be granted until after the Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will
require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay
in listing the Equity Shares on the SME Platform of BSE. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict
your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares.

Pursuant to listing of the Equity Shares, we may be subject to pre-emptive surveillance measures like Additional
Surveillance Measure (“ASM”) and Graded Surveillance Measures (“GSM”) by the Stock Exchanges in order to
enhance market integrity and safeguard the interest of investors.

SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, in the past, have introduced various pre-emptive surveillance measures with respect to
the shares of listed companies in India (the “Listed Securities”) in order to enhance market integrity, safeguard the
interests of investors and potential market abuses. In addition to various surveillance measures already implemented, and
in order to further safeguard the interest of investors, the SEBI and the Stock Exchanges have introduced additional
surveillance measures (“ASM”) and graded surveillance measures (“GSM”).

ASM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities with surveillance concerns based on certain objective
parameters such as share price, price-to-earnings ratio, percentage of delivery, client concentration, variation in volume
of shares and volatility of shares, among other things. GSM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities
where their price quoted on the Stock Exchanges is not commensurate with, among other things, the financial performance
and financial condition measures such as earnings, book value, fixed assets, net-worth, other measures such as price-to-
earnings multiple and market capitalization and overall financial position of the concerned listed company, the Listed
Securities of which are subject to GSM.

Upon listing, the trading of our Equity Shares would be subject to differing market conditions as well as other factors
which may result in high volatility in price, low trading volumes, and a large concentration of client accounts as a
percentage of combined trading volume of our Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the abovementioned
factors or other circumstances may trigger any of the parameters prescribed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges for placing
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our securities under the GSM and/or ASM framework or any other surveillance measures, which could result in significant
restrictions on trading of our Equity Shares being imposed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges. These restrictions may
include requiring higher margin requirements, requirement of settlement on a trade for trade basis without netting off,
limiting trading frequency, reduction of applicable price band, requirement of settlement on gross basis or freezing of
price on upper side of trading, as well as mentioning of our Equity Shares on the surveillance dashboards of the Stock
Exchanges. The imposition of these restrictions and curbs on trading may have an adverse effect on market price, trading
and liquidity of our Equity Shares and on the reputation and conditions of our Company. Any such instance may result
in a loss of our reputation and diversion of our management’s attention and may also decrease the market price of our
Equity Shares which could cause you to lose some or all of your investment.

Non-compliance with and changes in, safety, health and environmental laws and other applicable regulations, might
adversely affect Our Company’s results of operations and its financial condition.

We are subject to Indian laws and government regulations, including laws in relation to safety, health and environmental
protection. These safety, health and environmental protection laws and regulations inter alia impose controls on air and
water discharge, noise levels, storage handling, employee exposure to hazardous substances and other aspects of our
Company’s operations and products. In addition, our products, including the process of manufacture, storage and
distribution of such products, are subject to numerous laws and regulations in relation to quality, safety and health.

For further details, please see “Key Industry Regulation and Policies” on page no. 121 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus. Failure to comply with any existing or future regulations applicable to us might result in levy of fines,
commencement of judicial proceedings and/or third party claims, and might adversely affect our results of operations and
financials.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of corporate and tax
laws, may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such changes, including
the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects,
to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy.

Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and
negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect performance.
These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, inflation,
deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer
debt levels, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing
volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude, which
may negatively affect our stock prices.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a proportional
rate thereby reducing our margins.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has
experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and
increased costs to our business, including increased costs of wages and other expenses relevant to our business. Further,
arise in inflation in other countries, such as in the United States of America or United Kingdom, may lead to an increase
in the interest rates in India and depreciation in the value of the Rupee which in turn make the components imported by
our Company costlier. High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or
control our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to adequately
pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In
particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase the price of our products to pass the increase in costs on
to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely
affected.
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System failures or inadequacy and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our business.

Our business is increasingly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, a large number of transactions. Our
financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled as a result of
events that are wholly or partially beyond our control, including a disruption of electrical or communication services. We
may experience difficulties in upgrading, developing and expanding our systems quickly enough to accommodate our
growing customer base and range of services our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to
unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data integrity and
security. Any failure to effectively maintain or improve or upgrade our systems in a timely manner could materially and
adversely affect our competitiveness, financial position and results of operations. Moreover, if any of these systems do
not operate properly or are disabled or if there are other shortcomings or failures in our internal processes or systems, it
could affect our operations or result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to
our reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the infrastructure
that supports our businesses and the localities in which we are located.

Natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our business.

Natural disasters (such as cyclones, flooding, and/or earthquakes), epidemics, pandemics and man-made disasters,
including acts of war, terrorist attacks, and other events, many of which are beyond our control, may lead to economic
instability, including in India or globally, which may in turn adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results
of operations. Our operations may be adversely affected by natural disasters, and/or severe weather, which can result in
damage to our property generally reduce our productivity and may require us to evacuate personnel and suspend
operations. Any terrorist attacks or civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic, and political events in India
could have a negative effect on us. Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian
companies involves a higher degree of risk and could havean adverse effect on our business and the price of the Equity
Shares. A number of countries in Asia, including India, as well as countries in other parts of the world, are susceptible to
contagious diseases and, for example, have had confirmed cases of diseases such as the highly pathogenic H7N9, H5N1,
and H1N1 strains of influenza in birds and swine and more recently, the SARS-CoV-2 virus and the monkeypox virus.
Another outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic or future outbreaks of SARS-CoV-2 virus or a similar contagious disease
could adversely affect the global economy and economic activity in the region. As a result, any present or future outbreak
of a contagious disease could have an adverse effect on our business and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

With time we might be liable to other labor laws which were not applicable before leading to increase cost and time to
be invested in its compliance.

Employees form the integral part of the operation of our business. Any labor disputes or unrests could lead to lost
production, increased costs or delays which could lead to penalties. We are subject to a number of stringent labor
legislation that protects the interests of workers and defines our duties and obligations towards them in the capacity of
principal employers, including legislations that sets forth detailed procedures for employee removal and dispute resolution
and impose financial obligations on us. We are also subject to state and local laws and regulations. If labor laws become
more stringent or are more strictly enforced, it may become difficult for us to maintain flexible human resource policies,
discharge employees or downsize, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. Any organizational changes, including changes in salaries and wages and other
employee benefits that are, or are perceived to be negative, could result in an increased attrition rate. We cannot assure
you that there may not be incidences of labor unrest and absenteeism from work by some of our employees. Labour
shortages could increase the cost of labor and hinder our productivity and ability to adhere to our delivery schedules for
our projects, which would materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects.

Our Company is subject to risk arising from changes in interest rates and banking policies.

Increased interest rates will have a bearing on profitability and credit controls will have an effect on our liquidity and will
have serious effects on adequate working capital requirements. We are dependent on various banks for arranging of our
working capital requirement etc. Accordingly, any change in the existing banking policies or increase in interest rates
may have an adverse impact on profitability of our company.

If inflation were to rise in India, we might not be able to increase the prices of our services at a proportional rate in
order to pass costs on to our customers and our profits might decline.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has
experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and
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increased costs to our business, including increased costs of transportation, wages, raw materials and other expenses
relevant to our business. High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or
control our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to
our customers, whether entirely or in part, and may adversely affect our business, cash flows and financial condition. In
particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase the amount of commission to pass the increase in costs on
to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely
affected. Further, the Government of India has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and
it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not
worsen in the future.

We may, from time to time, look for opportunities to enter strategic alliances, acquire businesses or enter into joint
venture arrangements. Any failure to manage the integration of the businesses or facilities post such acquisition or
joint venture may cause our profitability to suffer.

We may, from time to time, look for opportunities to acquire businesses or enter into strategic partnerships or alliances.
Such acquisitions may not contribute to our profitability, and we may be required to incur or assume debt or additional
expenses beyond our forecasts or assume contingent liabilities, as part of any acquisition. Further, the acquisitions may
give rise to unforeseen contingent risks relating to these businesses that may only become apparent after the merger or
the acquisition is finalized. We may also face difficulty in assimilating and retaining the personnel, operations and assets
of the acquired company. Further, we may not be able to accurately identify or forge an alliance with appropriate
companies in line with our growth strategy. In the event that the alliance does not perform as estimated, or the inability
on the part of our joint venture partner to meet the customer requirements may lead to a failure of such an arrangement
which may adversely affect our business.

A decline in economic growth or political instability nationally or internationally or changes in the Government in
India could adversely affect our business.

Our performance and the growth of our business are necessarily dependent on the health and performance of the overall
Indian economy. In the recent past, Indian economy has been affected by global economic uncertainties and liquidity
crisis, domestic policy and political environment, volatility in interest rates, currency exchange rates, commodity and
electricity prices, adverse conditions affecting agriculture, rising inflation rates and various other factors. Risk
management initiatives by banks and lenders in such circumstances could affect the availability of funds in the future or
the withdrawal of our existing credit facilities. The Indian economy is undergoing many changes and it is difficult to
predict the impact of certain fundamental economic changes on our business. Conditions outside India, such as a
slowdown or recession in the economic growth of other major countries, especially the United States, have an impact on
the growth of the Indian economy. Additionally, an increase in trade deficit, a downgrading in India’s sovereign debt
rating or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves could negatively affect interest rates and liquidity, which could
adversely affect the Indian economy and our business. Any downturn in the macroeconomic environment in India could
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operation and the trading price of our Equity Shares.
Volatility, negativity, or uncertain economic conditions could undermine the business confidence and could have a
significant impact on our results of operations. Changing demand patterns from economic volatility and uncertainty could
have a significant negative impact on our results of operations.

Further, our performance and the market price and liquidity of the Equity Shares may be affected by changes in exchange
rates and controls, interest rates, government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and
economic developments affecting India. The Gol has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise a significant
influence over many aspects of the economy. Our business, the market price and liquidity of the Equity Shares may be
affected by changes in Gol policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments
in or affecting India.

Any disproportionate increase in labor costs including increase in wage/salary demand, labor unrest or labor claims
arising from accidents may adversely affect our business operations and financial conditions.

Our increasing business operations may require our employee strength to increase in future. In the past our Company has
not experienced any labor unrest, but there is no assurance that it will not experience the same at any time in the future.
Also, there is a possibility that the labour costs increase disproportionately due to increase in wage/salary demand. In this
event, if our Company is unable to pass on the increased costs to our customers, our business operations and financial
conditions may be adversely affected.
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Any Penalty or demand raised by statutory authorities in future will affect our financial position of the Company.

Our Company is engaged in the manufacturing business, which attracts tax liability such as Goods and Service tax and
Income tax as per the applicable provisions of Law. We are also subject to the labour laws like depositing of contributions
with Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Professional Tax. Any demand or penalty raised by the concerned
authority in future for any previous year and current year will affect the financial position of the Company.

Regional hostilities, terrorist attacks, communal disturbances, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war involving
India and other countries may result in a loss of investor confidence and adversely affect the financial markets and
our business.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence or war may negatively affect the Indian markets on which our
Equity Shares will trade and also adversely affect the worldwide financial markets. In addition, the Asian region has from
time to time experienced instances of civil unrest and hostilities among neighboring countries. Hostilities and tensions
may occur in the future and on a wider scale. Military activity or terrorist attacks in India may result in investor concern
about stability in the region, which may adversely affect the price of our Equity Shares. Events of this nature in the future,
as well as social and civil unrest within other countries in the world, could influence the Indian economy and could have
an adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies, including our Equity Shares.

There is no existing market for our Equity Shares, and we do not know if one will develop. Our stock price may be
highly volatile after the Issue and, as a result, you could lose a significant portion or all of your investment.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges in a timely manner or at all and any
trading closures at the Stock Exchanges may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, we cannot
predict the extent to which investor interest will lead to the development of an active trading market on the Stock
Exchanges or how liquid that market will become. If an active market does not develop, you may experience difficulty
selling the Equity Shares that you purchased. The Issue Price is not indicative of prices that will prevail in the open market
following the Issue. Consequently, you may not be able to sell your Equity Shares at prices equal to or greater than the
Issue Price. The market price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges may fluctuate after listing as a result of several
factors, including the following:

Volatility in the Indian and other Global Securities Markets;

The performance of the Indian and Global Economy;

Risks relating to our business and industry, including those discussed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus;
Strategic actions by us or our competitors;

Investor perception of the investment opportunity associated with our future performance;

Adverse media reports about us, our shareholders or Group Companies;

Future sales of the Equity Shares;

Variations in our half-yearly results of operations;

Differences between our actual financial and operating results and those expected by investors and analysts;
Our future expansion plans;

Perceptions about the performance of companies engaged in lithium-ion battery manufacturing sector generally;
Perception in the market about investments in the lithium-ion battery manufacturing sector;

Significant developments in the regulation of the trading and distribution industry in our key trade locations;
Changes in the estimates of our performance or recommendations by financial analysts;

Significant developments in India’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies; and

Significant developments in India’s fiscal and environmental regulations.

There has been significant volatility in the Indian stock markets in the recent past, and our Equity Share. Price could
fluctuate significantly as a result of market volatility. A decrease in the market price of the Equity Shares could cause you
to lose some or all of your investment.

Investors can be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares

Under current Indian tax laws, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares within 12 months in an Indian company
are classified as short term capital gains and generally taxable. Any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a
stock exchange that are held for more than 12 months is considered as long-term capital gains and is taxable at 10%, in
excess of % 1,00,000. Any long-term gain realized on the sale of equity shares, which are sold other than on a recognized
stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, is also subject to tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of
equity shares are exempt from taxation in India where an exemption from taxation in India is provided under a treaty
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between India and the country of which the seller is resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to
impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable to pay tax in India as well as in their
own jurisdiction on a gain on the sale of equity shares.

The ability of Indian companies to raise foreign capital may be constrained by Indian law.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies, including those
specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources for our projects under development and
hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing indebtedness. In
addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without onerous conditions, or at all.
Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth, results of operations and financial condition.

Any downgrading of India's debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could adversely affect our
Company's business.

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international rating
agencies may adversely affect our Company's ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could harm our Company's business and financial
performance and ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures.

Conditions in the Indian securities market and stock exchanges may affect the price and liquidity of our Equity Shares.

Indian stock exchanges, which are smaller and more volatile than stock markets in developed economies, have in the past,
experienced problems which have affected the prices and liquidity of listed securities of Indian companies. These
problems include temporary exchange closures to manage extreme market volatility, broker defaults, settlement delays
and strikes by brokers. In addition, the governing bodies of the Indian stock exchanges have from time to time restricted
securities from trading, limited price movements and restricted margin requirements. Further, disputes have occurred on
occasion between listed companies and the Indian stock exchanges and other regulatory bodies that, in some cases, have
had a negative effect on market sentiment. If similar problems occur in the future, the market price and liquidity of the
Equity Shares could be adversely affected. Further, a closure of, or trading stoppage on, either of the Stock Exchanges
could adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

Civil disturbances, extremities of weather, regional conflicts and other political instability may have adverse effects on
our operations and financial performance.

Certain events that are beyond our control such as earthquake, fire, floods and similar natural calamities may cause
interruption in the business undertaken by us. Our operations and financial results and the market price and liquidity of
our equity shares may be affected by changes in Indian Government policy or taxation or social, ethnic, political,
economic or other adverse developments in or affecting India.
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SECTION IV: INTRODUCTION
THE ISSUE
The present Issue of upto 28,92,000 Equity Shares in terms of Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been authorized pursuant
to a resolution of our Board of Directors held on June 20, 2024 and by special resolution passed under Section 62(1)(c)

of the Companies Act, 2013, at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the members held on June 22, 2024.

The following is the summary of the Issue:

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS

Equity Shares Offered through Fresh Issue®® | Upto 28,92,000 Equity Shares aggregating upto X [] lakhs.
Out of which:
Issue Reserved for the Market Maker Upto 1,56,000 Equity Shares aggregating upto X [e] Lakhs.
Net Issue to the Public Upto 27,36,000 Equity Shares aggregating upto X [e] Lakhs.
Out of which*

A. QIB Portion® ©) | Not more than [] Equity Shares aggregating upto X [e] lakhs
Of which
i. Anchor Investor Portion Upto [e] Equity Shares aggregating upto <. [e] lakhs

ii. Net QIB Portion (assuming Anchor Investor Portion
is fully subscribed)

Of which

(a) Available for allocation to Mutual Funds only (5% of
the QIB Portion)

(b) Balance of QIB Portion for all QIBs including
Mutual Funds

Upto [e] Equity Shares aggregating upto <. [®] lakhs

Upto [e] Equity Shares aggregating upto < [e] lakhs

Upto [e] Equity Shares aggregating upto X [e] lakhs

B. Non-Institutional Portion Not less than [®] Equity Shares aggregating upto < [e] lakhs
C. Retail Portion Not less than [e] Equity Shares aggregating upto Z [e] lakhs
Pre and Post — Issue Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Issue 76,61,250 Equity Shares of face value of %10 each

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue Upto 1,05,53,250 Equity Shares of face value %10 each

Please see the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on page 70
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

* Subject to finalisation of the Basis of Allotment. Number of shares may need to be adjusted for lot size upon
determination of issue price.

Use of Net Proceeds by our Company

Notes:

1) The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to
time. This Issue is being made by our company in terms of [Regulation 229(2)] of SEBI ICDR Regulations read
with Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post — issue paid up equity share capital of our
company are being offered to the public for subscription.

2) The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on June 20,
2024 and by the Shareholder of our Company, vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 22, 2024

3) Inthe event of over-subscription, allotment shall be made on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids received
at or above the Issue Price. Allocation to investors in all categories, except the Retail Portion, shall be made on a
proportionate basis subject to valid bids received at or above the Issue Price.

4) The SEBI ICDR Regulations permit the issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, which
states that, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-
Institutional Bidders and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate
basis to Retail Individual Bidders and not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be allotted on a proportionate
basis to QIBs, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. Accordingly, we have allocated the
Net Issue i.e. not more than 50% of the Net Issue to QIB and not less than 35% of the Net Issue shall be available
for allocation to Retail Individual Investors and not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation
to Non-institutional bidders.

5) Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except
in the QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories
of Bidders at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Stock
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Exchange, subject to applicable laws.

For details, including grounds for rejection of Bids, refer to “Issue Structure” and “Issue Procedure” on page
236 and 240, respectively. For details of the terms of the Issue, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 228.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables provide the summary of financial information of our Company derived from the Restated Financial
Information as at and for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.

ANNEXURE I - RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Zin Lakhs
Particulars Note | Asat March | Asat March | As at March
No 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Fund
Equity share capital 3 340.50 113.50 113.50
Reserves and Surplus 4 996.84 244.99 172.12
Total Equity 1,337.34 358.49 285.62
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term Provisions 5 26.77 46.95 21.15
Other Long term liability 6 2,643.17 3,143.44 1,501.78
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,669.94 3,190.39 1,522.93
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 7
Dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 76.45 40.76 34.03
Dues of Others 5,5652.84 5,724.07 3,126.26
Other Current Liabilities 8 1,054.50 1,378.94 1,109.57
Short-term Provisions 9 636.31 269.75 126.43
Total Current Liabilities 7,320.10 7,413.52 4,396.29
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,327.38 10,962.41 6,204.85
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 10 1,600.81 1,374.82 452.55
Intangible Assets 153.68 236.74 0.20
Capital work in progress 11 - 296.88 600.38
Long term loans and advances 12 - 130.51 94.18
Other non-current assets 13 103.65 349.01 92.68
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 14 268.81 124.69 28.97
Total Non-Current Assets 2,126.94 2,512.65 1,268.95
Current Assets
Inventories 15 3,548.56 3,192.72 3,710.76
Trade Receivables 16 2,477.82 2,520.70 762.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 378.96 175.40 99.09
Short-term Loans and Advances 18 938.59 701.70 324.80
Other Current Assets 19 1,856.51 1,859.24 39.07
Total Current Assets 9,200.44 8,449.76 4,935.90
Total Assets 11,327.38 10,962.41 6,204.85
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ANNEXURE Il - RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Z in Lakhs)
Particulars Note | Asat March | Asat March | Asat March
No 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 20 13,270.87 12,881.94 12,168.96
Other Income 21 15.07 6.45 1.04
Total Income 13,285.94 12,888.39 12,170.00
EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 839.13 4,748.12 8,336.36
Raw Material Consumed 22 8,460.72 4,706.30 2,682.74
Change in Inventories 23 (335.27) (173.26) (373.40)
Employee Benefit Expenses 24 1,289.13 916.42 401.92
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 10 642.58 577.32 134.45
Other Expenses 25 1,165.36 1,353.51 486.77
Total Expenses 12,061.65 12,128.40 11,668.83
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and Exceptional items 1,224.28 759.99 501.17
Exceptional items 34 - 669.61 -
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 1,224.28 90.38 501.17
Current Tax 389.56 113.23 34.87
Deferred Tax 14 (144.12) (95.73) 102.17
Total tax 245.44 17.51 137.04
Profit/(Loss) for the year 978.85 72.87 364.13
Earnings per share (Face Value-10)* 33

Basic 12.78 0.95 4.82

Diluted 12.78 0.95 4.82

*Based on weighted average number of shares
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ANNEXURE I11- CASH FLOW STATEMENT, AS RESTATED

(Z in Lakhs)
; As at March As at March As at March
Particulars 31, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,224.28 90.38 501.17
Adjustments
Add : Depreciation 642.58 577.32 134.45
Add: Profit on sale of fixed asset (1.16) - -
Add :Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ (gain) 197.52 273.61 (19.81)
Less : Interest Income (13.91) (6.45) (0.45)
Add : Provision for warranty claims 45.92 24.42 10.77
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,095.23 959.27 626.12
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables (333.05) 2,330.93 1,698.68
Increase/ (Decrease) in Short term provisions 320.66 118.92 114.03
Increase/ (Decrease) in Long term provisions (20.19) 25.80 16.54
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Long term liability (500.27) 1,641.66 1,501.78
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liability (324.45) 269.34 1,040.19
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (355.84) 518.04 (3,146.66)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 42.88 (1,758.52) (648.30)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Short Term Loans and advances (236.90) (376.89) (173.53)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Deferred Tax Asset/Liabilities (144.12) (95.73) 102.17
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current Asset 245.36 (256.33) (71.30)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current Assets 2.73 (1,820.18) (35.67)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Long Term Loans and advances 130.51 (36.33) (94.18)
Cash flow from operations 922.58 1,519.98 929.89
Less: Tax paid during the year 245.44 17.51 137.04
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 677.13 1,502.48 792.85
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of PPE (Net of Capital WIP) (473.37) (1,137.42) (928.57)
Purchase of Intangible Asset (21.39) (295.19) (0.16)
Sale of PPE 7.26 - -
Interest Income 13.91 6.45 0.45
Investment in Fixed Deposit 9.53 (109.50) -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (464.05) (1,535.66) (928.28)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issued Equity Share Capital During the year - - 13.50
Security Premium received during the year - - 189.00
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities - - 202.50
Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1+11+111) 213.08 (33.18) 67.08
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents (1V)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 65.90 99.09 32.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 278.98 65.90 99.08
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer Anx - 19]
Cash In Hand 2.19 2.01 0.77
Balances with banks : - - -
- Current accounts 149.20 63.89 82.81
- Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 127.60 - 15.50
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 278.98 65.90 99.09

The Restated Financial Information referred to above is presented under the section titled “Financial Information”
beginning on Page No. 154 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The summary of financial information presented below
should be read in conjunction with the Restated Financial Information, the notes thereto and the chapters titled
“Financial Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations”
beginning on Page Nos. 154 and 182, respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

47



CL 4 /ENERGY

GENERAL INFORMATION

CLN Energy Limited was originally incorporated as “JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited” on October 01, 2019 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur with CIN U29309UP2019PTC121869.
Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to “CLN Energy Private Limited” vide special resolution passed
by the shareholders of our Company in their meeting held on September 29, 2022 and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation
consequent to the change of name was granted to our Company on May 08, 2023, by the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur.
Further, our Company was converted into Public Limited Company pursuant to special resolution passed by the
shareholders of our Company in their meeting held on April 04, 2024 and the name of our Company was changed to
“CLN Energy Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion of Company to Public
Limited dated June 18, 2024 was issued by Central Processing Centre bearing CIN: U33100UP2019PLC1218609.

Registered Office of our Company

CLN Energy Limited

Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri,

201305, Uttar Pradesh, India

Telephone: +91 75799 06940

E-mail: ipo@clnenergy.in

Website: www.clnenergy.in

CIN: U33100UP2019PLC121869

Registrar of Companies
Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur at Uttar Pradesh situated at the following address:
Registrar of Companies, Kanpur at Uttar Pradesh

37/17, Westcott Building, The Mall, Kanpur-208001, Uttar Pradesh.
Telephone: +91 0512-2310443

Email: roc.kanpur@mca.gov.in

Board of Directors of our Company

Set forth below are the details of our Board of Directors as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus

S. No. Name Designation DIN Address
Whole Time Director and 70, Ground Floor, Ashoka Enclave, Part-
1. Sunil Gandhi 08433754 | 1, Near Kanishka Tower, Sector 34,

Chief Executive Officer Amarnagar, Faridabad, Haryana 121003.

AJ/43, Sharanam-12, Opp.Green Acres,

. Whole Time Director and Prahladnagar, Ahmadabad City,
2 Manish Shah Chief Operating Officer 10343779 Ambawadi, Vistar, Ahmadabad, Gujarat
380015.
. Chairman & Additional Non- 261, Gulmohar Enclave, Gulmohar Park,
3 Rajiv Seth Executive Director 02156211 South Delhi, Delhi-110049
4 Bhawna Non-Executive Independent 10459772 694, 9th C Road, Sardarpura, Jodhpur,
Hundlani Director Rajasthan 342003.

C-401, Bestech Park View Spa, Sector 47,
05190517 | South City-Il, Farrukhnagar, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122018.

Non-Executive Independent

5 Rakesh Kakkar Director

For detailed profile of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” on page 134 of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Chief Financial Officer
Ashish Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,
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Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305,
Uttar Pradesh, India

Telephone: +91 75799 06940

E-mail: ipo@clnenergy.in

Website: www.clnenergy.in

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Sonal Jhanwar

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305,

Uttar Pradesh, India.

Telephone: +91 75799 06940

E-mail: ipo@clnenergy.in

Website: www.clnenergy.in

Investor grievances

Investors can contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, the Book Running Lead Manager or the
Registrar to the Issue in case of any pre- Issue or post- Issue related grievances, such as non-receipt of letters of
Allotment, non-credit of Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt of refund orders
or non-receipt of funds by electronic mode, etc.

All Issue related grievances, other than that of Anchor Investors, may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue with a
copy to the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to whom the Bid cum Application Form was submitted. The Bidder
should give full details such as name of the sole or First Bidder, Bid cum Application Form number, Bidder’s DP ID,
Client ID, UPI ID, PAN, date of submission of the Bid cum Application Form, address of the Bidder, number of Equity
Shares applied for, the name and address of the Designated Intermediary(ies) where the Bid cum Application Form was
submitted by the Bidder and ASBA Account number (for Bidders other than UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism) in
which the amount equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked or the UPI ID in case of UPI Bidders using the UPI
Mechanism. Further, the Bidder shall also enclose a copy of the Acknowledgment Slip or provide the acknowledgement
number received from the Designated Intermediary(ies) in addition to the information mentioned hereinabove.

In terms of SEBI Master Circular, SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, as
amended pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, and SEBI circular
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022 and subject to applicable law, any ASBA Bidder whose Bid
has not been considered for Allotment, due to failure on the part of any SCSB, shall have the option to seek redressal of
the same by the concerned SCSB within three months of the date of listing of the Equity Shares. SCSBs are required to
resolve these complaints within 15 days, failing which the concerned SCSB would have to pay interest at the rate of 15%
per annum for any delay beyond this period of 15 days. Further, the investors shall be compensated by the SCSBs at the
rate higher of X 100 or 15% per annum of the application amount in the events of delayed or withdrawal of applications,
blocking of multiple amounts for the same UPI application, blocking of more amount than the application amount, delayed
unblocking of amounts for non-allotted/partially-allotted applications for the stipulated period. In an event there is a delay
in redressal of the investor grievance in relation to unblocking of amounts, the Book Running Lead Manager shall
compensate the investors at the rate higher of ¥ 100 or 15% per annum of the application amount. Further, in terms of
SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, the payment of processing fees to the SCSBs
shall be undertaken pursuant to an application made by the SCSBs to the BRLM, and such application shall be made only
after (i) unblocking of application amounts for each application received by the SCSB has been fully completed, and (ii)
applicable compensation relating to investor complaints has been paid by the SCSB.

All grievances relating to Bids submitted through Registered Brokers may be addressed to the Stock Exchange with a
copy to the Registrar to the Issue. The Registrar to the Issue shall obtain the required information from the SCSBs for
addressing any clarifications or grievances of ASBA Bidders.

All Issue-related grievances of the Anchor Investors may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue giving full details such
as the name of the sole or First Bidder, Anchor Investor Application Form number, Bidders’ DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date
of the Anchor Investor Application Form, address of the Bidder, number of the Equity Shares applied for, Bid Amount
paid on submission of the Anchor Investor Application Form and the name and address of the Book Running Lead
Manager where the Anchor Investor Application Form was submitted by the Anchor Investor.
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Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:

Book Running Lead Manager

ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

60, Khatau Building, Ground Floor, Alkesh Dinesh Modi Marg
Fort, Mumbai — 400 001

Tel No.: +91 22 6216 6999

Email: ipo@afsl.co.in

Website: www.afsl.co.in

Investor Grievance Email: feedback@afsl.co.in

Contact Person: Vatsal Ganatra/Deepak Biyani

SEBI Registration No. INM000011344

Registrar to the Issue

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai — 400093

Tel. No.: +91 22 6263 8200

Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com

Website: www.bigshareonline.com

Investor Grievance Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

Contact Person: Babu Rapheal

SEBI Registration No.: INR0O00001385

Legal Advisor to the Issue

M/S. ABDUS SAMEE ABDUL QADIR MANIYAR (A. A. MANIYAR) (ADVOCATE)

Office No. 2-A, Ground Floor, Ali Chambers, Tamarind Street,
Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Tel No.: +91 — 79 —26447527

Contact Person: +91 — 22 - 2265 5505

Email: advaamaniyar@gmail.com

Statutory Auditor of our Company

Suraj Mishra & Associates

Chartered Accountants,

C-20 SF, BS, RS, KH NO.105/14/2 Street No 6
Block C Rajapuri Uttam Nagar

New Delhi, Delhi-110059 India

Telephone: +91 96502 34438

Email: surajassociates2020associates@gmail.com
Website: NA

Contact Person: Suraj Mishra

Membership No.: 558043

Firm Registration No.: 037530N

Peer Review Auditor of our Company

M/s.DGM S & CO.

Office No. 10, VihangVihar, Opp. Gautam Park Building,
Panchpakhadi, Thane West, Thane — 400 602

Tel: + 91 — 98242 31214

Email: doshimaru.andheri@gmail.com

Contact Person: Hiren Jayantila Maru

Membership No.: 115279

Firm Registration No.: 0112187W

Peer Review No: 010830
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Banker to our Company

ICICI Bank Limited

S-4, First Floor Gamma-1, Gamma Shopping Complex,
Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh-201306

Tel: +91-7021213435

Email: ankit.teotia@icicibank.com

Website: www.icicibank.com

Contact Person: Ankit Teotia

Banker to the Issue

The Banker(s) to the Issue shall be appointed prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Refund Bank

The Refund Bank(s) shall be appointed prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Sponsor Bank

The Sponsor Bank(s) shall be appointed prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Syndicate Member

The Syndicate Member(s) shall be appointed prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus.

Designated Intermediaries

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided at the website of the
SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to time. For
details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to the website of the SEBI
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes.

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, Retail Individual Investors Applying using the UPI Mechanism
may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40) and

(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43) respectively, as updated
from time to time.

SCSBs enabled for UPI Mechanism

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, Retail Individual Investors Applying using the UPI Mechanism
may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40) and updated from time to
time. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI mechanism is
provided as ‘Annexure A’ for the SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, as
amended.

Registered Brokers

The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is
provided on the website of the Stock Exchange, at BSE Limited at https://www.bseindia.com/ as updated from time to
time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as address,
telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the website of BSE Limited at https://www.bseindia.com/as updated
from time to time.
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Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated CDP
Locations, including  details such as name and  contact details, are  provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=19 for NSDL CDPs and at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=18 for CDSL CDPs, as updated
from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum
Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in)
and updated from time to time.

IPO Grading

Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 there is no requirement of
appointing an IPO Grading agency.

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Green Shoe Option

No Green Shoe Option is applicable for this Issue.

Brokers to the Issue

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue.
Debenture Trustees

As this is an Issue is of Equity Shares, the appointment of Debenture trustees is not required.
Monitoring Agency

As the Net Proceeds of the Issue will be less than 10,000 lacs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is not required that
a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Appraising Entity
None of the objects for which the Net Proceeds will be utilised have been appraised by any agency.

Expert Opinion
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent from the Peer Reviewed Auditor namely, M/s. D G M S & Co., Chartered
Accountants to include their name as required under Section 26(1)(a)(v) of the Companies Act, 2013 in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus and as “Expert” as defined under section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect to their Report
on Restated Financial Statements dated July 22, 2024 and Report on Statement of Tax Benefits dated July 22, 2024 and
issued by them, included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.
Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities

Aryaman Financial Service Limited, being the sole Book Running Lead Manager will be responsible for all the
responsibilities related to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the. Hence, a statement of inter se allocation of
responsibilities is not required.

Filing

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Issue Document
in terms of Regulation 246 (2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to SEBI Master Circular, a copy of the Red Herring
Prospectus/ Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in. Further, a

copy of Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus, will also be filed with the SME Platform of BSE Limited, where the Equity
Shares are proposed to be listed.

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus, along with the material contracts, documents and the Prospectus will also be filed
with the RoC under Section 26 and Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 and through the electronic portal at
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/loginvalidateuser.do .
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Changes in Auditors during the last three years

Except as disclosed below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors of our Company in the last three years
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Date From To Réaﬁgrr:gf:r
. Suraj Mishra & Associates

Chartered Accountants C-20 SF,BS,RS,KH NO.105/14/2

21st Floor, DLF Square, Jacaranda Marg, street No 6, Block C Rajapuri Uttam Nagar

DLF Phase Il, Gurugram, Haryana 122002 | New Delhi-110059 India
October 16, Telephone: +91 124 462 8099 Telephone: +91 96502 34438 Casual
2023 E-Mail: arun.tandon@walkerchandiok.in | gmail: Vacancy

Contact Person: Arun Tandon surajassociates2020associates@gmail.com

Membership No: 517273 Contact Person: Suraj Mishra

Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 Membership No.: 558043

Firm Registration No.: 037530N
M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP,

MJs. BASK & Co. Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants

G-192. First Eloor. Prashant Vihar 21st Floor, DLF Square, Jacaranda Marg,

New 5e|hi- 11008,5 ' DLF Phase 11, Gurugram, Haryana 122002
April 09 Telephone: +91 124 462 8099 Telephone: +91 124 462 8099 Casual
2022 E—Mgil' melxil @basknco.com E-Mail: arun.tandon@walkerchandiok.in Vacancy

: 3 ~ . Contact Person: Arun Tandon

Contact Person: CA Kalpit Sultania Membership No: 517273

Membership No: 520337 Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013

Firm Registration No: 027202N

BOOK BUILDING PROCESS

Book Building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of the Red Herring
Prospectus within the Price Band. The Price Band shall be determined by our Company in consultation with the Book
Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process and advertised in all editions of the [e], an English
national newspaper, all editions of [¢], a Hindi national newspaper and all Hindi editions of [e], a regional language
newspaper (Hindi, being the regional language of Uttar Pradesh, where our Registered Office is situated) at least two
working days prior to the Bid/Issue Opening date. The Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation
with the Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process after the Bid/lssue Closing Date.

Principal parties involved in the Book Building Process are-
»  Our Company;
The Book Running Lead Manager, in this case being Aryaman Financial Services Limited;

» The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI / registered as brokers with BSE Limited and
eligible to act as Underwriters. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running Lead Manager;

» The Registrar to the Issue, in this case being Bigshare Service Private Limited
» The Escrow Collection Banks/ Bankers to the Issue and
» The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank

The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process,
wherein allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Issue is being made through the Book Building Process wherein 50% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation
on a proportionate basis to QIBs. 5% of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to
Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all
QIB Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.

Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-Institutional
Bidders and not less than 35 % of the Net Issue shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders, in accordance
with the SEBI Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price.
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All potential Bidders may participate in the Issue through an ASBA process by providing details of their respective bank
account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders are mandatorily required to utilize the ASBA process to
participate in the Issue. Under-subscription if any, in any category, except in the QIB Category, would be allowed to be
met with spill over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in
consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange.

All Bidders are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process by providing the details of their respective ASBA Account
in which the corresponding Bid Amount will be blocked by the SCSBs or, in the case of UPI Bidders, by using the UPI
Mechanism.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIB and Non-Institutional Bidders are not allowed to withdraw or lower
the size of their Bids (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual
Bidders can revise their Bids during the Bid/lssue Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/Issue Closing Date.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Issue, shall be made
on a proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than
the minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares,
if any, shall be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under — subscription, if any, in any category, would be allowed to be
met with spill — over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in
consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Stock Exchange. However, under — subscription, if any, in
the QIB Portion will not be allowed to be met with spill over from other categories or a combination of categories.

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors applying in a public Issue shall use only
Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application providing details of the bank account which
will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01, 2018, Retail Individual Investors applying in public Issue
may use either Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility for making application or also can use UPI
as a payment mechanism with Application Supported by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in this
regards, specific attention is invited to the chapter titled “Issue Procedure” beginning on page 240 of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the investors
are advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or application in the
Issue.

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section entitled “Issue Procedure” on page 240
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Ilustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process: Bidders should note that this example is solely for
illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue. Bidders can bid at any price within the Price Band. For instance,
assume a Price Band of 320 to T 24 per share, Issue size of 3,000 Equity Shares and receipt of five Bids from Bidders,
details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below shows the demand for the Equity Shares
of the Issuer at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various investors.

Bid Quantity Bid Amount ) Cumulative Quantity Subscription
500 24 500 16.67%
1,000 23 1,500 50.00%
1,500 22 3,000 100.00%
2,000 21 5,000 166.67%
2,500 20 7,500 250.00%

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Issuer is able to Issue the
desired number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e., ¥ 22.00 in the above example. The Company
in consultation with the BRLM, may finalise the Issue Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.e., at or below X 22.00. All
Bids at or above this Issue Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation in the respective
categories.

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding:

Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled “Issue Procedure” on page 240 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus);

Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid cum Application
Form;
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Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form. Based on these
parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders from the Depositories;

Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by
the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, for Bids of all values
ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The
exemption for Central or State Governments and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in Sikkim is
subject to the Depositary Participant’s verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting sufficient
documentary evidence in support of their claims; and

Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus
and in the Bid cum Application Form.

Bid/lssue Program:

Event Indicative Dates
Bid/Issue Opening Date [e]
Bid/Issue Closing Date [®]
Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange On or before [o]
Initiation of Allotment / Refunds / Unblocking of Funds from ASBA Account On or before [@]
or UPI ID linked bank account
Credit of Equity Shares to Demat accounts of Allottees On or before [o]
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange On or before [o]

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running Lead
Manager. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for the listing
and the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 6 Working Days of the
Bid/Issue Closing Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension of the Bid/ Issue Period by
our Company, revision of the Price Band or any delays in receiving the final listing and trading approval from the Stock
Exchange. The Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares will be entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange
and in accordance with the applicable laws. SEBI pursuant to its circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/TPD1/CIR/P/2023/140 dated August 9, 2023 has reduced the time taken for listing of specified securities
after the closure of public issue to 3 working days (T+3 days) as against the present requirement of 6 working days (T+6
days); ‘T’ being issue closing date. Our Company shall obtain listing and trading approval of the Equity Shares within
three (03) working days, in accordance with the timeline provided under the aforementioned circular.

Bid Cum Application Forms and any revisions to the same will be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. (IST)
during the Issue Period (except for the Bid/Issue Closing Date). On the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, the Bid Cum Application
Forms will be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. (IST) for retail and non-retail Bidders. The time for applying
for Retail Individual Applicant on Bid/ Issue Closing Date maybe extended in consultation with the BRLM, RTA and
BSE Limited taking into account the total number of applications received upto the closure of timings.

Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date,
Bidders are advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and, in any case, not later
than 3.00 p.m. (IST) on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus is IST.
Bidders are cautioned that, in the event a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are received on the Bid/lssue
Closing Date, as is typically experienced in public Issue, some Bid Cum Application Forms may not get uploaded due to
the lack of sufficient time. Such Bid Cum Application Forms that cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation
under this Issue. Applications will be accepted only on Working Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public
holidays). Neither our Company nor the BRLM is liable for any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms due
to faults in any software/hardware system or otherwise.

In accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants are not allowed to withdraw or lower
the size of their Application (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Application amount) at any stage. Retail
Individual Applicants can revise or withdraw their Bid Cum Application Forms prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date.
Allocation to Retail Individual Applicants, in this Issue will be on a proportionate basis.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the data contained in the physical Bid Cum
Application Form, for a particular Applicant, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be taken as
the final data for the purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-a-vis the
data contained in the physical or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA Applicant, the Registrar
to the Issue shall ask the relevant SCSBs / RTAs / DPs / stock brokers, as the case may be, for the rectified data.
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WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE

Our Company in consultation with the BRLM, reserve the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the
Bid/Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraw the Issue any time after the Issue Opening Date but before the allotment of Equity Shares, a
public notice within 2 (two) working days of the Issue Closing Date, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue
shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Issue
advertisements have appeared and the Stock Exchange will also be informed promptly. The BRLM, through the Registrar
to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within 1 (one) working Day from the day of receipt
of such instruction.

If our Company withdraw the Issue after the Bid/Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an Issue
of the Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a fresh Red Herring Prospectus with the stock exchange where the
Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and trading approval of the Stock
Exchange with respect to the Equity Shares Issued through the Prospectus, which our Company will apply for only after
Allotment;

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

The Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that the Issue will be 100% Underwritten
by the Underwriters [*].

Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement dated [*] entered into by Company, Underwriters, the obligations
of the Underwriters are subject to certain conditions specified therein. The Details of the Underwriting commitments are
as under:

Amount % of the total
Mo @ISR Underwritten Issue Size
. . S
Details of the Underwriters underwritten & in Lakh) Underwritten
[o] [o] [e] [e]

*Includes 1,56,000 Equity shares of 10.00 each for cash of T [e]/- the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to
be subscribed by the Market Maker in its own account in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation
261 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended.

In the opinion of our Board of Directors (based on a certificate given by the Underwriter), the resources of the above-
mentioned Underwriter is sufficient to enable it to discharge its underwriting obligation in full. The above mentioned
Underwriter is registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act and registered as brokers with the Stock
Exchanges.

DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT FOR THIS ISSUE

Our Company has entered into a Market Making Agreement dated [e] with the following Market Maker for fulfilling the
Market Making obligations under this Issue:

Details of Market Maker No of Shares %

[o] [e] [e]
In accordance with Regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, we have entered into an agreement with the Lead
Manager and the Market Maker (duly registered with BSE Limited to fulfil the obligations of Market Making) dated [e]

to ensure compulsory Market Making for a minimum period of three years from the date of listing of equity shares offered
in this Issue.

Aryaman Capital Markets Limited, registered with SME Platform of BSE Limited will act as the Market Maker and has
agreed to receive or deliver of the specified securities in the market making process for a period of three years from the
date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified by any amendment to SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
and its amendments from time to time and the circulars issued by the BSE and SEBI regarding this matter from time to
time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making Arrangement:

1. The Market Maker shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a day. The same shall be
monitored by the Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker shall inform the Stock Exchange in advance for each
and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The minimum depth of the quote shall be X 1,00,000. However, the Investors with holdings of value less than
1,00,000 shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker in that scrip provided that he sells his entire
holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling broker.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker, for the quotes given
by him.

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the market maker would be exempted to provide
quote if the Shares of market maker in our Company reaches to 25% of Issue Size (Including the [®] Equity Shares
ought to be allotted under this Issue). Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker under this Issue over and above
[e] Equity Shares would not be taken in to consideration of computing the threshold of 25% of Issue Size. As soon
as the Shares of market maker in our Company reduce to 24% of Issue Size, the market maker will resume providing
2-way quotes.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his inventory
through market making process, BSE Limited may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.

There would not be more than five Market Maker for the Company’s Equity Shares at any point of time and the
Market Maker may compete with other Market Maker for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen
as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during
the pre-open call auction. In case equilibrium price is not discovered the price band in the normal trading session
shall be based on Issue price.

The Marker Maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily / fully
from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of
the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving one month notice or on mutually
acceptable terms to the Lead Managers, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market Maker.

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the compulsory
Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Lead Manager to arrange for another Market Maker(s) in
replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing
the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Further the Company and the Lead Manager reserve the right to appoint other Market
Maker(s) either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total
number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed 5 (five) or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations
applicable at that particular point of time.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Maker: SME Platform of BSE Limited will have all
margins which are applicable on the BSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme
Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. BSE can impose any other margins as deemed
necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Maker: SME Platform of BSE Limited will monitor the obligations
on a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and / or non-compliances. Penalties / fines
may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a
particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to
time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two
way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market
making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / fines /
suspension for any type of misconduct / manipulation / other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time.

Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has
laid down that for Issue size upto I 250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

a. Incase equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be
5% of the equilibrium price.

b. Incase equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall
be 5% of the Issue price.
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15. Additionally, the securities of the Company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement
for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The following spread will be applicable on the SME platform.

S. No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed Spread (in % to sale price)
1. Upto 50 9
2. 50to 75 8
3. 75 to 100 6
4. Above 100 5

All the above mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change
based on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time.

16. Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side for
market makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Issue size and as follows:

Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy quote
Issue Size (including mandatory initial (including mandatory initial inventory
inventory of 5% of the Issue size) of 5% of the Issue size)
Upto 220 Crore 25% 24%
%20 Crore to 350 Crore 20% 19%
%50 Crore to 80 Crore 15% 14%
Above 280 Crore 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be subject to
the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / BSE Limited from time to time.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and after giving effect to
this Issue, is set forth below:
(% in lakhs except share data)
Aggregate Value at | Aggregate Value
Nominal Value at Issue Price

Sr. No. Particulars

A. | Authorised Share Capital out of which :
1,10,00,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of R10/- each | 1,100.00 | -

B. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital before the Issue out of which
76,61,250 Equity Shares of %10/~ each | 766.125 |

C. Present Issue in terms of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus®
Issue of upto 28,92,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each at a price
of X [e] per Equity Share

289.20 [o]

Which comprises:

Upto [e] Equity Shares of X 10/- each at a price of X [e] per
Equity Share reserved as Market Maker Portion

Net Issue to Public of upto [e] Equity Shares of % 10/- each at
a price of X [e] per Equity Share to the Public

Of which® &®:

At least [®] Equity Shares of X 10/- each aggregating upto X
[e] lakhs will be available for allocation to Retail Individual [] [e]
Investors

At least [®] Equity Shares of % 10/- each aggregating upto [e]
lakhs will be available for allocation to Non-Institutional [] [e]
Investors

Not more than [e®] Equity Shares aggregating upto Z[e] lakhs
will be available for allocation to Qualified Institutional
Buyers, five percent of which shall be allocated to mutual
funds.

[e] [e]

[e] [e]

D. | Paid-up Share Capital after the Issue
1,05,53,250 Equity Shares of % 10/- each 1,055.32

E. Securities Premium Account

Before the Issue Nil
After the Issue [*]
@ The present Issue has been authorized pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated June 20, 2024 and pursuant to a

special resolution of our Shareholders passed in an Extraordinary General Meeting dated June 22, 2024 under Section
62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

@ In terms of Rule 19(2) of the SCRR read with Regulation 252 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 this is an issue for
at least 25% of the post issue paid-up Equity share capital of the Company. This issue is being made through Book
Building Process, wherein allocation to the public shall be as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

® Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the issue price, undersubscription, if any, in any category, except in
the QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of
Bidders at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager and the Designated Stock
Exchange, subject to applicable laws.

Classes of Shares

Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each only. All the issued Equity
Shares are fully paid-up. Our Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of this Draft Red Herring
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Prospectus.

Notes to Capital Structure

1. Changes in Authorised Equity Share Capital of our Company:

Cumulative Face Cumulative
Sr No. of Value Authorized Date of Whether
‘ Particulars of Changes . of Equity Share Shareholders’ AGM/
No. Equity sh ital .
S ares (;aplta Meeting EGM
Share (R in lakhs)
1. | Upon incorporation 150,000 10 15.00 On . N.A.
Incorporation
Increase in Authorised Share October 05
2. | Capital from X15.00 Lakhs to 10,00,000 10 100.00 2019 ' EGM
100.00 Lakhs
Increase in Authorised Share December 02
3. | Capital from 2100.00 Lakhs to X 50,00,000 10 500.00 2021 ! EGM
500.00 Lakhs
Increase in Authorised Share
4. | Capital from %500.00 Lakhs to ¥ | 1,10,00,000 10 1100.00 | June 06, 2024 EGM
1100.00 Lakhs
2. Share Capital History of our Company:
a) Equity Shares capital
The following table sets forth details of the history of the Equity Shares capital of our Company:
U5 P Cumulative | Cumulative
No. of Equity | Face (including Nature of .
Date of LS Nature of no. of paid-up
Shares Value | Premium if . . allotment . .
allotment - consideration Equity Capital
Allotted ® Applicable
Shares ®
R®)
Upon Subscription to
Incorporation 2 10 10 Cash MOA® 2 20
November 9,99,998 . i
[} (i)
14, 2019 10 10 Cash Right Issue 10,00,000| 1,00,00,000
January 01, 1,35,000 10 150/  Cash Preferential | 1) 35 000 | 1,13,50,000
2022 Issue (M
November .| Other than .
(iv)
02, 2023 22,70,000 10 Nil Cash Bonus Issue 34,05,000| 3,40,50,000
.| Other than
June 07, 2024 42,56,250 10 Nil Cash Bonus Issue ¥ 76,61,250| 7,66,12,500

All the above-mentioned shares are fully paid up since the date of allotment.

(i) Initial Subscribers to Memorandum of Association, subscribed 2 Equity Shares of face value of X10/- each, details
of which are given below:

Sr. No.

Name of Subscribers

Number of Equity Shares Subscribed

1. Jeevan Chand

2. Sanjay Chopra

Total
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(ii) Right Issue 0f9,99,998 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each per share were made to as per details given below:

Sr. No. Name of Allottees Number of Equity Shares Allotted
1. M/s. Minmax Energy Limited 9,99,998
Total 9,99,998

(iii) Preferential Issue of 1,35,000 Equity Shares of face value of % 10/- each per share were made to as per details given

below:
Sr. No. Name of Allottees Number of Equity Shares Allotted
1. M/s. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. 1,35,000
Total 1,35,000

(iv) Bonus issue of 22,70,000 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/-each in the ratio of 2:1 i.e. Two (2) Bonus Equity
Shares for every One (1) Equity Shares held by shareholders were made to as per details given below:

Sr. No. Name of Allottees Number of Equity Shares Allotted
1. M/s. CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. 22,69,996
2. |Jeevan Chand 2
3. Sunil Gandhi 2
Total 22,70,000

(v) Bonus issue of 42,56,250 Equity Shares of face value of X 10/-each in the ratio of 125:100 i.e. One Hundred and
Twenty Five (125) Bonus Equity Shares for every One Hundred (100) Equity Shares held by shareholders were made
to as per details given below:

Sr. No. Name of Allottees Number of Equity Shares Allotted

1. M/s. CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. 42,56,244
2. Jeevan Chand 1
3. Sunil Gandhi 1
4, Manish Shah 1
5. Mainak Bhanja 1
6. Sunjiv Kumar Bhardwaj 1
7. Sanni Kumar 1

Total 42,56,250

b) Preference Share Capital:

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not issued preference shares and does not
have any outstanding preference shares.

3. Details of Allotment made in the last two years preceding the date of Draft Red Herring Prospectus

Except as mentioned in point number 2(a)(iv) and 2(a)(v) above, the Company has not issued any Equity Share in
the last two years preceding the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

4. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in last 1 year:

Except as set out below, we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash:

Number .
Face Issue Benefits No. of
Date of of . Reasons for
. Value | Price Accrued to our | Name of Allottee Shares
Allotment Equity Allotment
® ® Company Allotted
Shares
November . Bonus Issue in Capitalization | M/s. CLN Energy
22,70,000 10 Nil . ' 22,69,996
02, 2023 v the ratio of of Reserves & | Pte. Ltd. e
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Number .
Date of of e Iss_ue Reasons for EIETETES N, B
. Value | Price Accrued to our | Name of Allottee Shares
Allotment Equity Allotment
® ® Company Allotted
Shares
2:1 Surplus
Jeevan Chand 2
Sunil Gandhi 2
Total 22,70,000
M/s. CLN Energy
Pte. Lid. 42,56,244
Jeevan Chand 1
June 07 Bonus Issue in | Capitalization Sunil Gandhi 1
2024 ' 42,56,250 10 Nil | the ratio of | of Reserves & Manish Shah 1
125:100 Surplus Mainak Bhanja 1
Sunjiv Kumar 1
Bhardwaj
Sanni Kumar 1
Total 42,56,250

5. No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant to any scheme approved under sections 230-234 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or under the erstwhile corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

6. Except for Bonus Issue made on November 02, 2023 and June 07, 2024, Our Company has not issued any Equity
Shares during a period of one year preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus which may be lower than
the Issue Price.

7. Our Company has not revalued its assets since inception and have not issued any Equity Shares (including bonus
shares) by capitalizing any revaluation reserves.

8. Shareholding Pattern of the Company

The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company in accordance with Regulation 31 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as on the date of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus:
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. —~ | @ $ ° © Number of
2 | g g o S 5T | Number of SITEIES
= o) =5} c 2 i i i B4 = (%)
5 3|8 S < Number of VVoting Rl_ghts held in each £9 3 % 2 Locked in pledged_or c
— [} < = class of securities (1X) =] 5o otherwise =
= — < e | > 5 = 4 25 X | shares(XI) bered AN
= = P o | § — S 8% £8% encumbere S >
= = 2 s | S 2 e ={ Eg= (X o X
S %) = G 3 &< =< Sl g28< 3=
S i = S 15 54 8 g A e
~ S &5 % > | 2 - + Swug Ty Ecsq 5 E
et % k=) > = 8 L ’9 ) 2 (@) —~ % S o2 o B
b = s = = A [ Y= -+ O + >8 7 @ =
s g 5 g | 8|29 & | SZo % | 84 = gX¢ £3
2 2 £ @ 2|39 42 | %% No of Voting Rights i 61 as =3 Asa Asa ER
= = O — ~ = [ e=— <
S > @ = =8 con 2 L% < 291 o5+ % of % of o 8
c — ko) = gl = = 8 -0 — S94 2053 B =
= ° kS a| S £= o8 = >3 58g |No| total | No | total °2
2 Z < 2| g P> S8 X $$ 520 |(a)| Shares | (a) | Shares =
8 = = | g ST - o c]{gEs held held E3
= < c 2 =) A = ] D] Lo >
b &5 R 25 | 2 g S |218¢>3 (b) (b) z
o B | = =] 8 = o o < 5{ 523
S s | ° £ 38 O © = S S S5
Promoters &
A | Promoters 1| 76,61,238 - - | 76,61,238 | 99.99% | 76,61,238 - | 76,61,238 | 99.99% - | 99.99% - - - - 76,61,238
Group
B | Public 6 12 - - 12 0.01% 12 - 12 0.01% - 0.01% - - - - 12
Non -
C | Promoters - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Non - Public
Shares
C1 | underlying - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
DRs
Shares held
C2 | by Employee - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Trusts
Total 7 | 7,661,250 - - | 7,661,250 | 100.00% | 7,661,250 - | 7,661,250 | 100.00% - | 100.00% - - - - 76,61,250

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus 1 Equity Shares share holds 1 vote.
We have only one class of Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each.

We have entered into tripartite agreement dated June 24, 2024 with CDSL & May 15, 2024 with NSDL respectively

Our Company will file the shareholding pattern in the format prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015, one day prior to the listing of the Equity Shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the Website of the BSE before commencement of trading of such Equity
Shares.
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9. List of Shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid up Share Capital of the Company: -

a) As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus: -

Equity Shares Held (Face % Pre-Issue paid up Share
Sr. No Names of Shareholders Value of 210 each) Capital
1. Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. 76,61,238 99.99%
Total 76,61,238 99.99%

b) Ten days prior to the date of filing of this Draft

Red Herring Prospectus: -

Equity Shares Held (Face % Pre-Issue paid up Share
Sr. No Names of Shareholders Value of 10 each) Capital
1. Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. 76,61,238 99.99%
Total 76,61,238 99.99%

c) One Year prior to the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus: -

Equity Shares Held (Face % Pre-Issue paid up Share
*
Sr. No Names of Shareholders Value of 10 each) Capital
1. Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. 11,34,998 99.99%
Total 11,34,998 99.99%

*Details of shares held on July 21, 2023 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid-up capital of our
Company as on July 21, 2023

d) Two Years prior to the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus: -

- Equity Shares Held (Face % Pre-Issue paid up Share
Sr. No Names of Shareholders Value of 210 each) Capital
1. Ms. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd. 1,35,000 11.89%
2. Ms. Minmax Energy Limited 9,99,998 88.11%
Total 11,34,998 99.99%

*Details of shares held on July 22, 2022 and percentage held has been calculated based on the paid-up capital of our
Company as on July 22, 2022

10. Our Company has not made any Initial Public Offer of specified securities in the preceding two years.
Our Company has not made any Initial Public Offer of specified securities in the preceding two years.

11. No further issue of capital during the period commencing from the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus
until the Equity Shares of our Company have been listed.

There will be no further issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, Right issue or
in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus until the Equity
Shares of our Company have been listed or application money unblocked on account of failure of Issue. Further, our
Company does not intend to alter its capital structure within six months from the date of opening of the offer, by way of
split / consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares. However, our Company may further issue equity shares
(including issue of securities convertible into Equity Shares) whether preferential or otherwise after the date of the listing
of equity shares to finance an acquisition, merger or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of
arrangement or any other purpose as the Board of Directors may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined
by the Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

12. Capital Buildup in respect of Shareholding of our Promoters

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Our Promoters, CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. hold 76,61,238 Equity Shares
and Rajiv Seth does not hold any Equity Shares of our Company. None of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are
subject to any pledge.

Set forth below is the build-up of the shareholding of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd in our Company since incorporation.
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Date of Face Issue/ Pre-lssue Post-Issue
Allotment | No. of | Value | Acquisition/ Nature of Shareholding | Shareholding
and paid Equity Per Transfer | Consideration Acquisition % (adjusted | % (adjusted
up/ Shares | Share Price q as per face as per face
Transfer ®) ®) value) value)
o500y | 135000 | 10 | 150 Cash Preferential 1.76% [o]
Acquisition
September by
15 2022 9,99,998 | 10/- 10/- Cash way of 13.05% [e]
' Transfer
of shares”
Bonus Issue
I\(I)ozvezrgggr 22,69,996 | 10/- Nil Other than Cash) 1. 29.63% o]
2:1
Bonus Issue
e o | 256,244 | 100 Nil Other than Cash| . " 55.56% [o]
125:100
Total (A) | 76,61,238 99.99% [o]

* Acquired from Minmax Energy Limited, another company of Rajiv Seth (our individual Promoter).

13. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription of shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

Sr. No. WIS @i7ine No. of Shares held Average cost of Acquisition (in )
Promoters
1. CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. 76,61,238 3.95
2. Rajiv Seth Nil Nil

14. Shareholding of Promoters & Promoters Group

Following are the details of pre and post Issue shareholding of persons belonging to the category “Promoter and
Promoter Group”:

Pre-Issue Post-Issue
Category of Promoters No. of Shares | 2 0f Pe-Isse No. of Shares v ol FoE el
Capital Capital

1. Promoters
CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. 76,61,238 99.99% 76,61,238 72.60%
Total Promoter Holding 76,61,238 99.99% 76,61,238 72.60%
2. Promoters Group (as per defined by Reg. 2(1)(pp) of SEBI ICDR Regulations)*
Total Promoters Group Holding Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Promoters & Promoters 76,61,238 99.999% 76,61,238 72.60%

Group Holding

*Our Promoter Group as defined under Regulation 2(1)(pp) of SEBI ICDR Regulations does not hold any equity shares
in our company.

15. Except as provided below, no Equity Shares were acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoter and Promoter Group,
Directors and their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

Date of No. of @ . Subscribed/ Category of Allottees
Allotment/ Shglfenr:glgfers Equity & o(f::rﬁ[;fsue Acquire/ (Promoter/ Promoter
Transfer Share P Transfer Group/ Director)
Bonus Issue in
June 07,2024 | CLNENEray P\ 5 o6 544 55.56% | the ratio of Promoter
Ltd. 125:100
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16. None of our Promoters, Promoter Group, our directors and their relatives has entered into any financing arrangement
or financed the purchase of the Equity Shares of our Company by any other person during the period of six months
immediately preceding the date of filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

17. Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for Three Years:

Pursuant to Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, an aggregate of 20.00% of the post issue capital
held by our Promoters shall be considered as Promoter’s Contribution (“Promoters Contribution”) and shall be locked-
in for a period of three years from the date of allotment of Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue. The lock in of
Promoter’s Contribution would be created as per applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also be
provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoter, CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. singly hold 76,61,238 Equity
Shares constituting 99.99% of the Pre-Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Shares Share Capital of our Company,
which are eligible for the Promoters’ contribution.

Our Promoters, CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. have given written consent to include 21,50,000 Equity Shares held by them as
part of Promoters Contribution constituting 20.37% of the post issue Equity Shares of our Company. Further, they have
agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoters contribution, for a period of
three years from the date of allotment in the Issue.

No. of | Face Issue/
Date of Allotment/ | Equity Value Acquisition/ Nature of Post—lssue_ Lock o
Transfer and Shares Per Transfer Price | transaction Shareholding Period
made fully Paid Up | locked- Share %

e X

in ®

Bonus Issue
November 02, 2023 | 21,50,000 10/- Nil in the ratio of 20.37% 3 years
2:1

*Assuming full subscription to the Issue.

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified minimum lot and
from persons defined as “Promoter” under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. All Equity Shares, which are being locked in
are not ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Contribution as per Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018 and are being locked in for 3 years as per Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018
i.e. for a period of three years from the date of allotment of Equity Shares in this issue.

The entire pre-issue shareholding of the Promoters, other than the Minimum Promoters contribution which is locked in
for three years, shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in this Issue.

Eligibility of Share for “Minimum Promoters Contribution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) of SEBI
(ICDR)

Regulations, 2018

Eligibility Status of Equity Shares
Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions forming part of Promoter’s
Contribution

Specified securities acquired during the preceding three
years, if they are acquired for consideration other than | The minimum Promoter’s contribution
237(1)(a)(i) | cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of | does not consist of such Equity Shares.
intangible assets Hence Eligible

is involved in such transaction

Specified securities acquired during the preceding three
years, resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of
revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the issuer or
from

bonus issue against Equity Shares which are ineligible for
minimum promoters’ contribution

The minimum Promoter’s contribution
does not consist of such Equity Shares.
Hence Eligible

237(1)(a)(ii)
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Eligibility Status of Equity Shares
Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Conditions forming part of Promoter’s
Contribution
SpeC|f|_ed securities acqqlred by promoters_durlng ?he The minimum Promoter’s contribution
237(1)(b) prec«_ad_mg one year at a price lower than the price at Wh'.c h does not consist of such Equity Shares.
specified securities are being offered to public in the initial o
public offer Hence Eligible
Specified securities allotted to promoters during the
preceding one year at a price less than the issue price,
against
funds brought in by them during that period, in case of an
issuer formed by conversion of one or more partnership The minimum Promoter’s contribution
237(1)(0) firms, where the partners of the erstwhile partnership does not consist of such Eauity Shares
firms are the promoters of the issuer and there is no change o qurty '
. . o o Hence Eligible
in the management: Provided that specified securities,
allotted to promoters against capital existing in such firms
for a period
of more than one year on a continuous basis, shall be
eligible
Our Promoters have not Pledged any
shares with any creditors. Accordingly,
237(1)(d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor. the minimum Promoter’s contribution
does not consist of such Equity Shares.
Hence Eligible.

Details of Promoters’ Contribution Locked-in for One Year

In terms of Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, in addition to the Minimum Promoters
contribution which is locked in for three years, as specified above, the entire pre-issue Equity Shares share capital
constituting 55,11,250 Equity Shares shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment of Equity
Shares in this Issue.

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares which are subject to lock-in shall
carry inscription ‘non-transferable’ along with the duration of specified non-transferable period mentioned in the face
of the security certificate. The shares which are in dematerialized form, if any, shall be locked-in by the respective
depositories. The details of lock-in of the Equity Shares shall also be provided to the Designated Stock Exchange before
the listing of the Equity Shares.

Other requirements in respect of lock-in:

1. Interms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the locked in Equity Shares held by the Promoters,
as specified above, can be pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution or a
systemically important non-banking finance company or a housing finance company as collateral security for loan
granted by such bank or institution provided that the pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of
the loan. Provided that securities locked in as minimum promoter contribution may be pledged only if, in addition
to fulfilling the above requirements, the loan has been granted by such bank or institution, for the purpose of
financing one or more of the objects of the Issue.

2. Interms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the Equity Shares held by persons other than the
Promoters prior to the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity Shares which are locked in
as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of
the transferees for the remaining period and compliance with the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as applicable.

3. Further in terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the specified securities held by the
promoters and locked-in as per regulation 238 may be transferred to another promoter or any person of the promoter
group or a new promoter or a person in control of the issuer subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the
transferees for the remaining period and compliance with SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, as applicable.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Neither, we nor our Promoters, Directors and the BRLM to this Issue have entered into any buyback and/ or standby
arrangements and/ or similar arrangements for the purchase of our Equity Shares from any person.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the entire Issued Share, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
of our Company is fully paid up. Since the entire issue price in respect of the issue is payable on application, all the
successful applicants will be allotted fully paid- up Equity shares.

The BRLM i.e., Aryaman Financial Services Limited and their associates do not hold any Equity Shares in our
Company as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we do not have any Employees Stock Option Scheme /
Employees Stock Purchase Scheme and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock
Option Scheme/ Employee Stock Purchase Plan from the proposed issue. As and when, options are granted to our
employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

We have 7 (Seven) shareholders as on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

As on the date of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to
convert debentures, loans or other instruments which would entitle Promoters or any shareholders or any other person
any option to acquire our Equity Shares after this Initial Public Offer.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of the Issue.

An over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the Issue subject to the maximum post issue paid up capital of Rs. 25
cr. can be retained for the purpose of rounding off to the nearest integer during finalizing the allotment, subject to
minimum allotment, which is the minimum application size in this Issue. Consequently, the actual allotment may go
up by a maximum of 10% of the Issue, as a result of which, the post-issue paid up capital after the Issue would also
increase by the excess amount of allotment so made. In such an event, the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and
subject to 3-year lock- in shall be suitably increased; so as to ensure that 20% of the post Issue paid-up capital is
locked in.

Under-subscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB Portion, would be allowed to be met with spill over
from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company, in consultation with the
BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be affected in accordance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. Under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Category will not be
allowed to be met with spill over from any category or combination thereof.

In case of over-subscription in all categories the allocation in the issue shall be as per the requirements of Regulation
253 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments from time to time.

At any given point of time there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by
law.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by BSE, SEBI and other
regulatory authorities from time to time.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.

Other than the Equity Shares, there is no other class of securities issued by our Company.
There are no safety net arrangements for this public issue.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this issue.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue.

This Issue is being made through Book Building Method.
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36. No person connected with the Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in the nature of discount,
commission, and allowance, or otherwise, whether in cash, kind, services or otherwise, to any Applicant.

We shall ensure that transactions in Equity Shares by the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, if any, between

the date of filing this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date are reported to the Stock Exchanges within
24 hours of such transactions being completed.
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SECTION V- PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
Issue Proceeds and Net Issue Proceeds

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are set forth in the table below:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Proceeds of the Issue [e]
Less: Issue related expenses® [o]
Net Proceeds of the Issue [e]

(MThe Issue related expenses are estimated expenses and subject to change
Net Issue

Our Company proposes to utilize the Net Proceeds from Issue towards funding the following objects (collectively,
referred to herein as the “Objects™):

1. Purchase of machinery and equipment

2. Funding Working capital requirements

3. General Corporate Purpose

Further, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange including to
enhance our visibility and our brand image among our existing and potential customers and creation of a public market
for our Equity Shares in India.

The main objects and objects incidental and ancillary to the main objects set out in the Memorandum of Association
enable us (i) to undertake our existing business activities and (ii) to undertake the activities proposed to be funded from
the Net Proceeds.

Proposed Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of the Net Proceeds

The Net Proceeds of the Issue (“Net Proceeds™) are currently expected to be deployed in accordance with the schedule
as stated below:

(< in lakhs)
Amount to be deployed
Sr. No. Particulars Amount to be funded from from the Net Proceeds in FY
the Net Proceeds
2024-25

1. Purchase of machinery and equipment 970.80 970.80

2. Funding Working capital requirements 4,122.50 4,122.50

3. General Corporate Purpose [o] [e]
Total [o] [o]

Requirements of Funds and Means of Finance

The fund requirements, the deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as described herein are based
on our current business plan, management estimates, quotations from suppliers, and other commercial and technical
factors. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account of a variety of factors such as our
financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition, negotiation with suppliers, variation in cost estimates
on account of factors, including changes in design or configuration of the equipment and other external factors including
changes in the price of the equipment due to variation in commodity prices which may not be within the control of our
management. This may entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the
expenditure for a particular purpose, subject to compliance with applicable law. For further details, see “Risk Factors”
on page no. 23 The Objects of the Issue for which funds are being raised have not been appraised by any bank or financial
institution. The deployment of funds is entirely at the discretion of our management and as per the details mentioned in
the section titled “Objects of the Issue”. Any revision in the estimates may require us to reschedule our expenditure and
may have a bearing on our expected revenues and earnings”. To the extent our Company is unable to utilise any portion
of the Net Proceeds towards the aforementioned objects of the Issue, as per the estimated schedule of deployment
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specified above, our Company shall deploy the Net Proceeds in the subsequent Fiscals towards the aforementioned
objects

The fund requirements for all objects are proposed to be entirely funded from the Net Proceeds. Accordingly, we confirm
that there is no requirement for us to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards 75% of the
stated means of finance.

In case of variations in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, increased fund
requirements for a particular purpose may be financed by our internal accruals and/ or debt, as required. If the actual
utilization towards any of the objects is lower than the proposed deployment, such balance will be used for funding other
objects as mentioned above or towards general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilised towards
general corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds from the Issue in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

DETAILS OF THE FUND REQUIREMENTS
1. Purchase of machinery and equipment:

We currently have two manufacturing facility located at Noida and Pune. We propose to augment our capacities & in-
house capabilities by installing new equipment and machinery. Our Company hence, intends to utilize ¥970.80 lakhs
(1.16 million US Dollars) from the Net Proceeds for the purchase of machinery and equipment at our Noida’s
manufacturing facility. We believe this will enable us to cater the growing demand of our customers with enhanced
quality and increased efficiency. We are yet to place orders for such machineries and equipment. The details of such
machinery and equipment are set forth below:

Cost per unit | Total cost

Sr. No | Machinery specification and description Quantity (in $ lakhs) (in $ million)
1 Cell Grading Machine -5V 60A with Rack - 80 5 0.69 0.35
Channel
2 Cell Grading Machine 5V 100Ah with Rack -64 6 0.36 0.22
Channel
3 Cell Grading Machine 5V 200A with Rack - 32 1 0.80 0.08
Channel
Automatic Prismatic Cell Sorting machine - with Cell
4 Traceability 1 0.57 0.11
5. Laser welding Machine - 3KW (Open Platform) 1 1.32 0.13
6 Battery Testing Machine- 1000V 50A -C/D for High 1 164 0.16
Voltage Battery
7. Battery Testing Machine -150V100A-16 Channel 1 1.07 0.11
Total 1.16
Total in X lakhs 970.80

The above quotation is for new machines and equipment has been obtained from Jucheng International Trade (Jiaxing)
Co., Ltd, China dated July 11, 2024 and has a validity of 60 days i.e. September 08, 2024.

We have not entered into definitive agreements with any of these vendors and there can be no assurance that the same
vendors would be engaged to eventually supply the equipment or at the same costs. The quantity of equipment to be
purchased is based on the present estimates of our management.

Our Company shall have the flexibility to deploy such equipment as per our internal estimates of our management and
business requirements, which may change from time to time. The actual mode of deployment has not been finalized as
on the date of this Prospectus. For further details, see “Risk Factors” starting from page no 23

2. Funding Working capital requirements

Our Company manufactures lithium-ion battery, motors and trades in its ancillary items. Our Company also generates
service income through the research and development team by creating design and prototype for the customers who seeks
to use lithium-ion batteries in their application. Since the major raw materials are imported from China and due to
unavailability of working capital, we pay our creditors after a long duration, thereby losing available discounts on bulk
procurement, better pricing and relations with them. With the flow of funds and on time payment to creditors, we can

71



CL / /ENERGY

enhance our profit margin by availing cash discount, better pricing and cost-effective procurement of raw materials. In
order to effectively expand our business in PAN India, increase the application of lithium-ion battery, along with
effectively utilizing our manufacturing capacity at existing facilities, we need to have access to a larger amount of liquid
funds and sufficient working capital. Our Company primarily works with the multi-national companies and the market
practice is to provide substantial credit period from our billing cycle and likewise substantial amounts of our funds are
required for the long gestation raw materials and work-in-progress inventories and working capital assets we would hold.
Hence, the success in our business is dependent on our ability to ensure we have planned and funded working capital
available to ensure smooth flow of our products.

Existing Working Capital
The details of Company’s existing working capital gap and source of their funding based on restated financials for the

Financial Year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24. These working capital gaps are certified by the Statutory Auditors,
pursuant to a certificate dated July 22, 2024

(in Lakhs)
Particulars Fiscal 2021-22 Fiscal 2022-23 Fiscal 2023-24
' (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
Current Assets
Inventories 3,710.76 3,192.72 3,548.56
Trade Receivables 762.18 2520.70 2,477.82
Short Term Loans and Advances 324.80 701.70 938.59
Other Current Assets 39.07 1,859.24 1,856.51
Total Current Assets 4,836.81 8,274.36 8,821.48
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 3,160.29 5,764.83 5,629.29
Othe_r _Current Liabilities and Short Term 1.236.00 1,648.70 1,690.81
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities 4,396.29 7,413.53 7,320.11
Working Capital Gap 440.52 860.83 1,501.37
Funding Pattern:
Internal Accruals and Owned Fund 440.52 860.83 1,501.37

Basis of estimation of working capital requirements

Our Company proposes to utilize X 4,122.50 lakhs of the Net Proceeds for our working capital requirements. The entire
amount will be utilized during Financial Year 2024-25 towards our Company’s working capital requirements. The
incremental and proposed working capital requirements, as approved by the Board pursuant to a resolution dated July 22,
2024 and key assumptions with respect to the determination of the same are mentioned below. Our Company’s expected
working capital requirements for Financial Year 2024-25 and the proposed funding of such working capital requirements
are as set out in the table below:

Basis of estimation of working capital requirements

(< in lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars Fiscal 2024-25 (Projected)
l. Current Assets:
1 Inventories 6,031.51
2 Trade Receivables 3,801.37
3 Short Term Loans and Advances 950.00
4 Other Current Assets 242.16

Total Current Assets (A) 11,025.04
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Sr. No. Particulars Fiscal 2024-25 (Projected)

1. Current Liabilities

1 Trade Payables 3,231.16

2 Other Current Liabilities and Short Term Provisions 1,120.00
Total Current Liabilities (B) 4,351.16

1. Total Working Capital Gap (A — B) 6,673.87

(\ Funding Pattern:

1. Internal Accruals 1,751.37

2. Funding form Banking Facility* 800.00

3 IPO 4,122.50

*Our Company has obtained sanction limit of ¥ 1,000.00 from ICICI Bank on June 26, 2024. Our Peer-Review Auditor
has, pursuant to a certificate dated July 22, 2024 certified the working capital requirements of our Company for the Fiscal
2025.

Holding Period level:

Sr. Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2024-25
No. (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Projected)
A. Current Assets:
1 Trade Receivables 23 72 68 75
2 Inventories 111 91 98 119
B. Current Liabilities
1 Trade Payables 105 179 221 85
Justification for holding period levels
Particulars | Details
Current Assets
Inventories consist of Raw Material, Work-in Progress and Finished Goods only. In
Financial Year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24, our inventory holding days were 111 days,
91 days and 98 days respectively. We are expecting slightly high level of periods of
inventories as the fund gets deployed from the day we order our raw materials, receiving
Inventories the products at our manufacturing facility, production process and completing the order of

customer and finally delivering the product. Further, to manage market demands and to
avoid any supply chain disruptions the company has maintained higher inventory levels
which further led to the increase in working capital. Company estimates inventories
holding period to be 119 days for Financial Year 2024-25.

In Financial Year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24, our trade receivables were 23 days, 72
days and 68 days respectively. For growth in business, revenue and profit, we need to thrive
in competitive market. As our company deals with the customers PAN India wherein the
fund gets deployed from day, we manufacture the product till they receive the product and
a credit period after the receipt of goods by our customers. With the industry practice to
provide a good credit period, our funds get deployed in the operating cycle. With the current
trends in business, the holding level for debtor is expected to be 75 days for Financial Year
2024-25.

Short term loans & | The key items under this head are advance to suppliers, advances to employees and indirect
advances tax receivable. Based on restated financials for Financial Year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-
24 Short term loans and advances are 2.67%, 5.46%, 7.30% of revenue respectively. For
Financial Year 2024-25, 5.14% of Revenue is projected for short term loans & advances
Our other current assets include interest accrued on fixed deposit, prepaid expense, duty
script and insurance claim receivable. Based on restated financials for Financial Year 2021-
22, 2022-23 and 2023-24, other current assets are 0.32% 14.46%, 14.44% of revenue

Trade Receivables

Other current assets
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Particulars Details
respectively. For Financial Year 2024-25, 1.31% of Revenue is projected for other current
assets.

Current Liabilities

In Financial 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24, our trades payable were 105 days, 179 days,
221 days respectively. Our Company intends to improve our relations and ensure timely
supply which will require us to have ready inventory and paying the Creditors in short
period of time will enable us to avail various trade discounts and better margins.
Accordingly, we estimate that the Trade Payables be paid within a cycle of approximately
85 days for Financial Year 2024-25.

Trade Payables

Statutory tax dues payable, advance from debtors, creditors for capital expenditure &
Other current liabilities | provision for tax and employee benefit expenses and warranties are included under this
and short-term | head. Based on restated financial for Financial Year 2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24, other
provisions current liabilities are 10.17%, 12.82%, 12.77% of Revenue respectively. For Financial
Year 2024-25, 6.05% of Revenue is projected for other current liabilities.

3. General Corporate Purpose

Our management will have flexibility to deploy X[e] lakhs, aggregating to [#]% of the Gross Proceeds towards general
corporate purposes, including but not restricted to strategic initiatives, partnerships, joint ventures and strategic entity/
business acquisitions, branding, marketing, new client referral fees meeting exigencies which our Company may face in
the ordinary course of business, to renovate and refurbish certain of our existing Company owned/leased and operated
facilities or premises, towards brand promotion activities or any other purposes as may be approved by our Board, subject
to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act.

Our management, in accordance with the policies of the Board, will have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for general
corporate purposes under the overall guidance and policies of our Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards
any of the purposes will be determined by the Board, based on the amount actually available under this head and the
business requirements of our Company, from time to time.

We confirm that any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a part of General Corporate Purpose. Further, we
confirm that in terms of Regulation 230(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Net Proceeds according to
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, proposed to be used for general corporate purposes, shall not exceed 25% of the
amount raised by our Company through the Issue of Equity Shares.

ISSUE RELATED EXPENSES

The total estimated Issue Expenses are X [®] million, which is [®] % of the total Issue Size. The details of the Issue
Expenses are tabulated below:

Sr. Particulars Amount % of Total | % of T_otal
No. (X in million)* EXxpenses* Issue Size*
Issue Management fees including fees and payment to
1 other intermediaries such as Legal Advisors, Registrars [e] [0]% [0]%
and other out of pocket expenses.
2 Brokerage and Selling Commission D@®)4) [o] [®]% [®]%
3 Printing & Stationery, Distribution, Postage, etc. [e] [0]% [0]%
4 Advertisement and Marketing Expenses [e] [®]% [®]%
5 Stock Exchange Fees, Regulatory and other Expenses [e] [®]% [0]%
Total [o] [o]% [o]%

* To be incorporated in the Prospectus after finalization of the Issue Price.
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1) Selling commission payable to the SCSBs on the portion for Retail Individual Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders,
which are directly procured by the SCSBs would be as follows:

Portion for Retail Individual Bidders” /e] % of the Amount Allotted (plus GST)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* /®] % of the Amount Allotted (plus GST)
“Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price.

No additional uploading/processing charges shall be payable by the Company to the SCSBs on the Bid cum
Application Forms directly procured by them. The selling commission payable to the SCSBs will be determined on
the basis of the bidding terminal ID as captured in the Bid book of BSE or NSE.

2) Processing fees payable to the SCSBs on the portion for Retail Individual Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders,
which are procured by the members of the Syndicate / sub-Syndicate / Registered Brokers / RTAs / CDPs and
submitted to SCSBs for blocking, would be as follows.

Portion for Retail Individual Bidders* < [e]/- per ASBA Form (plus GST)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* < [e]/- per ASBA Form (plus GST)
*based on valid Bid cum Application Forms.

3) Selling commission on the portion for Retail Individual Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders, which are procured
by members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate members), RTAs and CDPs would be as follows:

Portion for Retail Individual Bidders* /®] % of the Amount Allotted (plus GST)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders? [®] % of the Amount Allotted (plus GST)
#Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price.

4) Bidding/uploading Charges payable to members of the Syndicate (including their Sub-Syndicate Members),
Registered Brokers, CRTAs and CDPs on the portion for Retail Individual Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders,
which are procured by them and submitted to SCSB for blocking, would be ¥ [e] per valid application. The selling
commission and Bidding Charges payable to the Registered Brokers, RTAs and CDPs will be determined on the
basis of the bidding terminal id as captured in the Bid Book of BSE or NSE.

Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022; applications made using the
ASBA facility in initial public offerings shall be processed only after application monies are blocked in the bank accounts
of investors (all categories). Accordingly, Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member shall not be able to accept Bid cum
Application Form above Z500,000 and the same Bid cum Application Form need to be submitted to SCSB for blocking
of the fund and uploading on the exchange bidding platform. To identify bids submitted by Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate
Member to SCSB a special Bid cum Application Form with a heading / watermark “Syndicate ASBA” may be used by
Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member along with SM code & Broker code mentioned on the Bid cum Application Form to
be eligible for brokerage on Allotment. However, such special forms, if used for RIB Bids and NIB Bids up to 500,000
will not be eligible for brokerage.

The processing fees for applications made by UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism may be released to the remitter
banks (SCSBs)only after such banks provide a written confirmation on compliance with SEBI Circular No:
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/570  dated  June 2, 2021 read with SEBI  Circular  No:
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021 and such payment of processing fees to the SCSBs
shall be made in compliance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April20, 2022and SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022.

The Issue expenses shall be payable in accordance with the arrangements or agreements entered into by our Company
with the respective Designated Intermediary.

Appraisal and Bridge Loans
Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as of the date of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However, if the Company takes any loan

prior to filing the Red Herring Prospectus with the intention of repaying it from the issue proceeds, such loan shall be
considered a bridge loan and shall be repaid from the Net Proceeds of the issue.
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Year wise Deployment of Funds / Schedule of Implementation

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, no funds have been deployed on these objects. The entire Issue size
is proposed to be deployed in the Financial Year 2024-25.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds

Since the proceeds from the Issue do not exceed 310,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI ICDR regulations,
our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Issue. Our Board and Audit
Committee will monitor the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue. Our Company will disclose the utilization of the Net
Proceeds under a separate head in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not
been utilized. Our Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilised Net Proceeds in the balance sheet of our
Company for the relevant fiscals subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall disclose to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
the uses and applications of the Net Proceeds. Our Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilised for purposes other
than those stated in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
as required under applicable law. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that all the Net Proceeds have been
utilised in full. The statement shall be certified by the statutory auditor of our Company. Furthermore, in accordance with
the Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchange on a half yearly
basis, a statement indicating (i) deviations, if any, in the utilisation of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the
Issue as stated above; and (ii) details of category wise variations in the utilisation of the proceeds from the Issue from the
objects of the Issue as stated above.

Interim Use of Funds

Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company will deposit the Net Proceeds
with scheduled commercial banks included in schedule Il of the RBI Act. Our Company confirms that it shall not use the
Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any listed company or for any investment in the equity
markets.

Variation in Objects

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without
our Company being authorised to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution. In addition, the notice issued
to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution shall specify the prescribed details as required
under the Companies Act. The notice in respect of such resolution to Shareholders shall simultaneously be published in
the newspapers, one in English and one in Regional language of the jurisdiction where our Registered Office is situated.
The Shareholders who do not agree to the above stated proposal, our Promoter or controlling Shareholders will be
required to provide an exit opportunity to such dissenting Shareholders, at a price as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this
regard.

Other Confirmations / Payment to Promoter and Promoter’s Group from the IPO Proceeds
There are no anticipated transactions in relation to utilization of Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel. No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoter, our

Board of Directors, our Key Management Personnel or Enterprise in which our KMP’s has significant influence except
in the normal course of business in compliance with applicable law.
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BASIS OF ISSUE PRICE

The Issue Price has been determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager on the basis of the key
business strengths. The face value of the Equity Shares is ¥ 10 and Issue Price is X [®] per Equity Shares and is [®] time
of the face value. Investors should read the following basis with the sections titled “Risk Factors”, “Financial
Information” and the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page nos. 23, 154 and 97 respectively, of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus to get a more informed view before making any investment decisions. The trading price of the
Equity Shares of Our Company could decline due to these risk factors and you may lose all or part of your investments.

Quialitative Factors
Some of the qualitative factors and our strengths which form the basis for the Issue Price are:

State of Art manufacturing facilities

Well educated and experienced team of Professionals

Long-term relation with our customers

In-house Research and Development team

Providing critical business solution and manufacturing customised products
Consistent track record of financial performance

ocouprwdE

For more details on qualitative factors, refer to chapter “Our Business” on page no 97 of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Quantitative Factors
The information presented in this section is derived from our Restated Financial Statements. For more details on financial
information, investors please refer the chapter titled “Financial Statements as Restated” on page no. 154 of this Draft

Red Herring Prospectus.

Investors should evaluate our Company taking into consideration its earnings and based on its growth strategy. Some of
the quantitative factors which may form the basis for computing the price are as follows:

1. Basic and Diluted Earnings / Loss Per Share (“EPS”)

Basic & Diluted
Year ended March 31, EPS (in 0 s
2024 12.78 3
2023 0.95 2
2022 4.82 1
Weighted Average 7.51

() Based on Restated Financials of our Company
Notes:

a. Basic EPS has been calculated as per the following formula:

Net profit/ (loss) as restated,attributable to Equity Shareholders

Basic EPS 4 =
( ) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year/period

b. Diluted EPS has been calculated as per the following formula

Net profit/ (loss) as restated,attributable to Equity Shareholders

Diluted EPS () =

Diluted Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year/period

c. Basic and Diluted EPS calculations are in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 “Earnings per Share”, notified
under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of Companies (Accounting) Rules, 2014.
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d. The above statement should be read in conjunction with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Restated
Financial Statements as appearing in “Annexure IV & V - Financial Information” beginning on page no. 154 Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

2. Price Earnings Ratio (“P/E”) in relation to the Price of X[e®] per share of X 10 each

Particulars P/E*
P/E ratio based on Basic and Diluted EPS as at March 31, 2024 [e]
P/E ratio based on Weighted Average EPS [e]
3. Return on Net worth (RoONW)
Year ended March 31, RoNW (%0)® Weight
2024 73.19% 3
2023 20.33% 2
2022 127.49% 1
Weighted Average 64.62%

@ Based on Restated Financials of our Company

Note: Return on Net worth has been calculated as per the following formula:

Net profit/loss after tax,as restated

RoNW =

Net worth excluding preference share capital and revaluation reserve

4. Net Asset Value (NAV) based on actual no. of equity shares at the end of the year

Financial Year NAV ()
NAYV as at March 31, 2024 39.28
NAV after Issue [e]
Issue Price (%) [e]

Note: Net Asset Value has been calculated as per the following formula:

Net worth excluding preference share capital and revaluation reserve

NAV =

Outstanding number of Equity shares at the end of the year
5. Comparison with Industry Peers

Peer Group Comparison of Accounting Ratios:

EPS (]) PE Ratio Revenue
NAV Face from
Particulars CMP* Basic | Diluted | Basic Diluted Rg}:)w per Value | Operations
share®) | ®® Rin
Lakhs)
Ei';n'\i'te ; oo [e]| 1278 | 1278 o] [o] | 73.19% | 39.28 | 10.00 | 13,270.87

Peer Group **

Eveready
Industries India 392.75 | 9.18 9.18 42.78 42,78 | 17.26% 53.21 5.00 1,31,428
Limited
Panasonic
Energy India Co. 556 | 15.52 15.52 35.82 35.82 | 11.33% 137.03 | 10.00 29,242.13
Limited
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EPS (}) PE Ratio Revenue

NAV Face from

Particulars CMP* Basic | Diluted | Basic Diluted R(OOZ)W per Value | Operations
shareR) | in

Lakhs)

High Energy
Batteries (India) 780.75 | 19.14 19.14 40.79 40.79 | 19.56% 97.84 2.00 7,772.51
Limited
Indo National
Limited

567.5 | 12.83 12.83 44.23 4423 | 4.07% | 31491 5.00 64,060.25

* CMP for our Company shall be considered as Issue Price
**Source: www.bseindia.com.

Notes:
(i) The Figures Of CLN Energy Limited (Formerly Known As JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited) Are Based On
Restated Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2024.
(if) Current Market Price (CMP) is the Closing Price of Peer Group Scripts as On July 19, 2022.
(iii) The Figures For The Peer Group Are Based On the Consolidated Audited Financials For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024.

6. The face value of our share is ¥10.00 per share and the Issue Price is of X [e] per share are [e] times of the face
value.

7. The Company in consultation with the Lead Manager believes that the Issue price of Z [e] per share for the Public
Issue is justified in view of the above parameters. The investors may also want to peruse the Risk Factors and
Financials of the Company including important profitability and return ratios, as set out in the Financial Statements
included in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus to have more informed view about the investment proposition. The
Face Value of the Equity Shares is % 10 per share and the Issue Price is [®] times of the face value i.e. X [®] per share.
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

To,

The Board of Directors,

CLN Energy Limited

(Formerly known as JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited)
Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,

Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305, Uttar Pradesh, India.

Dear Sir,

Sub: Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits available to CLN Energy Limited and its shareholders prepared
in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (“SEBI Regulations”) and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act”).

We hereby report that the accompanying Statement states the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and
shareholders of the Company (here in after referred to as “the Statement”) under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (read with
Income Tax Rules, circulars, notifications) presently in force in India (together referred to as the “Direct Tax Laws”),
the Goods and Service Tax laws & Customs Act, 1962 (read with rules, circulars, notifications) presently in force in India
(together referred to as the “Indirect Tax Laws”).

These possible special tax benefits are dependent on the Company and/ or the Company’s shareholders fulfilling the
conditions prescribed under relevant Direct Tax Laws, Indirect Tax Laws and other laws. Hence, the ability of the
Company or the Company’s shareholders to derive these possible special tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling
such conditions, which is based on business imperatives the Company may face in the future and accordingly, the
Company or the Company’s shareholders may or may not choose to fulfill. The Company does not have any subsidiary
as on date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Statement are not exhaustive and only cover the possible special direct and indirect
tax benefits available to the Company and the Company’s shareholders. The Statement is neither designed nor intended
to be a substitute for professional tax advice and each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with
respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public offering of equity
shares of the Company.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether:

a) the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these possible special tax benefits in future; or
b) the conditions prescribed for availing the possible special tax benefits, where applicable, have been/would be met
with; and

The contents of this Statement are based on the information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company
and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are
based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not
assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the “Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes
(Revised 2016)” (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note
requires that we comply with ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.
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We hereby give consent to include this Statement in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus in connection with the proposed
initial public offering of the Company.
Yours faithfully,

For M/s. DGM S & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W

SD/-

Hiren Jayantilal Maru
Proprietor

Membership No. 115279
Date: July 22, 2024
Place: Mumbai

UDIN: 24115279BKBWLG2382
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Annexure to the Statement of Tax Benefits

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND
COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDERS.

Outlined below are the possible special tax benefits available to CLN Energy Limited (“the Company”) and to its
Shareholders under the Direct and Indirect Tax Laws in force in India.

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY

1. Direct Tax

There are no special direct tax benefits available to the Company.

2. Indirect Tax

There are no special indirect tax benefits available to the Company.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
1. Direct Tax

There are no special direct tax benefits available to the Shareholders of the Company.

2. Indirect Tax

There are no special indirect tax benefits available
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SECTION VI -ABOUT OUR COMPANY

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics and has been
derived from various government publications, publicly available documents and industry sources. Neither we nor any
other person connected with the Issue have verified this information. The data may have been re-classified by us for the
purposes of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has
been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying
assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured and, accordingly, investment decisions should
not be based on such information. You should read the entire Prospectus, including the information contained in the
sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Statements” and related notes beginning on page nos 23 and 154 this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus

GLOBAL ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The baseline forecast is for the world economy to continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 and 2025, at the same
pace as in 2023. A slight acceleration for advanced economies where growth is expected to rise from 1.6 percent in 2023
to 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025 will be offset by a modest slowdown in emerging market and developing
economies from 4.3 percent in 2023 to 4.2 percent in both 2024 and 2025. The forecast for global growth five years from
now at 3.1 percent’s is at its lowest in decades. Global inflation is forecast to decline steadily, from 6.8 percent in 2023
to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025, with advanced economies returning to their inflation targets sooner than
emerging market and developing economies. Core inflation is generally projected to decline more gradually.

Global Outlook: Stable but Slow

Global growth, estimated at 3.2 percent in 2023, is projected to continue at the same pace in 2024and 2025. The projection
for 2024 is revised up by 0.1 percentage point from the January 2024 WEO Update, and by 0.3 percentage point with
respect to the October 2023 WEO forecast .Nevertheless, the projection for global growth in 2024 and 2025 is below the
historical (2000-19) annual average of 3.8 percent, reflecting restrictive monetary policies and withdrawal of fiscal
support, as well as low underlying productivity growth. Advanced economies are expected to see growth rise slightly,
with the increase mainly reflecting a recovery in the euro area from low growth in 2023, whereas emerging market and
developing economies are expected to experience stable growth through 2024 and 2025, with regional differences.

Disinflation amid Economic Resilience

Economic activity was surprisingly resilient during the global disinflation of 2022-23. Growth in employment and
incomes has held steady as favorable demand and supply developments have supported major economies, despite rising
central bank interest rates aimed at restoring price stability. As inflation converges toward target levels and central banks
pivot toward policy easing, a tightening of fiscal policies aimed at curbing high government debt levels, with higher taxes
and lower government spending, is expected to weigh on growth. The pace of expansion is also expected to remain low
by historical standards as a result of factors including the long-term consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic, Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine, weak growth in productivity, and increasing geoeconomic fragmentation.

In late 2023, headline inflation neared its pre pandemic level in most economies for the first time since the start of the
global inflation surge. In the last quarter of 2023, headline inflation for advanced economies was 2.3 percent on a quarter-
over-quarter annualized basis, down from a peak of 9.5 percent in the second quarter of 2022. For emerging market and
developing economies, inflation was 9.9 percent in the last quarter of 2023, down from a peak of 13.7 percent in the first
quarter of 2022, but this average was driven by high inflation in a few countries; for the median emerging market and
developing economy, inflation declined to 3.9 percent. This progress notwithstanding, inflation is not yet at target in most
economies.

(Source: https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2024/04/16/world-economic-outlook-april-2024)
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World Economic Outlook
Growth Projections

PROJECTIONS

(Real GDP, annual percent change) 2023 2024 2025
World Output 3.2 3.2 3.2
Advanced Economies 1.6 1.7 1.8
United States 2.5 2.7 1.9
Euro Area 0.4 0.8 1.5
Germany -0.3 0.2 1.3
France 0.9 0.7 1.4
Italy 0.9 0.7 0.7
Spain 2.5 1.9 o d |
Japan 1.9 0.9 1.0
United Kingdom 0.1 0.5 1.5
Canada 1.1 1.2 23
Other Advanced Economies 1.8 2.0 24
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 4.3 4.2 4.2
Emerging and Developing Asia 5.6 5.2 4.9
China 5.2 4.6 4.1
India 7.8 6.8 6.5
Emerging and Developing Europe 3.2 3.1 2.8
Russia 3.6 3.2 1.8
Latin America and the Caribbean 2.3 2.0 25
Brazil 2.9 2.2 2.1
Mexico 3.2 2.4 1.4
Middle East and Central Asia 2.0 2.8 4.2
Saudi Arabia -0.8 2.6 6.0
Sub-Saharan Africa 3.4 3.8 4.0
Nigeria 2.9 3.3 3.0
South Africa 0.6 0.9 1.2
Memorandum
Emerging Market and Middle-Income Economies 4.4 4.1 4.1
Low-Income Developing Countries 4.0 4.7 5.2

Source: IMF, World Economic Outlook, April 2024
Note: For India, data and forecasts are presented on a fiscal year basis, with FY 2023/24 (starting in

April 2023) shown in the 2023 column. India's growth projections are 6.9 percent in 2024 and 6.5 percent
in 2025 based on calendar year.

INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND IMF.org

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest economy
after it recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP or GDP at Current Prices in the year 2023-24 is
estimated at Rs. 293.90 lakh crores (US$ 3.52 trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year
2022-23 of Rs. 269.50 lakh crores (US$ 3.23 trillion). The growth in nominal GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 9.1%
as compared to 14.2% in 2022-23. Strong domestic demand for consumption and investment, along with Government’s
continued emphasis on capital expenditure are seen as among the key driver of the GDP in the first half of FY24. During
the period January-March 2024, India’s exports stood at US$ 119.10 billion, with Engineering Goods (25.01%),
Petroleum Products (17.88%) and Organic and Inorganic Chemicals (7.65%) being the top three exported commaodity.
Rising employment and increasing private consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP
growth in the coming months.
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Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy,
the streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the
digitization of tax filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and asset-building projects is
set to increase growth multipliers. The contact-based services sector has demonstrated promise to boost growth by
unleashing the pent-up demand. The sector's success is being captured by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators)
that are performing well, indicating the beginnings of a comeback.

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic
powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current period of
global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-focused funds in 2022 are
evidence of investor faith in the "Invest in India" narrative.

Market Size
India's Gross Domestic Production
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Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated at Rs. 172.90 lakh crores (US$ 2.07
trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 160.71 lakh crores (US$ 1.92
trillion). The growth in real GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 7.6% as compared to 7.0% in 2022-23. There are 113
unicorn startups in India, with a combined valuation of over US$ 350 billion. As many as 14 tech startups are expected
to list in 2024 Fintech sector poised to generate the largest number of future unicorns in India. With India presently has
the third-largest unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 40% of
its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country's ambition of Net Zero Emissions
by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the renewable energy country
attractive index.

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million
non-farm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net employment rate
needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between same time periods. India’s
current account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 1.2% of GDP in the October-December quarter. The CAD stood at US$ 10.5
billion for the third quarter of 2023-24 compared to US$ 11.4 billion or 1.3% of GDP in the preceding quarter. This was
largely due to higher service exports.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam

in terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of
India’s trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer
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Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles Mr. Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion
by 2030.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the
economic activity. With an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the Covid-
19 pandemic shock, several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the economy.
According to World Bank, India must continue to priorities lowering inequality while also putting growth-oriented
policies into place to boost the economy. In view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the
recent past. Some of them are mentioned below.

e According to HSBC Flash India PMI report, business activity surged in April to its highest level in about 14
years as well as sustained robust demand. The composite index reached 62.2, indicating continuous expansion
since August 2021, alongside positive job growth and decreased input inflation, affirming India's status as the
fastest-growing major economy.

o Asof April 12, 2024, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 643.162 billion.

e In 2023, India saw a total of US$ 49.8 billion in PE-VC investments.

e Merchandise exports in March 2024 stood at US$ 41.68 billion, with total merchandise exports of US$ 437.06
billion during the period of April 2023 to March 2024.

e India was also named as the 48th most innovative country among the top 50 countries, securing 40th position
out of 132 economies in the Global Innovation Index 2023. India rose from 81st position in 2015 to 40th position
in 2023. India ranks 3rd position in the global number of scientific publications.

e In March 2024, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) stood at second highest monthly revenue collection at
Rs.1.78 lakh crore (US$ 21.35 billion), of which CGST is Rs. 34,532 crore (US$ 4.14 billion), SGST is Rs.
43,746 crore (US$ 5.25 billion).

e  Between April 2000-December 2023, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US$ 971.52 billion.

e In February 2024, the overall 1IP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 147.2. The Indices of Industrial
Production for the mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 139.6, 144.5 and 187.1, respectively,
in February 2024.

e According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s
Consumer Price Index (CPI) based retail inflation reached 5.69% in December 2023.

e  Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) inflows between April-July (2023-24) were close to Rs. 80,500 crore (US$
9.67 billion), while Domestic Institutional Investors (DII) sold Rs. 4,500 crore (US$ 540.56 million) in the same
period. As per depository data, Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) invested (US$ 8.06 billion) in India during
January-April 2024.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation's economy. The Indian
government has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve
their financial stability but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades, India's rapid economic
growth has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of the government's flagship
programmes, including make in India, Start-up India, Digital India, the Smart City Mission, and the Atal Mission for
Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating immense opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the
initiatives taken by the government to improve the economic condition of the country are mentioned below:

e In February 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs.
47,65,768 crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27
billion).

e On January 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced the 'Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana'.
Under this scheme, 1 crore households will receive rooftop solar installations.

e On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM-
VISHWAKARMA in New Delhi. The new scheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support to
traditional artisans & craftsmen who work with their hands and basic tools. This initiative is designed to enhance
the quality, scale, and reach of their products, as well as to integrate them with MSME value chains.

e On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway stations
across the nation. This scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-term vision.

e On June 28, 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forests, and Climate Change introduced the ‘Draft Carbon
Credit Trading Scheme, 2023°.
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e From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support the
philosophy of ‘Atma Nirbhar Bharat’ and ‘Local goes Global’.

e On October 7, 2022, the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) launched Credit
Guarantee Scheme for Start-ups (CGSS) aiming to provide credit guarantees up to a specified limit by start-ups,
facilitated by Scheduled Commercial Banks, Non-Banking Financial Companies and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) registered Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs).

e Telecom Technology Development Fund (TTDF) Scheme was launched in October 2022 by the Universal
Service Obligation Fund (USOF), a body under the Department of Telecommunications. The objective is to
fund R&D in rural-specific communication technology applications and form synergies among academia, start-
ups, research institutes, and the industry to build and develop the telecom ecosystem.

e InJuly 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) approved international trade settlements in Indian rupees (Rs.) to
promote the growth of global trade with emphasis on exports from India and to support the increasing interest
of the global trading community.

e In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated and laid the foundation stone of development
projects worth Rs. 21,000 crore (US$ 2.63 billion) at Gujarat Gaurav Abhiyan at VVadodara.

e Mr. Rajnath Singh, Minister of Defense, launched 75 newly developed Artificial Intelligence (Al)
products/technologies during the first-ever ‘Al in Defense’ (AIDef) symposium and exhibition organized by the
Ministry of Defense in New Delhi on July 11, 2022.

o Asof April 2022, India signed 13 Free Trade Agreements (FTAS) with its trading partners including major trade
agreements like the India-UAE Comprehensive Partnership Agreement (CEPA) and the India-Australia
Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreement (IndAus ECTA).

e The Union Budget of 2022-23 was presented on February 1, 2022, by the Minister for Finance & Corporate
Affairs, Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman. The budget had four priorities PM GatiShakti, Inclusive Development,
Productivity Enhancement and Investment, and Financing of Investments. In the Union Budget 2022-23,
effective capital expenditure is expected to increase by 27% at Rs. 10.68 trillion (US$ 142.93 billion) to boost
the economy. This will be 4.1% of the total Gross Domestic Production (GDP).

e  Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI) was launched in March 2022 by the Ministry of Chemicals &
Fertilisers to provide credit linked capital and interest subsidy for Technology Upgradation of MSME units in
pharmaceutical sector, as well as support of up to Rs. 20 crore (US$ 2.4 million) each for common facilities
including Research centre, testing labs and ETPs (Effluent Treatment Plant) in Pharma Clusters, to enhance the
role of MSMEs.

e Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highways
network, which will be worth Rs. 20,000 crore (US$ 2.67 billion). In 2022-23. Increased government
expenditure is expected to attract private investments, with a production-linked incentive scheme providing
excellent opportunities. Consistently proactive, graded, and measured policy support is anticipated to boost the
Indian economy.

e In February 2022, Minister for Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman said that productivity
linked incentive (PLI) schemes would be extended to 14 sectors to achieve the mission of Atma Nirbhar Bharat
and create 60 lakh jobs with an additional production capacity of Rs. 30 trillion (US$ 401.49 billion) in the next
five years.

e In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced funding for the production-linked incentive (PLI)
scheme for domestic solar cells and module manufacturing of Rs. 24,000 crore (US$ 3.21 billion).

e In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced a production-linked incentive (PLI) scheme for
Bulk Drugs which was an investment of Rs. 2,500 crore (US$ 334.60 million).

e In the Union Budget of 2022, Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced
that a scheme for design-led manufacturing in 5G would be launched as part of the PLI scheme.

(Source: https://www.ibef.org/economy/indian-economy-overview)

LITHIUM-ION BATTERY MARKET SIZE & TRENDS: GLOBAL OVERVIEW

The global lithium-ion battery market size was estimated at USD 54.4 billion in 2023 and is projected to register a
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 20.3% from 2024 to 2030. Automotive sector is expected to witness significant
growth owing to the low cost of lithium-ion batteries. Global registration of electric vehicles (EVS) is anticipated to
increase significantly over the forecast period. The U.S. emerged as the largest market in North America in 2023.
Increasing EV sales in the country owing to supportive federal policies coupled with the presence of several players in
the U.S. market are expected to drive product demand. Federal policies include the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act of 2009, which established tax credits for purchasing electric vehicles.
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U.S. Lithium-ion Battery Market BE9Y9E
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New Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards mandated fuel economy standards for passenger cars and Light
Commercial Vehicles (LCVs) resulting in the expansion of electric drive technologies. Increasing product demand in
smartphones owing to their extended shelf life and enhanced efficiency is expected to drive market growth. The
increasing demand for EVs owing to growing consumer awareness about carbon emissions is expected to fuel market
growth. A decline in the demand for lead-acid batteries, owing to EPA regulations on lead contamination and resulting
environmental hazards coupled with regulations on lead-acid battery storage, disposal, and recycling, has led to an
increase in the demand for Li-ion batteries in automobiles. Mexico has been a centre of the global automotive industry
as companies worldwide are eyeing to invest here.

Mexico is the fourth-largest exporter in automotive industry, after Germany, Japan, and South Korea. Growing
automobile production in the country is anticipated to drive product demand. The COVID-19 pandemic has been a major
restraint to market growth owing to several factors including reduced operational cost by end-users, coupled with
disruption in the availability of spare parts due to sluggish manufacturing activities and logistics issues. Battery providers
have taken subsequent steps to ensure efficient services to end-users that have signed long-term contracts with them.
Vendors are opting for digital tools and are following prescribed preventative measures including social distancing norms
and the use of protective kits in case of an on-site inspection and repair services required by end-users on a case-to-case
basis.

Application Insights

Based on applications, the market has been segmented into automotive, consumer electronics, industrial, medical devices,
and energy storage systems. The consumer electronics segment led the market in 2023 and accounted for the largest
revenue share of more than 31.0%. Portable batteries are incorporated in portable devices and consumer electronic
products. Applications of portable batteries range from mobile phones, laptops, computers, tablets, torches or flashlights,
LED lighting, vacuum cleaners, digital cameras, wristwatches, calculators, hearing aids, and other wearable devices. The
electric & hybrid EV market is projected to be the fastest-growing application segment over the forecast period.
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Global Lithium-ion Battery Market BE9Y9E
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Growing awareness about the benefits of battery-operated vehicles and increasing fossil fuel prices, particularly in
emerging regions like Asia Pacific, Europe, and North America, is projected to favor the segment growth. Li-ion batteries
are also utilized for providing backup power supply for commercial buildings, data centers, and institutions. Also,
lithium-ion battery is preferred for energy storage in residential solar PV systems. These factors will boost the growth of
energy storage applications over the forecast period. Li-ion batteries are used in numerous industrial applications, such
as power tools, cordless tools, marine equipment & machinery, agricultural machinery, industrial automation systems,
aviation, military & defense, electronics, civil infrastructure, and oil & gas.

Regional Insights

Asia Pacific held the largest market share of over 47.0% in 2023. The market in Europe is expected to witness steady
growth over the forecast period owing to the increasing use of li-ion batteries in various sectors including medical,
aerospace & defense, automotive, energy storage, and data communication & telecom. The market in Germany is
expected to witness steady growth over the forecast period owing to the increasing use of Li-ion batteries in energy
storage systems, EVs, and consumer electronics.

Lithium-ion Battery Market BEY9E

Trends, by Region, 2024 - 2030 GRAMND VIEW RESEARCH
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Germany is the world’s leading market for energy storage systems as well as the development of renewable energies.
Rapidly growing market for electric vehicles in Asia Pacific countries, such as India and China, is one of the major factors
that is positively influencing the demand for Li-ion batteries. Rise in environmental concerns in China have resulted in
the ban on conventional fossil fuel-powered scooters from all its major cities to reduce emission, leading to an increase
in the sales of e-scooters.

Market Dynamics

The increasing adoption of electric vehicles (EVSs) is catalyzing a remarkable surge in the global lithium-ion battery
industry. As governments and industries worldwide prioritize the transition toward sustainable and environment-friendly
transportation, the demand for EV's has experienced a substantial upswing. Lithium-ion batteries, renowned for their high
energy density and efficiency, have emerged as the cornerstone of this automotive revolution. These batteries power
electric vehicles, providing them with the necessary range and performance to compete with traditional internal
combustion engine vehicles.

Lithium-ion battery industry is consequently witnessing unprecedented growth, fueled by pivotal role these batteries play
in addressing both environmental concerns and the need for reliable energy storage solutions in automotive sector. This
trend is poised to reshape the energy landscape, with lithium-ion batteries at the forefront of powering a cleaner and more
sustainable future for transportation.

Rising demand for substitutes, including sodium nickel chloride batteries, lithium-air flow batteries, lead acid batteries,
and solid-state batteries, in electric vehicles, energy storage, and consumer electronics is expected to restrain the growth
of the lithium-ion battery industry over the forecast period. Lithium-air refers to the usage of oxygen as an oxidizer rather
than a material. Result is that batteries are five times cheaper and lighter than lithium-ion and can make phones and cars
last five times longer.

Moreover, the rising demand for flow batteries is likely to restrain growth of lithium-ion battery industry over the forecast
period. Demand for sodium-nickel-chloride batteries is growing because their components, such as aluminum oxide,
sodium chloride, and nickel, are readily available in the market and are less expensive to manufacture compared to
lithium-ion batteries, which again is expected to hamper its market growth.

Product Insights

Based on products, the industry has been segregated into Lithium Cobalt Oxide (LCO), Lithium Iron Phosphate (LFP),
Lithium Nickel Cobalt Aluminium Oxide (NCA), Lithium Manganese Oxide (LMO), Lithium Titanate, and Lithium
Nickel Manganese Cobalt (NMC). In terms of revenue, the LCO segment accounted for the largest market share of over
30.0% in 2023. High demand for LCO batteries in mobile phones, tablets, laptops, and cameras, on account of their high
energy density and high safety level, is expected to augment segment growth over the forecast period. LFP batteries offer
excellent safety and a long-life span to product.

Rising demand for lithium iron phosphate batteries in portable and stationary applications is expected to augment industry
growth as they require high load currents and endurance. The rising demand for NCA on account of its high specific
energy, specific power, and long-life span is expected to augment segment growth over the forecast period. NCA finds
use in EV vehicles, medical devices, and industrial applications. Increasing consumption of lithium titanate in various
applications including electric powertrains, streetlights, UPS, and solar-powered street lighting is likely to fuel segment
growth over coming years. LTO offers various properties including safety, low-temperature performance, and high life-
span, which is expected to increase its share over the forecast period.

(Source: https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/lithium-ion-battery-market)

MANUFACTURING SECTOR IN INDIA INDUSTRY REPORT

Manufacturing is emerging as an integral pillar in the country’s economic growth, thanks to the performance of key
sectors like automotive, engineering, chemicals, pharmaceuticals, and consumer durables. The Indian manufacturing
industry generated 16-17% of India’s GDP pre-pandemic and is projected to be one of the fastest growing sectors.

The machine tool industry was literally the nuts and bolts of the manufacturing industry in India. Today, technology has
stimulated innovation with digital transformation a key aspect in gaining an edge in this highly competitive market.

Technology has today encouraged creativity, with digital transformation being a critical element in gaining an advantage

in this increasingly competitive industry. The Indian manufacturing sector is steadily moving toward more automated
and process-driven manufacturing, which is projected to improve efficiency and enhance productivity.
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India has the capacity to export goods worth US$ 1 trillion by 2030 and is on the road to becoming a major global
manufacturing hub.

With 17% of the nation’s GDP and over 27.3 million workers, the manufacturing sector plays a significant role in the
Indian economy. Through the implementation of different programmes and policies, the Indian government hopes to
have 25% of the economy’s output come from manufacturing by 2025.

India now has the physical and digital infrastructure to raise the share of the manufacturing sector in the economy and
make a realistic bid to be an important player in global supply chains.

A globally competitive manufacturing sector is India's greatest potential to drive economic growth and job creation this
decade. Due to factors like power growth, long-term employment prospects, and skill routes for millions of people, India
has a significant potential to engage in international markets. Several factors contribute to their potential. First off, these
value chains are well positioned to benefit from India's advantages in terms of raw materials, industrial expertise, and
entrepreneurship.

Second, they can take advantage of four market opportunities: expanding exports, localising imports, internal demand,
and contract manufacturing. With digital transformation being a crucial component in achieving an advantage in this
fiercely competitive industry, technology has today sparked creativity. Manufacturing sector in India is gradually shifting
to a more automated and process driven manufacturing which is expected to increase the efficiency and boost production
of the manufacturing industry.

India is gradually progressing on the road to Industry 4.0 through the Government of India’s initiatives like the National
Manufacturing Policy which aims to increase the share of manufacturing in GDP to 25 percent by 2025 and the PLI
scheme for manufacturing which was launched in 2022 to develop the core manufacturing sector at par with global
manufacturing standards.

India is planning to offer incentives of up to Rs. 18,000 crore (US$ 2.2 billion) to spur local manufacturing in six new
sectors including chemicals, shipping containers, and inputs for vaccines.

India's mobile phone manufacturing industry anticipates creating 150,000 to 250,000 direct and indirect jobs within the
next 12-16 months, driven by government incentives, and increased global demand. Major players like Apple and its
contract manufacturers, along with Dixon Technologies, are expanding their workforce to meet growing production
needs.

MARKET SIZE

Manufacturing exports have registered their highest ever annual exports of US$ 447.46 billion with 6.03% growth during
FY23 surpassing the previous year (FY22) record exports of US$ 422 billion. By 2030, Indian middle class is expected
to have the second-largest share in global consumption at 17%.

India’s gross value added (GVA) at current prices was estimated at US$ 770.08 billion as per the quarterly estimates of
the first quarter of FY24.

India's GDP surged by 8.4% in the October-December quarter, surpassing expectations. GDP growth was driven by
robust performances in the manufacturing and construction sectors, with the manufacturing sector expanding by 11.6%
annually and the construction sector growing by 9.5%.

India has potential to become a global manufacturing hub and by 2030, it can add more than US$ 500 billion annually to
the global economy. As per the economic survey reports, estimated employment in manufacturing sector in India was
5.7 crore in 2017-18, 6.12 crore in 2018-19 which was further increased to 6.24 crore in 2019-20. India's display panel
market is estimated to grow from ~US$ 7 billion in 2021 to US$ 15 billion in 2025.

The manufacturing GVA at current prices was estimated at US$ 110.48 billion in the first quarter of FY24
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Capacity Utilisation in Manufacturing Sector (in %)
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(Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/manufacturing-sector-india)

LITHIUM-ION BATTERY (LIB) MANUFACTURING INDUSTRY IN INDIA

Energy storage technologies are predicted to play a major part in the decarbonization of the electricity and transport
sectors, which accounted for 49% of India's total greenhouse gas emissions (CO2 equivalent) in 2016. Among the several
energy storage technologies available, lithium-ion batteries are anticipated to dominate the market during the upcoming
decade (2021 onwards). Peak electricity demand would rise to 334 gigawatts (GW) by fiscal year 2030, with a total
electricity generating need of 2,229 Billing units (BU). Thus, decarbonization of the electricity and transport industries
is crucial to combating climate change. India unveiled its ambitious national goals for 2030 at the COP 26 UN Climate
Change Conference, which include increasing its non-fossil energy capacity to 500 GW by 2030, obtaining 50% of its
electricity needs from renewable sources by 2030, limiting projected carbon emissions by one billion tonnes, and
lowering its economy's carbon intensity of its economy by less than 45% by 2030. In India, the lithium-ion battery
business is anticipated to experience exponential growth over the next five years (2022 onwards), and the recycling
market of these batteries is estimated to be nearly 22-23 GWh in 2030. The lithium-ion battery industry in India is
predicted to grow from 2.9 gigawatt hour (GWh) in 2018 to about 132 GWh by 2030 (at a CAGR of 35.5%).

Advanced chemistry cell (ACC) batteries are the foundation of future low-carbon transportation and energy systems.
With assistance from government initiatives on the supply and demand sides, India's domestic ACC battery
manufacturing business is growing significantly. Critical minerals supply chains, including lithium, cobalt, nickel, and
spherical graphite refining for active materials, are critical to achieving local value addition in the fabrication of ACC
battery electrodes. The discovery of the country's first lithium reserve in Jammu and Kashmir, as well as another
significant reserve in Degana, Rajasthan, opens up a major prospect for local lithium production. According to the
Geological Survey of India (GSI) and mining officials, the lithium deposits in these reserves are large enough to supply
nearly 80% of India's overall demand.

Lithium-ion battery (LIB) manufacturing industry

The cumulative demand for energy storage in India of 903 GWh by 2030, which is divided across many technologies
such as lithium-ion batteries, redox flow batteries, and solid-state batteries. The lithium-ion battery market in India is
expected to grow at a CAGR of 50% from 20 GWh in 2022 to 220 GWh by 2030. The current focus of Indian enterprises
is on battery cell manufacture. However, as more cell manufacturing units are commissioned in India, the upstream
process will most likely be the next priority area. These industries include graphite anode and cathode active material
manufacture, as well as electrolyte, separator, and current collector manufacturing. These batteries are used in mobile
phones, laptop computers, and other similar devices, and their shape and size vary depending on the application.

India can minimise its dependency on imports and assist in increasing resilience in global supply chains by localising the
mining and refining value chain of essential minerals. India has joined the US-led Mineral Security Partnership (MSP)
to help strengthen crucial mineral supply chains. The collaboration intends to speed up the establishment of varied and
sustainable essential mineral supply chains. In addition, government-to-government (G2G) discussions for cooperative
exploration and mining are progressing with friendly nations. The Indian government established KABIL to secure a
steady supply of crucial and strategic minerals through G2G negotiation and the acquisition of mining assets abroad.

92


https://www.ibef.org/industry/manufacturing-sector-india

CL 4 /ENERG Y

India battery demand outlook (conservative scenario)
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Lithium-ion batteries are electrochemical energy storage systems in which lithium ions serve as a charge carrier between
electrodes. The chemistry used for a certain application is determined by a number of parameters, including cost, energy
density, cycle life, and the charging rate necessary for the application. Lithium-ion batteries can be classified into the
following categories based on battery chemistry (Active Materials):

Lithium Cobalt Oxide (LCO) (LiCoQO2)

It has a layered structure for ion mobility with a graphite carbon anode and a cobalt oxide cathode. The Li-cobalt battery’s
high specific energy makes it applicable for consumer electronics, such as digital cameras, mobile phones, and laptops.

Lithium Manganese Oxide (LMO) (LiMn204)
It creates a three-dimensional spinel structure to increase safety and stability while lowering internal resistance and
improving current handling and ion flow. Newer Li-manganese designs have been successful in improving battery

longevity, safety, and specific power. It is applicable for medical devices, portable power tools, hybrid and electric
vehicles, and powertrains.

Lithium Nickel Manganese Cobalt Oxide (NMC) (LiNiMnCo02)

An NMC battery contains one of the most successful nickel-manganese-cobalt cathode combinations. An NMC battery,
also referred to as CMN, MNC, and MCN, can function as either an energy cell or a power cell. It is mainly used in e-
bikes, EVs, medical devices, and industrial.

Lithium Iron Phosphate (LFP) (LiFePO4)

Rechargeable lithium batteries were created using one of the well-known battery materials when phosphate was
discovered to be a cathode material in 1996. It performs effectively in a sequence of four cells that generates a voltage
similar to that of a series of six lead-acid cells. It is mainly used in stationary applications with high endurance.

Lithium Nickel Cobalt Aluminium Oxide (LiNiCoAIO2)

NCA batteries are extensively utilised in EV powertrains due to their high specific energy, excellent specific power, and
reasonably long lifespan. It is applicable for EVs, electric powertrains, medical devices, and industrial.
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Lithium Titanate (LTO) (Li2TiO3)

One of the best-performing and safest Li-ion batteries is the lithium-titanate battery. When charging at low temperatures
and fast charging, an LTO battery exhibits zero strain and does not generate an SEI (Solid Electrolyte Interface) layer or
lithium plating, as opposed to a normal cobalt-blended Li-ion battery. It is applicable in aerospace and military equipment,
EVs, electric powertrains, solar-powered street lighting, telecommunications systems, and UPS.
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A lithium-ion battery is made up of many modules, each of which is made up of several constituent cells - the basic
electrochemical units. In a lithium-ion cell, the cathode active material and anode active material are deposited onto thin
metal foils known as current collectors. The cathode is made of aluminium foil, whereas the graphite anode is made of
copper foil. To allow the passage of lithium ions, a liquid electrolyte is positioned between the electrodes. This electrolyte
is typically composed of lithium salts and a solvent. A separator membrane (made of a specially produced polymer, such
as high-density polyethylene or polyolefin) is necessary to physically separate the two electrodes while enabling ions to
pass through unhindered.

Cell Form

E Image Details

Cylindrical cells are made by rolling lengthy foils of electrode and separator layers into a
multi-layered cylindrical jelly roll and wrapping this roll in a protective casing of nickel-coated
steel. These cells have a high mechanical stability and are perfect for mass production. This
form factor was previously the most prevalent, and because of its small size, it is suited for
chemistries with higher safety risks. These cells have insufficient packing density. Because
of its adaptability, cylindrical cells are widely employed in a variety of applications, including
mobility and stationary storage, as well as power tools.

Cylindrical

The packing density of prismatic cells is substantially higher than that of cylindrical cells.
They can alse be substantially larger than their cylindrical counterparts, which increases
their energy density even further. The electrodes and separators are rolled and fitted in a
prismatic aluminium box. This space efficiency occasionally comes at a cost; prismatic cells
are normally larger, which might raise concems about safety and maintenance expenses
Prismatic cells are preferred for mobile and stationary storage applications

Prismatic

Pouch cells are made by stacking different electrode and separator layers. The stacked
layers are then sealed inside a pouch made of flexible aluminium foil. Pouch cells are lighter
Pouch -l y than their counterparts, yet they are prone to swelling and require additional support
‘-""'\-' structures for protection. Pouch cells are used in any application where packing efficiency
and weight are important considerations. They are most commeonly found in consumer
gadgets.
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The Lithium-lon Cell Manufacturing Process
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Government initiatives

FAME-II Scheme

The Faster Adoption and Manufacturing of (Hybrid &) Electric Vehicles (FAME) initiative was introduced as part of
this strategy in 2015. The Ministry of Heavy Industries has been implementing the (FAME India) Scheme Phase-11 for a
five-year period beginning April 1st, 2019, with a total budgetary support of Rs. 10,000 crore (US$ 1.20 billion). This
phase primarily focuses on boosting the electrification of public and shared transport, with the goal of supporting 7,090
eBuses, 5,00,000 e-3 Wheelers, 55,000 e-4 Wheeler Passenger Cars and 10,00,000 e-2 Wheelers through demand
incentives. The budget includes funds for the construction of charging stations as well as up-front incentives to lower the

cost of purchasing vehicles.
Production Linked Incentives (PLIs) for Advance Chemistry Cells (ACC)

The government has invested around US$ 2.5 billion in this incentive scheme, which seeks to establish a local
manufacturing capacity of 50 GWh of ACC and 5 GWh of niche ACC capacity (planned). The programme intends to
improve exports and generate economies of scale, helping big domestic and international manufacturers develop a
competitive ACC battery production in India. To receive incentives under the programme, the government has
agreements in place with three bidders, namely Reliance New Energy Solar, Ola Electric, and Rajesh Exports.

Union Budget 2023

Basic customs duty exemption on the importation of machinery used in the manufacture of lithium-ion batteries used in

EVs, as well as vehicle parts and subsystems.
»  Customs duty on lithium-ion batteries is being reduced from 21% to 13%.

Concessional basic customs taxes are being extended for electric vehicles and hybrid batteries.
Additional funding has been allocated to support the recycling of old vehicles.
The emphasis is on promoting the production of green hydrogen and biogas.

YV V V

Battery Waste Management Rules
The Ministry of Environment, Forest, and Climate Change published the Battery Waste Management Rules in 2022 to

ensure that battery waste is handled in an environmentally responsible manner.

The regulations stimulate the establishment of new firms and entrepreneurship in the collection, recycling, and repair of
spent batteries. By demanding a minimum degree of material recovery from used batteries in the recommendations, new
technologies, investments, and business opportunities will be brought to the recycling and refurbishment sector.

MeitY created technology as a part of the "Centre of Excellence on E-waste management" established at the Centre for

Material for Electronics Technology (C-MET) in Hyderabad in partnership with the Government of Telangana and
business partner M/s Greenko Energies Private Ltd., Hyderabad.
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Battery Swapping Policy (Draft)

In order to improve the efficient and effective use of resources (public funds, land, and raw materials for advanced cell
batteries) for the provision of customer-centric services, NITI Aayog designed the draft of the battery swapping policy.
EVs with swappable batteries are eligible for the same incentives as electric vehicles with fixed batteries installed from
the factory. According to the proposed legislation, the size of the incentive would be determined by the kwWh rating of
the battery and compatible EV.

Road Ahead

There is a limited supply of lithium, nickel, cobalt, and manganese precursors, which are all key raw elements needed in
the synthesis of active cathode materials for lithium-ion batteries. By 2030, India's LIB cell manufacturing industry will
require 193 thousand tonnes of cathode active material, 98 thousand tonnes of anode active material, 91 thousand tonnes
of aluminium, 41 thousand tonnes of copper, and 8 thousand tonnes of LiPF6 electrolyte material to produce 100 GWh
of batteries. With almost non-existent infrastructure throughout the supply chain and minimal deployment expertise, India
must establish greater control over the lithium-ion battery supply chain. Energy storage systems are expected to play a
major part in global decarbonization, resulting in an exponential growth in demand. India should make an effort to
become a manufacturing powerhouse in addition to trying to satisfy home demand through domestic production. The
availability of minerals at reasonable rates will be important to global competitiveness. India's foreign policy must adapt
to changing trends and prioritise strategic initiatives in key regions. A concentrated effort on R&D, process optimisation,
and recycling can help to lessen the requirement to import cell components from other nations. Academia must
immediately begin developing courses and curricula to satisfy the expanding employment demands.
(Source:https://www.ibef.org/blogs/lithium-ion-battery-lib-manufacturing-industry-in-
india#:~:text=The%20lithium%2Dion%20battery%20industry,carbon%20transportation%20and%20energy%20syste
ms.)
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OUR BUSINESS

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information of our Company used in this section has been derived from our Restated
Financial Information. We have included various operational and financial performance indicators in this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, many of which may not be derived from our Restated Financial Information or otherwise be subject
to an examination, audit or review by our auditors or any other expert. Some of the information in this section, including
information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain forward — looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. You should read the section entitled “Forward Looking Statements” on page of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, and the section entitled “Risk
Factors” on page 23 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus for a discussion of certain risks that may affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

OVERVIEW

Our Company, CLN Energy Limited has been incorporated on October 01, 2019 with a vision to manufacture products
that reduces the carbon emission and commits to sustainability. Our company is engaged in the manufacturing of
customized Lithium-ion Batteries, motors and deals in powertrain components of electric vehicles such as controllers,
throttles, DC-DC converters, display, differential etc. Our company offers B2B solutions for both mobility applications
such as electric two, three and four wheelers, including traction application as well as stationary applications such as
solar, ESS, and telecommunications, Our Company also offers unique and customised solutions for various applications
wherein lithium-ion battery packs are used. We sell Lithium-ion Battery Packs, motors and powertrain components under

CL)¢
the /N ENERGY -, brand. Revenue generated from mobility, stationary application and powertrain components
are as follows:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY?21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %

E-Mobility 8,081.48 73.69% 9,866.78 88.50% 10,757.10 88.69%
Stationary Applications 2,601.42 23.72% 1,227.65 10.97% 1,317.97 10.72%
Powertrain and other components 283.81 2.59% 59.86 0.54% 53.98 0.60%
Total Revenue from sale 10,966.71| 100.00% | 11,151.41 100.00% | 12,129.05| 100.00%
of products

Our Company derives revenue from manufacturing, trading and service business details of which are as below:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY 21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Manufacturing 8,936.32 67.51% 5,398.17 41.98% 2,762.35 22.73%
Trading 2,029.89 15.33% 5,753.24 44.74% 9,366.70 77.07%
Service Income 2,270.37 17.15% 1,706.49 13.27% 24.05 0.20%
Revenue from Operations ;4,7 08 | 100,009 12,857.90 | 100.00% 1215310 |  100.00%
(excl operating income)

Presently, our company operates two manufacturing facilities, one located in Noida, Uttar Pradesh, and the other in Pune,
Maharashtra. Our facilities in Noida and Pune span 42,000 sg. ft and 21,000 sq. ft, respectively, and are equipped with
the latest technology. We manufacture lithium-ion battery packs for both mobility and stationary applications. Our current
installed manufacturing setup has a Cell Grading Capacity of 168 MWH per annum, Cell Sorting capacity of 358 MWH
per annum, manufacturing capacity of 130 MWH per annum, and Battery testing capacity of 72 MWH per annum for
two-wheeler batteries, which is the combined capacity of both Noida and Pune facilities. For batteries other than two-
wheelers, our facility has a Cell Grading Capacity of 41 MWH per annum, Cell Sorting capacity of 110 MWH per annum,
manufacturing capacity of 115 MWH per annum, and Battery testing capacity of 41 MWH per annum. Additionally, our
Noida facility has an installed capacity of 60,000 motors per annum.

Our company has in-house R&D capabilities to design and integrate the various powertrain and power systems to offer
the complete solution for mobility and energy storage application like UPS, Telecom etc. With the use of lithium-ion
batteries along with high efficiency DC power systems, intelligent energy management, remote operation and
management, it can help our customers to achieve cost savings, reduced carbon emission for green environment and
better insights of their product.

97



CL / /ENERGY

Our highly efficient products manufactured are outcome of focused design, customer feedback and future needs of
mobility & stationary applications. We also provide solution approach where our R&D team focus on customizations to
fulfil customer requirements. We believe our quality products, internationally recognized manufacturing facilities with
ISO certifications, and Research and Development acts as potential entry barriers for our competitors and enable us to
target a large customer base within India.

Key Financial data for the financial year 2023-24, 2022-23 and 2021-22 are as below as per the Restated Financial
Statements:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars F.Y 2023-24 F.Y 2022-23 F.Y 2021-22

Total Income 13,285.94 12,888.39 12,170.00
EBITDA before 1,866.86 1,337.31 635.62
exceptional item

EBITDA Margin  before 14.07% 10.38% 5.22%
exceptional item

EBITDA 1,866.86 667.70 635.62
EBITDA Margin 14.07% 5.18% 5.22%
PAT 978.85 72.87 364.13
PAT Margin 7.38% 0.57% 2.99%
Net Worth 1,337.34 358.49 285.62

Our Strengths

State of art
manufacturin

g facilities
Consistent Well g?]lécated
track record of experienced
financial team of
performance Professionals
STRENGTHS
Providing
critical
business Long-term
solution and relation with
manufacturing our Customers
customised
products In-house

Research and
Development
team

State of art manufacturing facilities

Our Company has two manufacturing facilities one at Noida and another at Pune. Our manufacturing facility is equipped
with in house R&D lab, Laser Welding Machine, Automatic welding, Cell grading machine and End of Line testing. Our
both manufacturing facilities are recognised by the Customs Department under MOOWR Scheme as Custom Bonded
Warehouse facilities. Our facilities in Noida and Pune span 42,000 sg. ft and 21,000 sg. ft, respectively, and are equipped
with the latest technology and has state of the art machinery, Research & Development department, testing and validation
facilities. At these facilities, we manufacture lithium-ion battery packs and motor. Our current installed manufacturing
setup has an installed capacity of Cell Grading Capacity of 168 MWH per annum, Cell Sorting capacity of 358 MWH
per annum, manufacturing capacity of 130 MWH per annum, and Battery testing capacity of 72 MWH per annum for
two-wheeler batteries, which is the combined capacity of both Noida and Pune facilities. For batteries other than two-
wheelers, our facility has a Cell Grading Capacity of 41 MWH per annum, Cell Sorting capacity of 110 MWH per annum,
manufacturing capacity of 115 MWH per annum, and Battery testing capacity of 41 MWH per annum with latest
technology, through which we can customize the lithium-ion battery packs, which ranges from 1 KWH to 500 KWH per
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annum, according to the application and product requirements of the customers and installed capacity at Noida of 60,000
motors per annum. Our presence in these locations allows us to have easy access to raw materials and customers both
which helps us overcome significant entry barriers in comparison with our competitors. Our manufacturing facilities are
ISO certified has QMS 9001:2015, EMS 14001:2015 & OHSAS 45001:2018 certified also our plant has complied and
certified as per AIS037 from ICAT and ARAI which is mandatory for automobile component manufacturing. Our
product has multiple certificates for performance and safety like A1S048, AIS156 for L2 (Two-Wheeler), L3 (e-
Rickshaw) and L5 (Three-Wheeler) application, IEC62133, IEC62619, QM333 for energy storage application, 1516047
for Solar Lighting application and AIS041 for electric motor. We have received QF103 from TSEC, Department of
Telecom, Government of India for telecom lithium-ion batteries.

Well educated and experienced team of Professionals

The senior management team of our Company have significant industry experience and have been instrumental in the
high growth of our Company. Our Whole-time director and Chief Executing Officer, Sunil Gandhi, has over 2 decades
of experience in this industry leads our operation, production planning business development and. guides our strategic
planning and growth. Our whole-time director and Chief Operating Officer, Manish Shah has over 2 decades of
experience and is handling our operations in Noida and Pune. Our Key Managerial Personnel team includes a combination
of management executives who bring in significant business expertise including in the areas of manufacturing, designing,
validation, strategic planning, finance human resource, supply chain, Information Technology which positions us well to
capitalize on the current and future growth opportunities.

Further our Key Managerial Personnel are supported by well-educated and experienced professional management team
whose collective experience and capabilities enable us to understand and anticipate market trends; manage our business
operations and growth, leverage customer relationships and respond to changes in customer preferences. Our Company
will continue to leverage from insights, experience and rich knowledge gained over the years with our KMP’s and R&D
team to continue to deepen expansion into the Indian and Export market. For further details of the educational
qualifications and experience of our senior management and KMP’s please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management’
on page 134 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Long-term relation with our customers

Our Company has a large and diversified customer base coupled with three revenue channels i.e. manufacturing, trading
and services which provides us revenue certainty and diversification and reduces risk associated with loss of customers,
thereby ensuring business continuity and sustainable growth. Our ability to provide solution, manufacture the product
based on requirement and designed approved by customer and deal trade in ancillary items with the main product, has
enabled us to provide quality solutions and establish longstanding relationships with our customers. Our team focuses
on each order and defines the process and plan accordingly. This provides complete satisfaction to our customer and
helps them to achieve their purpose from the product in impromptu and systematic manner and also enable us to expand
our business from existing customers to new customer through mouth publicity. We believe our focus on quality,
providing customised solution to our customers and timely delivery of our service offerings have helped us establish and
maintain long term relationships with our customers.

Details of revenue contribution from different states of India and export sales are as below:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars FY23-24 FY22-23 FY21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Delhi 3,505.67 | 31.97% | 2,072.53| 18.59% | 2,988.47 24.64%
Maharashtra 2,764.09 | 25.20% | 1,544.05| 13.85% | 1,052.47 8.68%
Uttar Pradesh 1,827.42 | 16.66% | 2,697.05| 24.19% | 2,826.79 23.31%
Haryana 401.34 3.66% | 2,125.73 | 19.06% | 2,825.53 23.30%
West Bengal 371.52 3.39% 99.06 0.89% 160.75 1.33%
Punjab 214.23 1.95% 144.42 1.30% 186.15 1.53%
Bihar 193.01 1.76% 17.84 0.16% 8.80 0.07%
Guijarat 180.26 1.64% 738.18 6.62% 427.37 3.52%
Karnataka 167.23 1.52% 236.81 2.12% 332.24 2.74%
Rajasthan 156.50 1.43% 624.49 5.60% 385.83 3.18%
Rest of India (Scattered) 234.35 2.14% 629.00 5.64% 934.65 7.71%
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Particulars FY23-24 FY22-23 FY21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Total Domestic Sale 10,015.62| 91.33% | 10,929.18 | 98.01% | 12,129.05 | 100.00%
Export 951.10 | 8.67% 222.23 | 1.99% - -
Total Revenue from sale of Product 10,966.71] 100% | 11,151.41 100% | 12,129.05 100%

In-house Research and Development team

Being an innovation-focused company, we have invested significantly in R&D over the years, with the objective of
developing innovative solutions, and implementing incremental improvements to existing products and customization to
the specifications of our customers, seeking overall to improve our product performance and differentiate ourselves from
our competition. Our operations are supported by our in-house Research and Development at our registered office Noida,
with a team of 12 employees as on June 30, 2024 working in areas of, system engineering design and development
(including mechanical, electrical and validation team) for battery and motor.

We offer our capabilities and experience in research and development to create design and prototype for specific products
for our customers. With a focus on innovative and evolving markets, we seek to continuously innovate and provide
solution for the application of our product and service offerings. In the field of our product, the design, prototype are
critical and customised in nature, we continually work on developing innovative and cost competitive designs to maintain
a technological edge across our product and services. Our R&D team provides solutions for new stationary and mobility
who are moving towards green revolution and less carbon emission. To validate our designs, we have developed internal
failure detection capabilities and also have set up team for compliance testing as per the required standards. On battery
development, we have developed capabilities in end-to-end battery pack design and development including BMS related
algorithms which we aim to optimize to give our customers high cycle life and optimal performance. On the process side;
design goals, detailed specifications, design reviews, process development, control plans, detailed validation, Design
Failure Mode and Effects Analysis (“DFMEA?”), Process Failure Mode and Effects Analysis ("PFMEA”) and customer
feedbacks are reviewed at various stages of development process and such process provides a structure to seek to ensure
quality, speed and accuracy of development.

Process at Research and Development are as below:

DPR is prepared for

Heggeg{egetzzgt{gﬂg to mapping project Discussion of the DPR
assianment of task to feasibility,features, Bill of with Heads of Department
g roiect lead Material and timeline of and CFT
proJ project
cost and timeline are shared After confirmation of DPR On completion of Project,
with sales, marketing, and timelines, Team Lead Project Head to share all
finance team for takes up the project for design document with NPD
confirmation execution Coordinator
NPD Coordinator to create
prototype and DVP document
along with validation Homologation and
team to coordinate further with certification of battery

customer for their
product approval

Providing critical business solution and manufacturing customised products
Our Company provides critical business solution for the customers who wants to use lithium-ion batteries with a specific

power capacity as required for their application. Any customer requirement goes through the process of research and
development to deriving solution that can fulfil the specific need of the customer. For this design along with the prototype
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and validation plan is prepared as per customer’s specific requirement. Our Company also manufactures the product after
the designed is approved by the customers. Our Company also sells the design and prototype solutions to the customers
who further use them to manufactures products basis on these designs. Our Company also manufactures motor with
customised design, prototype and features as per the requirement of the application. Our product is used for both mobility
and stationary applications. We provide our customers with repair and after sales service where products parts are
serviced at our service centres Revenue bifurcation based on mobility, stationary application and powertrain components
are as follows:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars FY 23-24 FY 22-23 FY21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %
E-Mobility 8,081.48 73.69% 9,866.78 88.50% 10,757.10 88.69%
Stationary Applications 2,601.42 23.72% 1,227.65 10.97% 1,317.97 10.72%
Powertrain and other components 283.81 2.59% 59.86 0.54% 53.98 0.60%
;fgg'ucze"e”“e from sale of 1596671 | 100.00% | 11,151.41 | 100.00% | 12,129.05 | 100.00%

Consistent track record of financial performance

Our Company has maintained a healthy balance sheet. In the last three years, despite external factors such as Covid
changing government policies for certification and other disruptions we have been able to achieve strong financial
performance. We strive to maintain a robust financial position with emphasis on having a strong balance sheet and
increased profitability. On account of an increase in sales, our total income increased from X 12,170 lakhs for Fiscal 2022
to X 13,285.94 lakhs for Fiscal 2024. Our Net Worth has grown from I 285.62 lakhs as of March 31, 2022 to X 1337.34
lakhs as of March 31, 2024. Our restated profit before tax from operations has grown at a CAGR of 63.96% from X
364.13 lakhs in Fiscal 2022 to X 978.85 lakhs in Fiscal 2024. Our PAT Margin was 7.38%, 0.57% and 2.99% and PBT
(excluding exceptional item) margin was 9.23%, 5.90% & 4.12% for financial year 2023-24, financial year 2022-23 and
financial year 2021-22, highlighting consistent growth in profitability. We believe we have prudently utilized our
resources, which has enabled us to fund our expansions through our internal accruals. We believe that our operational
and financial performance will allow us to take advantage of the growth opportunities in the ever-growing EV industry
and government push for adoption of ESS in India with a target of Net Zero by 2070. For further details on comparative
analysis of our financial position and revenue from operations, see the section titled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on Page no 182 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Strategies

All the below mentioned strategies are approved by the Board of Directors through Board Resolution dated July 27,
2024,

Capacity
Enhancement
Strategy

Continue to invest in our capabilities
of providing critical business solution,
manufacturing product with advanced
technology and environment friendly

components.

Augment capital base for adequate
working capital

Expand our product
portfolio to cater
requirements of other
applications.
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Capacity Enhancement Strategy

As of Fiscal 2024, our installed capacity and proposed capex through net proceeds are as follows:

Installed Capacity VOl LETEEeE 07 C;[;);Silty
. . - ;
Particulars UOM Capacity Capacity after capex
Noida Pune
Two-wheeler capacity
Cell Grading Capacity (a) MWH 136 32 168 - 168
Cell Sorting Capacity (b) MWH 328 30 358 - 35
Manufacturing Capacity (¢) | MWH 100 30 130 - 130
Battery Testing Capacity (d) | MWH 22 50 72 50 122
Production Capacity/3 -
Shifts (Min of a, b, ¢ or d) MWH 22 30 i 122
Other than two-wheeler
capacity
Cell Grading Capacity (a) MWH 41 - 41 143 184
Cell Sorting Capacity (b) MWH 110 - 110 54 164
Manufacturing Capacity (¢) | MWH 115 - 115 50 165
Battery Testing Capacity (d) | MWH 41 - 41 100 141
Production Capacity/3 -
Shifts (Min of a, b, ¢ or d) MWH 4 4 i 141

*Unit of measurement is MWH per annum

Our current manufacturing facilities, located in Noida (42,000 sq ft) and Pune (21,000 sg. ft), have a combined capacity
for producing two-wheeler batteries, encompassing cell grading, cell sorting, manufacturing, and battery testing. The
total capacity for two-wheeler batteries stands at 168 MWH per annum for cell grading, 358 MWH per annum for cell
sorting, 130 MWH per annum for manufacturing, and 72 MWH per annum for battery testing. Additionally, our facilities
have a capacity for producing other types of batteries, with 41 MWH per annum for cell grading, 110 MWH per annum
for cell sorting, 115 MWH per annum for manufacturing, and 41 MWH per annum for battery testing. The production of
batteries depends on all four capacities, and our product must pass through all four processes/machines. Therefore, a
lower installed capacity in any one process will lead to lower production. Our Company proposes to augment these
capacities by adding new machinery at Noida for other than two-wheeler batteries, including a Cell Grading machine of
143 MWH per annum, a Cell Sorting machine of 54 MWH per annum, a Manufacturing Capacity of 50 MWH per annum,
and a Battery Testing Machine of 100 MWH per annum, as well as a Battery Testing machine of 50 MWH per annum
for two-wheeler batteries.

To meet the growing demand for our products, we plan to augment our manufacturing capabilities by adding new
machinery at our Noida facility. This strategic investment will enable us to increase our production capacity, improve
operational efficiency, reduce costs, and drive business growth. By enhancing our capacity, we aim to better serve our
customers, scale our operations, and maintain our strong execution capabilities while being mindful of our capital
expenditure. This investment will also help us to achieve greater economies of scale, improve our competitiveness, and
strengthen our position in the market.

Augment capital base for adequate working capital

In order to effectively expand our product portfolio, business reach and also grow in research and development, along
with effectively utilizing our existing facilities we need to have access to a larger amount of liquid funds and sufficient
working capital. We want to give more credit period to our debtors to increase our sales and simultaneously we want to
reduce our credit period to get better pricing to increase our profitability. Further there is growing demand for Lithium-
ion batteries for electric vehicles, stationary application, traction, tractors etc. We are well positioned to take advantage
of such growing demands in the lithium-ion battery industry. Due to this growing demand, we expect to increase our
order taking appetite thus increasing our volumes, revenues and scale of operations and we will require substantial
working capital for the same. It is hence our strategy to raise funds from this issue and augment our fund based working
capital capabilities. We believe that companies with high liquidity on their balance sheet would be able to better exploit
market opportunities. Hence, in order to effectively operate and maximize our capacity utilization at the existing facilities
we need to have access to a larger amount of liquid funds and sufficient working capital. For further details of the
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proposed working capital requirements of the company, kindly refer to the Chapter titled “Objects of the Offer” on page
no. 70 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Expand our product portfolio to cater requirements of other applications.

With the increase in demand of electric vehicle and the country moving towards green revolution there is increase in
demand for lithium-ion batteries in the whole country. Our Company believes there is untapped opportunity to cater the
requirements of lithium-ion batteries, motors and other powertrain components in both stationary and mobility
applications. Our Company through Research and Development aims to provide solution for both power generation and
storage for different applications which otherwise uses electricity. Over the period, our Company has provided solutions
and manufactured batteries for mobility such as two-wheeler, three-wheeler and four-wheeler electric vehicle, e-tractor,
traction and stationary application such as solar, ESS and Telecom. Our Company also manufactures e-powertrain
components such as motor and supplies components of Electric Vehicle DC-DC Converter Charger, Vehicle Display
Unit, Wiring Harness and Telematics unit. Our Company proposes to manufacture lithium-ion batteries, motors for our
domestic and export market, differentiated on the basis of design and quality, amongst other factors, to enhance the appeal
and acceptance for our products amongst end-consumers.

We also continually seek to identify new end-use cases for batteries and motors that have economic viability and
significant growth potential. We intend to focus on increasing the expenditure by each of customers on lithium-ion
batteries purchased from us. We also intend to capitalize on the unutilized capacity at our manufacturing facilities to
further increase production of our portfolio of lithium-ion batteries and motors and take advantage of the experience of
our research and development team to increase acceptance for our batteries and motors and enhance our visibility in the
domestic batteries market, particularly for power generation and storage. Additionally, we seek to further penetrate and
strengthen our market position in each segment of the market for our products. Currently, we derive our revenue from
operation from the following products:

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars FY23-24 FY 22-23 FY21-22
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Batteries 9,886.78 90.15%| 5,398.17 48.41% 2,752.17 22.69%
Cell 796.12 7.26%| 5,580.73 50.05% 9,098.20 75.01%
Motor and Controller 123.43 1.13% 6.08 0.05% - -
BMS - - 4.79 0.04% 18.34 0.15%
Charger 40.89 0.37% 49.70 0.45% 39.91 0.33%
MS Box - - 2.61 0.02% - -
Infrared Thermometer - - - - 10.18 0.08%
Other powertrain components 119.49 1.09% 109.33 0.98% 196.18 1.62%
Total 10,966.71 100.00%| 11,151.41] 100.00% 12,129.05 100.00%0

Continue to invest in our capabilities of providing critical business solution, manufacturing product with advanced
technology and environment friendly components.

Our customers’ continually evolving businesses and preferences require us to focus on new product development and
improvements through our continuing efforts towards product development, innovation and designs. Our Research &
Development activities are completely done through in-house development led by 12 employees and 16 employees in
our dedicated R&D team as of June 30, 2024 and March 31, 2024 respectively, and we intend to add more experienced
employees to our R&D team in the areas of hardware, firmware, system engineering, IT and simulation software and
Test lab etc. We have developed experience in Lithium-ion battery, powertrain and providing critical business solution
with respect to designing battery, for both stationary and mobility. Our Company seeks to continue to build on this
experience and enhance our product and technology stack. We intend to invest in various test and simulation capabilities
in order to reduce development time and receive accurate results and feedback during product design and validation.

We intend to install the automatic battery pack assembly line to minimize the errors and ensuring consistent quality for
use in both stationary and mobility applications and we plan to continue to build more innovative features including
software to differentiate our battery products. During the Financial Year 2022-23, we have made capital expenditure
towards R&D (comprising R&D expenses and capitalized product development expenses) of X 261.62 lakhs. Our R&D
team has helped us in creating proprietary intellectual property, optimize our cost effectiveness and create better value
proposition for our customers and we will continue to invest substantially in product innovation and design to expand
our offerings and increase our market presence.

103



CL N ENERGY

DETAILS OF OUR BUSINESS
Location
Registered Office

Our registered Office is located at Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305,
Uttar Pradesh, India.

Manufacturing Facilities

Noida facility along with Research and Development team- Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office, Gautam
Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305, Uttar Pradesh, India.

[ —
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Pune facility- GAT NO.375/1 AND 376, Koregaon Bhima, Taluka Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra- 412216

Our Products and services

1. Manufactured Products

Sr.no Particulars Description Sl Lesr
Industry
2KWh, 3Khwh, 4KWh
1 AIS 156, Phase — 2 Amendment — Il | Electric ~ Vehicle
Certified Industry
Real Time Data Monitoring
Water, Vibration & Fire Resistant
TWO WHEELER Automotive Grade Component
5KWh, 6KWh
AIS 156, Phase — 2 Amendment — Il
2 Certified Electric ~ Vehicle
Automotive Grade Components Industry
Equipped with Communication Based SOC
Indicator
Water, Vibration & Fire Resistant
E-RICKSHAW
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Sr.no

Particulars

Description

End User
Industry

*

E-AUTO/E-LOADER

10KWh, 12KWh

AIS 156, Phase — 2 Amendment — Il
Certified

Water Vibration & Fire Resistant

Smart BMS with Panasonic Platform for
High Accuracy

Passively Cooled for Improved Thermal
Performance

Electric Vehicle

Industry

<

FOUR WHEELER

19KWh, 33KWh

Support Bharat Standard Public Charging
Cloud Monitoring & OTA

Fire and Water Proof Certified
Inbuild Data Storage and
Troubleshooting

Remote

Electric Vehicle

Industry

= =
‘ ”CLHNENERG)"

EL)

E-TRACTOR

24KWh

BTMS for Enhanced Thermal Performance
Support Bharat Standard Public Charging
Cloud Monitoring & OTA Updates

IP 67 Rated Safe Battery

Electric Vehicle

Industry

&

GOLF CART

2KWh, 10KWh (24V-72V) — 5K Wh, 15
KWh

Trouble Free Performance

Long Life, Fast Charging, Ultra Safe Zero
Maintenance

Inbuilt Communication with SOC Indicator
Bluetooth Application to Monitor Real Time
Data

Golf cart
manufacturing
companies

>

FORKLIFT

5KWh, 19KWh & 32KWh

Charging & Discharging Protection

CAN Protocol

Long Time Run with Single Charge
Forklift, BOPT, Cleaning Machine, Reach
Truck

Material handling
equipment Industry
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. - End User
Sr.no Particulars Description Industry
12.8V 12Ah 12.8V 30Ah 12.8V 54Ah
100% Efficient for Charge/Discharge
8 Overch_arge, Discharge and Temperature Solar Industry
Protection
Reserve Polarity and Short Circuit
Protection
BIS Approved
SOLAR PP
48V- 50Ah to 1600Ah
Integrated with all major inverter/UPS
9 manufacture Telecommunication
CAN/RS485/232 communication options Industry
Suitable for multi-unit parallel connection
State of charge (SOC) indicators & Failure
TELECOM warning display LED
96 to 1000V — 20 to 500KWh Thermal Power
. Industry,
10 Long-lasting and s_afe Commré/rcial and
Effortless Installation and Usage X
. . Industrial
Versatile Operation Modes aoolication
Swift and Adaptable Charging PP
48V/60VIT72V
AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor Electric  Vehicle
1 IP 67 Indust
Highly Energy Efficient Y
Smooth, Controller, Variable Speed
Operation
48V/60VIT72V
12 AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor Electric ~ Vehicle

12" HUB MOTOR

IP 67
Regenerative Braking
Dashboard Interface

Industry
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. .. End User
Sr.no Particulars Description Industry

48V/60VIT72V
AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor Electric Vehicle

13
IP 67 Industry
Regenerative Braking
Dashboard Interface

17" HUB MOTOR

48V/60V

14 AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor Electric Vehicle
CAN/Non-CAN Enabled Industry
Integral Waterproof Terminal Port
Energy Feedback Braking

2-WHEELER CONTROLLER

48V/60V
AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor . .

15 Available in Tkw/1.2kw/1.5kw :ﬂgﬁtsrt'c Vehicle
Hill Stop Function ry
Individual Phase Wire

E RICKSHAW MOTOR

48V/60V

16 AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Controller Electric Vehicle
50A/60A/80A Controller Industry
Tube — 24/30
Hill Stop Function

E-RICKSHAW CONTROLLER

48V/60VIT72V

17 AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Motor Electric Vehicle

10KW/15KW PMSM MOTOR

Gear Ration 1:10
Vibration & High Temp Resistant
Torgue 100 Nm

Industry
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. — End User
Sr.no Particulars Description Industry
48V/60VIT72V
18 AIS 041 Revision -1 Certified Controller Electric ~ Vehicle
IP 67 Industry
Hill Stop Function
Dynamic Low Speed Feedback Technology
L5 - CONTROLLER
2. Traded Products
i
18650-2900mAhh 3.2V 30Ah LFP
3.6V BAK POUCH CELL
GANFENG
NMC CELL ‘ a
=

18650-2600mAh
3.6V FAREAST

NMC CELL
B

3.2V 50Ah LFP

POUCH CELL
GANFENG

3.2V 100Ah LFP
PRISMATIC CELL
HIGH-STAR

Display

Sensor and
Telematics unit

5@

DC-DC Converter
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Charger
Vehicle Display Unit

S

WMACInE Hormeoes Telematics unit

3. Services

Our Company designs and develops prototype for specific products as per the requirement of our customers. With a
focus on innovation and evolving markets, we seek to continuously innovate and provide solution for the application
of our service offerings. Our Company offers the design and prototype which are critical and customised in nature
by continually work on developing innovative and cost competitive designs to maintain a technological edge and
serve our customer in best way possible. Our R&D team provides critical business solutions for new stationary
application and mobility who seek to install lithium-ion batteries in their product or equipment. Designs offered by
us are validated by a team dedicated to it and we have developed internal failure detection capabilities and also have
set up team for compliance testing as per the required standards. Our Company focuses on creating designs and
prototype with an end-to-end battery pack design and development including BMS and related algorithms. Our
Company aims to provide customised designs which helps the customer to increase their products cycle life and have
optimal performance.
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Manufacturing process flow chart

Connection of BMS ':>

Receipt gfﬂl;’g;)ductlon and Harnessing on Testing of Voltage
Battery Pack
Health checkup of cells Outer Packaging Testing of Capacity
Receipt of Raw Material Fixing of Connector Approval from QQC
_ —>
Material Placement, fixing and Handed over to
Verification Interconnection of cells Finished Goods store

Steps:

Production order is received along with Bill of Materials and product specification from Production planning
and control (PPC)

After sorting the cells, health checkup of Cell is performed with respect to ageing, grading and internal
resistance (IR).

Raw material is received from the store on the basis of material requisition slip (MRS) which is issued by
Production planning and control (PPC).

Material received goes through verification process with respect to Bill of Materials by product quality control
(PQC) Engineer & Shop Floor In charge.

Welding / cell interconnecting process starts with steps such as series parallel connection through spot / laser
welding machine, fixing of epoxy sheet with the help of thread tape as per dimensions, and fixing of element
tape & green barley paper.

Then, CV-Sensing Wire Harnessing is done on Battery Pack

Checking of series voltage of Battery Pack as per specs.

Fixing of BMS along with Bluetooth Connection and updating of BMS

Pre-testing is performed by checking battery voltage

Outer Packaging of Battery and sleeving on battery pack is done and finally the battery pack in put inside the
cabinet.

Fixing of connector and again testing of Battery capacity is done

Sticker with details such as Brand, Warning, Warranty Void, QR Code is pasted on battery and sent to
Outgoing Quality Control (OQC)

Once the QQC confirms and approves the product, it is handed over the Finished Goods store.
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Trading process flowchart

Pre-Sale Activities such
as contacting customer
and inquiries for their
requirement

Customer Registration
Process & Creation of
Customer Master

Data

Customer Enquiry,
Commercial negotiations
& Rates

finalization Process

SO will be sent to testing :
department by PPC for Preparag;)éwe(r)f Sales
testing

Sales Order Processing,
Invoicing & Dispatch

Delivery of good
followed by receipt of
Payment and Invoice
Knocking off

Plant and Machinery

We have the following Plant and Machinery at our Manufacturing facility:

Sr.no. Machine Name

Manual Cell Sorter

Channel Capacity Testing

Assembling Machine

Automatic Insulation Paper Inserting Machine

Channels Sorting Machine

Battery Testing Machine

Bearing Press Fixture

XN |A|H W IN=

BMS Testing Machine

9. Press Machine

10. Semi -Automatic Straping Machine

11. Laser Welding Machine

12. Sorting And Pasting Machine

13. Heat Shrink Machine

14, Welding Machine

15. Packing Machine

16. Conveyor

17. Calipers

18. Solar Controller

19. Tandem Dynamometer

20. Three Phase Convertor

21. Battery Rack
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Warranty
Warranty
Category Product Sub-Segment Period
Battery Automatic Guided Vehicle (AGV) 3 years
Battery Bus 3 years
Battery Cell No warranty
Battery Drones 3 years
Battery E- Rickshaw/ E-Cart (L3) 3 years
E-Mobility Battery E-Cycle 3 years
Battery High Speed (2W) 3 years
Battery Loader/ E-Auto (L5) 3 years
Battery Low Speed (2W) 3 years
Battery Material Handling equipment (MHE) / Traction 5 years
Battery Special Application 3 years
Powertrain Motor & motor controller Motor & motor controller 6 TSS;? !
Trading Charger 1 year/3 year
Stationary ESS ESS (In(_iustrial UPS) _ 5 years
ESS Solar (Lighting and Appliances) 3 years
ESS UPS/Inverter 5 years
Raw material

Raw material for our products along with the sources is as below:

Sr No Product Place
1. Cells China
2. Battery Management Systems (BMS) China, Uttar Pradesh and Delhi
3 Busbar, Frame Assembly, Packing Box, Foldable Handle | Haryana and Maharashtra
4 Cable, Screw Delhi, Uttar Pradesh and Maharashtra
5 Cell Holder Uttar Pradesh and Maharashtra
6 Connector China, Delhi Uttar Pradesh and Maharashtra
Gap Filler. Glass Fiber Sleeve, HST Sleeve, Glue stick,
Machined Washer, Nut, Ring Type Cable Terminal, Anti
Vibration Pad, Sealant, Blue sleeve, Inline Thimble, PG
Gland, Thread locker, Tape, Pressure Vent, Acrylic Water
proof Tape & Sheet, Sealing Gasket, Wire, Insulator,
Spring Loaded Handle, Carbon Conductive Grease L-
7 Type Connecting Lug etc. Uttar Pradesh and Maharashtra
8 Insulation Sheet, Fuse Delhi and Maharashtra
Our Utilities
Power

Our manufacturing plants has adequate power supply at Noida with connected load of 472.5 KW from Pashchimanchal
Vidyut Vitran Nigam Limited and at Pune with connected load of 470KW from Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution
Co. Ltd. We have one Diesel Generator at Noida Plant and a rented one at Pune which have capacity of 250 kva and a

transformer.

Water

Water is required for human consumption and the requirement is fully met at the existing premises by local suppliers.
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Quality Control

We ensure that the battery pack is checked by the dedicated quality control team at various level before the final delivery
to the customers. Lithium-ion battery integration requires a special set of skills and expertise to optimize battery
performance and durability. As part of our manufacturing process, every single battery is tested by dedicated quality
control team at multiple levels before it ships out of the facility. The facility employs techniques to manufacture batteries
with the lowest possible energy loss, for longer battery operational life. We use advanced and fully automated cell sorting
and grading machines to group cylindrical cells of similar voltage, capacity and internal resistance before using them for
our batteries. This process further ensures maximum safety and long battery life. We also check every single Battery
Management System (BMS) using specialised testing equipment before installation, further ensuring maximum safety
and maximum battery output. As part of our manufacturing process, every single battery is tested by dedicated quality
control team using Battery Pack Functionality testers and battery packs ageing machines. Currently we are manufacturing
batteries up to752V, testing of which is manageable with current testing facility.

Process for Quality Control are as below:

Second stage

Production Quality
Control Engineer will do
First Prodcution
Approval every morning
to ensure 4 Ms (Material,
Men, Machine &
Method)

First stage

Supplier Quality
Assurance (SQA)

Engineer to verify First

Article Inspection at
supplier's site with
reference to Engineer
Drawing

Fifth Stage

Production Quality Control
(PQC) Engineer to checck

Incoming Quality Assurance
(IQA) to conduct material
inspection with Invoice.
1QC Engineer to further
ensure with store-in-charge
material arranged in stor e as
per FIFO layout

Fourth Stage

QQC engineer to conduct
inspection as below-

Third Stage

Critical to Quality Stage
inspection by Line
Quality Control
Engineer (QQC) with
respect to Spot Welding
and Packing Stage

Approval of

quantity with final list.

Pre-Delivery inspection (PDI)

Engineer to do final

-Visual inspection
-Electrical Inspection

Assembly Process
after working on
deviation and

inspection, and also check -Dimension Inspection (on issues if any
charger integration, SOC and sample basis)
packaging type. -BMS Parameter Inspection
Certifications
. . . . . D f D f
Sr Description Authority Registration Number ate 0 atg 0
No. Issue Expiry
Deutsch Quality Systems
(India) Private Limited,
Certificate of Registration | Member of International ISO 9001:2015
. o . . June 13, | June 12,
1 for Quality Management | Accreditation Forum Registration No. 2023 2026
System#* (1AF), Multilateral 50258282 QM15
Recognition
Arrangement
Deutsch Quality Systems
(India) Private Limited, 1SO
Certificate of Reglstratlon Membe_r o_f International 140012015 June 13, | June 12,
2 for Environment | Accreditation Forum . .
Management Systems#* (1AF) Multilateral Registration No. 2023 2026
o 50258282 UM15
Recognition
Arrangement
Certificate of Registration | Deutsch Quality Systems I1SO
3 for Occupational Health | (India) Private Limited, 45001:2018 June 13, | June 12,
and Safety Management | Member of International Registration No. 2023 2026
Systems#* Accreditation Forum 50258282 OHS18
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Sr. L. . . . Date of Date of
r Description Authority Registration Number ateo a e_o
No. Issue Expiry
(1AF), Multilateral
Recognition
Arrangement
4 Battery Pack with size of the division of NATR?IBD/ TAC/reference No. June 05, | Valid till new
100AH Implementation  Society CP9360 2023 Amendment
ICAT Certificate)* .
( ertificate) (NATIS), Govt. of India
5 Battery Pack with size of the division of NATR??; TAC/reference No. June 05, | Valid till new
206AH Implementation Society CR7604 2023 Amendment
. .
(ICAT Certificate) (NATIS), Govt. of India
6 Battery Pack with size of the division of NATR?I)D/ TAC/reference No. June 05, | Valid till new
100AH Implementation  Society CP9360 2023 Amendment
ICAT Certificate)* .
(ICAT Certificate) (NATIS), Govt. of India
7 Battery Pack with size of the division of NATR?Z TAC/reference No. June 05, | Valid till new
206AH Implementation  Society CP7604 2023 Amendment
. .
(ICAT Certificate) (NATIS), Gowt. of India
E);znselro nrgfu'?rzﬂg::?sl fg; The Automotive Report No.: December | Valid till new
8 AIS-?SG (Pgrt /2022, a6 | RESearch Association of | ARAIAED/20232024/3 |~ 0 | 0
' India (ARAI) 000033612/CT/5623 '
per amendment 3
International Centre for
9 ICAT Certificate  51.2V tAhLejt(zjrir\]/?:i\;i ;rfeﬁ;?ll;?g Test Report No. July 17, | Valid till new
100Ah* . . CT0GS9428 2023 Amendment
Implementation Society
(NATIS), Govt. of India
International Centre for
Lo | ICAT Certificate  57.6V 2:“;7\'/‘2"‘(;‘; ;ecl\rl‘on';?g Test Report No. March 11, | Valid till new
62.4Ah* . . CTOGR9066 2022 Amendment
Implementation Society
(NATIS), Govt. of India
International Centre for
1 ICAT Certificate  57.6V tAhzt(zjrir\]/?:i\;i Ifeﬁ,:?;;?z Test Report No. December | Valid till new
48Ah* . . CT0GS9801 15,2023 | Amendment
Implementation Society
(NATIS), Govt. of India
b | ARA Certificate :;gearch ASSAOE:Z{:)?“C’)‘: ARAI/AED/20232024/3 | July 17, | Valid till new
60.8V 100Ah-A* . 000030840/CT/5262 2023 Amendment
India (ARALI)
e The Automotive L
13 ARAI Certificate Research Association of ARAI/AED/20232024/3 | July 17, | Valid till new
60.8V 100Ah-B* 000030840/CT/5264 2023 Amendment

India (ARAI)

115




CL / /ENERGY

S Description Authority Registration Number DEIE @ Date_ @
No. Issue Expiry
e The Automotive L
1 ARAI Certificate 64V Research Association of ARAI/AED/20232024/3 July 17, | Valid till new
100Ah* . 000030840/CT/5263 2023 Amendment
India (ARALI)
. The Automotive L
15 ARAI Certificate Research Association of ARAI/AED/20232024/3 August | Valid till new
60.8V 200Ah* . 000031736/CT/5375 30, 2023 | Amendment
India (ARAI)
ARAI Certificate | AULOMOTIVE |\ b A AED/20232024/3 | June 07, | Valid till new
16 Research Association of
51.2V 200Ah* . 000029718/CT/5116 2023 Amendment
India (ARAI)

International Centre for

- Automotive Technology . S
17 ICAT Certificate  92.8V the division of NATRIP TAC/reference No. April 24, | Valid till new

206Ah* . . CR7604 2024 Amendment
Implementation Society

(NATIS), Govt. of India

The Automotive I
. . ARAI/AED/20232024/3 | May 18, | Valid till new
18 | Motor 48V 1.5kW Resgarch Association of 000029639/CT/5092 2023 Amendment
India (ARAI)
The Automotive
- ARAI/AED/20232024/3 August | Valid till new
*
19 | Motor 60V 1.75kW Res_earch Association of 000031468/CT/5323 16,2023 | Amendment
India (ARAI)
Bharat Sanchar Nigam May 30, | Valid till new
* -
20 | TSEC 48V 100Ah Limited NCR/074/24-25 2024 Amendment
Bharat Sanchar Nigam March 25 | Valid till new
* -
21 | TSEC 48V 50Ah Limited NCR/304/23-24 2024 Amendment

Marketing and Distribution

Our Marketing achievements are founded on the strength of our customer relationships and being able to deliver customer
specific products with best quality that meet the customer’s purpose and use the technology in the best way possible to
achieve that objective. We interact with our customers on regular basis and make follow-ups with the purpose to gaining
an insight to their demand and requirement which enables us in understanding the customer’s need serving them in better
way. Hence, we have been able to get repeated orders from our customers from various industries in which we serve. Our
sales and marketing team along with our KMP’s through their vast experience and good rapport with customers has
helped us to expand the sales network of our company. We have experienced and skill management team to motivate the
sub-ordinates and staff to step towards their achievements and organizational goals. With their efficient management
skills and co-ordination with sub-ordinate, they are always working as a catalyst to encourage the entire team for the
development and nourishment of the organization.

Majority of our products are sold through distributor network chain. Currently we have around 44 distributors for our
products such as batteries, powertrain, chargers, BESS, inverter, solar panels etc. Currently our distribution networks are
present in states such as Uttar Pradesh, Punjab, Haryana, Delhi, Rajasthan, Jharkhand, Madhya Pradesh, Uttarakhand,
Bihar, West Bengal etc. Further we have plans to increase our distributor base to 500 in the next two year as we look to
ramp up our production and sales after infusion of fresh equity capital. We follow a proper distributor appointment
process which includes survey and checklist. To further grow our business and bring ease and efficiency, we have started
automation of ordering facility for our products. With our national presence we believe we will be able to reach target
customers. We have dedicated sales and marketing team to identify new customers as well as to undertake initiatives to
hold a greater market share. With the smooth flow of funds in the business we can separately allocate some funds for the
marketing and distributing set up and initiatives.

Product support and after-sales service
Our Company provides product support by being equipped with genuine parts and spares along with stock management

of the same and service technicians to ensure easy and timely availability of the same. In the next two years, our company
intends to establish a state-level service network with 500 distributors who will be added to our network channels and
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own regional service centre. Our Company also ensures technical training for all service technicians from time to time.
We will be ensuring customer satisfaction through well-defined SLA and TAT.

Health, Safety and Environment

Our activities are subject to the environmental laws and regulations of India. We consider environmental issues to be an
important factor in our operations and we take various measures to ensure that our operations do not negatively impact
the environment. Our Company’s policy aims to provide innovative solutions to the growing challenges of the modern
energy industry, enhance customer satisfaction, and create a safe and healthy working environment by continual
improvement, organisational excellence through employee skill development and technology upgradation. We are also
subject to Environment Protection Regulations for which necessary disposal arrangement for the battery will be made at
the end of its life.

Our Company has taken various safety measures for fire accidents. We have installed hydrant at our facility, fire and
smoke alarms and has deployed special fire suppression systems for lithium-ion batteries. Our Company schedules fire
and safety training for our employees and also conducts mock testing of same from time to time to ensure we are well
prepared for any unfortunate events. Our company also has gets fire and safety audit from third party and has also obtained
NOC from fire department. Our Company also ensures fire and safety arrangements at the regional service centre. For
information regarding applicable health, safety and environmental laws and regulations, see “Key Regulations and
Policies” on page 121.

Competition

We believe that the principal factors affecting competition in our business include customer relationships, technology,
research and development on product, quality, reputation, market focus, price of the products and any ancillary service
provided. We face competition from various domestic and other players in the market. We intend to continue competing
vigorously to capture more market share and manage our growth in an optimal way. We expect that our commitment to
quality, new developments through research team, past record of timely execution and transparency will provide us with
an edge over our competitors. Our Company ensures quality, timely supply of the products and has been able to serve
our customers with minimal complaints. Therefore, the customers provide us more business opportunities deals due to
our work, reputation and trust build over the years. The focus will be on expanding to the huge untapped markets in India
as substantial part of the funds will be utilized to strengthen this aspect. We therefore believe that we will be able to grow
in a healthy way despite competition.

Capacity and Capacity Utilisation
Our Company manufactures lithium-ion batteries and motors. Our company has an installed capacity of 60,000 motors,

with production beginning in the current financial year 2024-25. Installed & Capacity utilization details of our production
facilities of lithium-ion batteries for the last three financial years are entailed below:

Installed | Utilised | Installed Utilised Installed Utilised

Particular UOM* | Capacity | Capacity | Capacity | Capacity Capacity Capacity
F.Y.23-24 F.Y.23-24 F.Y.23-24
NOIDA

Two-Wheeler Battery

ES” Grading Capacity MWH 136 12% 124 15% M 45%
g)‘;” Sorting Capacity MWH 328 5% 301 6% 39 47%
'(\é';‘””facw“”g Capacity | \nwH 100 16% 01 21% 36 51%
(Ef;;“ery Testing Capacity | \nay 22 72% 22 87% 22 83%
Production Capacity/3

Shifts (Min of a, b, cor | MWH 22 72% 22 87% 22 83%
d)

Other than two-wheeler Battery

23" Grading Capacity MWH a1 72% 38 40% 10 30%
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Installed | Utilised | Installed Utilised Installed Utilised
Particular UOM* | Capacity | Capacity | Capacity | Capacity | Capacity Capacity
F.Y.23-24 F.Y.23-24 F.Y.23-24
&3” Sorting Capacity MWH 110 27% 100 15% 16 19%
'(\é';‘””facw“”g Capacity |\ 115 26% 105 15% 16 19%
(E;";ttew Testing Capacity |y paypy 41 72% 77 20% 6 50%
Production Capacity/3
Shifts (Min of a, b, cor MWH 41 72% 38 40% 6 50%
d)
Toj(al Capacity of Noida MWH 63 ) 50 i 28 )
unit
PUNE
Two-wheeler Battery
E;(;II Grading Capacity MWH 30 5306 30 20% ) )
(Cbt;II Sorting Capacity MWH 30 5704 27 2306 ) )
I(\(/:Ifnufacturmg Capacity MWH 30 5704 97 23% ) )
(Ig)attery Testing Capacity MWH 50 34% 46 13% ) )
Production Capacity/3
Shifts (Min of a, b, cor MWH 30 57% 27 23% - -
d)
E%tietal Capacity of Pune MWH 30 ) 27 i )
Grand - Total MWH 93 67% 87 47% 28 76%

*Unit of measurement is MWH per annum
Customer Base

The end user of our products is Electric Vehicle Industry, Golf cart manufacturing companies, Commercial and Industrial
application, Material and equipment handling Industry, Solar Industry and Telecommunication Industry. The percentage
of revenue derived from our top 5 and 10 customers for the financial year 2023-24, 2022-23 and 2021- 22 based on
revenue from sale of products and services is as given below:

(Rs in lakhs)
FY23-24 FY22-23 FY21-22
% of % of % of
Sr.no Particulars
Amount Revenue Amount Revenue Amount Revenue
from from from
Operation Operation Operation
1 Income from top 5 Customer 8,271.01 62.48%| 5,064.68 39.39%| 3,310.54 27.24%
2 Income from top 10 Customer | 9,762.13 73.75%| 6,786.22 52.78%| 5,336.71 43.91%

Human Resources

Our company believes that our ability to maintain growth depends on our strength in attracting, training, motivating and
retaining employees. We have developed an efficient pool of skilled and experienced personnel. We also hire labour on
contractual basis. Our manpower is a prudent mix of the experienced and young people which gives us the dual advantage
of stability and growth, execution of services within time and quality. Our skilled resources together with our strong
management team have enabled us to successfully implement our growth plans. As on June 30, 2024, we had 130
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employees on our payroll and 132 employees on contract basis and as on March 31, 2024, we had 116 employees on our
payroll and 133 employees on contract basis. The following table sets forth the number of our employees for each
department as on June 30, 2024 and March 31, 2024:

Department Number of Employees as on | Number of Employees as on
June 30, 2024 March 31, 2024

Executive Director 2 2
Key Managerial Personnel 9 7
Finance & Accounts 10 11
Human Resource & Administration 4 5
IT 2 1
Production 29 29
Quality and Testing 15 11
Research & Development 12 16
Sales & Marketing 29 17
Service 18 17
Total 130 116

Intellectual Property

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we have 17 registered trademarks for which we have obtained valid
registration certificates under various classes under the Trademarks Act in India. Further, we are still to obtain the status
of “registered” for our 3 trademarks. Details of our trademark are given below:

Sr No Name Class Status Application No
1 CHARGYY 9 Registered 4727580
2 CLN 7 Registered 5584416
3 CLN 12 Registered 5584418
4 CLN 37 Registered 5584419
5 CLN 39 Registered 5584420
6 CLN 40 Registered 5584421
7 CLN Energy 12 Registered 5825864
8 CLN Energy 37 Registered 5825866
9 CLN Energy 39 Registered 5825868
10 CLN Energy 40 Registered 5825870
11 JLNPhenix Logo Registered 4378699
12 CLN Accepted & Advertised 5588417
13 CLN Energy Accepted & Advertised 5825856
14 CLN Energy Accepted 5825860
15 CLN 12 Accepted & Advertised 5954336
16 CLN 39 Accepted &Advertised 5954338
17 CLN 40 Accepted &Advertised 5954339
18 CLN Objected 5954334
19 CLN 9 Objected 5954335
20 CLN 37 Objected 5954337

Our Company has also filed for following patents:

Sr No Name Status Application Number
1 CLN Energy Awaiting Request for Examination 202211050911
2 CLN Energy Awaiting Request for Examination 202211056073
3 CLN Energy Awaiting Request for Examination 202211056074
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Property

Leased Properties:

Sr.no Description of Property Lessor Term Lease Rent Purpose
Plot No0.18, Sector -140, 9 years 8.5 Lakhs per month Manufacturing
- i i 0,
Phase-2, Noida, Uttar M/s Prahlad | 20  October (increase @ 5% after facility  and
1. Pradesh-110017. . | every year) .
R Enterprises 2021 to 19 ; . Registered
Area: Building area of 42000 . S Security Deposit- !
Private Limited | October 2030 Office
sq.ft. 25.50 Lakhs
3.15 Lakhs per
Gat No. 375/1, and 376, M/s Patodia 5 years month
2. Village Koregaon Bhima, Glaés Industries 1t February | (increase @ 5% after | Manufacturing
Pune, Maharashtra- 412216. Limited 2022 to 31% | every year) Facility
Area: 21,000 sq.ft January 2027 Security ~ Deposit-
15.75 Lakhs
Insurance

Our operations are subject to hazards inherent in manufacturing facilities such as risk of equipment failure, work
accidents, fire, earthquakes, flood and other force majeure events, acts of terrorism and explosions including
hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and the destruction of property and equipment, and
environmental damage. We maintain insurances for the same from Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited,
United India Insurance Company Limited, The New India Assurance Company limited and Chola MS General Insurance.
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KEY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is an overview of certain sector-specific relevant laws and regulations in India which are
applicable to the operations of our Company and our Subsidiary and its business. The description of laws and regulations
set out below is not exhaustive and is only intended to provide general information to Bidders. The information in this
section is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice and investors are advised to seek
independent professional legal advice.

The statements below are obtained from publications available in the public domain based on the current provisions of
applicable Indian law, and the judicial, regulatory and administrative interpretations thereof, which are subject to
change or modification by legislative, regulatory, administrative, quasi-judicial or judicial decisions/actions and our
Company and our Subsidiary are under no obligation to update the same.

A. INDUSTRY RELATED LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder

The Information Technology Act, 2000 (the “IT Act”) was enacted with the purpose of providing legal recognition to
transactions carried out by various means of electronic data interchange involving alternatives to paper-based methods
of communication and storage of information. The IT Act also seeks to facilitate electronic filing of documents and create
a mechanism for the authentication of electronic records through digital signatures. The IT Act prescribes punishment for
publishing and transmitting obscene material in electronic form. It provides for extraterritorial jurisdiction over any
offence or contravention under the IT Act committed outside India by any person, irrespective of their nationality, if the
act or conduct constituting the offence or contravention involves a computer, computer system or computer network
located in India. The Information Technology (Procedure and Safeguards for Blocking for Access of Information by
Public) Rules, 2009 specifically permit the Government of India to block access of any information generated,
transmitted, received, stored, or hosted in any computer resource by the public, the reasons for which are required to be
recorded by it in writing.

Under the Information Technology Act, 2000, we are subject to civil liability to compensate for causing wrongful loss or
wrongful gain to any person, while possessing, dealing or handling any sensitive personal data or information in a
computer resource owned, controlled or operated by us due to negligence in implementing and/or maintaining reasonable
security practices and procedures.

The IT Act and the Information Technology (Amendment) Act, 2008, which amended the IT Act, facilitate electronic
commerce by recognizing contracts concluded through electronic means, protects intermediaries in respect of third-party
information liability under specified circumstances, and creates liability for failure to protect sensitive personal data. The
IT Act also prescribes civil and criminal liability including fines and imprisonment for computer related offences
including those relating to unauthorized access to computer systems, tampering with or unauthorized manipulation of
any computer, computer system or computer network and, damaging computer systems and creates liability for
negligence in dealing with or handling any sensitive personal data or information in a computer resource and in
maintaining reasonable security practices and procedures in relation thereto.

In April 2011, the Department of Information Technology, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology,
Government of India (“DolT”), in exercise of its power to formulate rules with respect to reasonable security practices
and procedures and sensitive personal data, notified the Information Technology (Reasonable Security Practices and
Procedures and Sensitive Personal Data or Information) Rules, 2011 (“SPDI Rules ™) in respect of Section 43A of the IT
Act, which prescribe directions for the collection, disclosure, transfer and protection of sensitive personal data by a body
corporate or any person acting on behalf of a body corporate. Under the SPDI Rules, sensitive personal data is defined
to include personal information relating to passwords, financial information such as bank account or credit card or debit
card or other payment instrument details, physical, physiological, and mental health condition, sexual orientation, medical
records, biometric information and so on.

The SPDI Rules require every such body corporate, or person acting on behalf of a body corporate, to provide a privacy
policy for collecting, receiving, possessing, storing, handling, and dealing with personal information, including sensitive
personal data, ensuring security of all personal data collected by it and publishing such policy on its website. The SPDI
Rules further require that all such personal data be used solely for the purposes for which it was collected, and any
collection or third-party disclosure of such data is made with the prior consent of the information provider, unless
contractually agreed upon between them or where such disclosure is mandated by law.
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The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSME Act”)

MSME Act was enacted to provide for facilitating the promotion and development and enhancing the competitiveness of
micro, small and medium enterprises. Any person who intends to establish (a) a micro or small enterprise, at its discretion;
(b) a medium enterprise engaged in providing or rendering of services may, at its discretion; or (c) a medium enterprise
engaged in manufacture or production of goods pertaining to any industry specified in the First Schedule to the Industries
(Development and Regulation) Act, 1951 is required to file a memorandum before such authority as specified by the
State Government or the Central Government. The form of the memorandum, the procedure of its filing and other matters
incidental thereto shall be such as may be specified by the Central Government, based on the recommendations of the
advisory committee. Accordingly, in exercise of this power under the MSME Act, the Ministry of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises notification dated September 18, 2015 specified that every micro, small and medium enterprises is
required to file a Udyog Aadhar Memorandum in the form and manner specified in the notification.

Consumer Protection Act, 2019 (the “Consumer Protection Act”) and the rules made thereunder

The Consumer Protection Act, which repeals the Consumer Protection Act, 1986, was designed and enacted to provide
simpler and quicker access to redress consumer grievances. It seeks, inter alia to promote and protects the interests of
consumers against deficiencies and defects in goods or services and secure the rights of a consumer against unfair trade
practices, which may be practiced by manufacturers, service providers and traders. The definition of “consumer” has
been expanded under the Consumer Protection Act to include persons engaged in offline or online transactions through
electronic means or by tele-shopping or direct-selling or multi-level marketing. One of the substantial changes introduced
by Consumer Protection Act is inclusion of the e-commerce industry under Consumer Protection Act with “e-commerce”
defined to refer to the buying and selling of goods or services over digital or electronic network. Therefore, the Consumer
Protection Act aims to cover entities that are involved in the process of selling goods or services online. It provides for
the establishment of consumer disputes redressal forums and commissions for the purposes of redressal of consumer
grievances. In addition to awarding compensation and/or passing corrective orders, the forums and commissions under
the Consumer Protection Act, in cases of misleading and false advertisements, are empowered to impose imprisonment
for a term which may extend to two years and fine which may extend to ten lakhs. In cases of manufacturing for sale or
storing, selling, or distributing or importing products containing an adulterant, the imprisonment may vary between six
months to seven years and fine between one lakh to ten lakh depending upon the nature of injury to the consumer.

The Consumer Protection (E-Commerce) Rules, 2020 (the “Consumer Protection Rules”)

The Central Government has notified the Consumer Protection (E-Commerce) Rules, 2020, in exercise of its powers
conferred by the Consumer Protection Act, 2019. The Consumer Protection Rules primarily envisages the duties &
liabilities of ecommerce entities involved in marketing and selling goods and services to the consumer on the online
platform. The Consumer Protection Rules will be applicable to all electronic retailers (e-tailers), registered in India or
abroad but offering goods and services to Indian consumers. It empowers the Central Government to act against unfair
trade practices in e-commerce, direct selling. They require e-tailers to facilitate easy returns, address customer grievances
and prevent discriminating against merchants on their platforms. The Consumer Protection Rules will apply to all goods
and services bought or sold over any digital platform; all models of e-commerce including marketplace and inventory
models of e-commerce; all e-commerce retail, including multi-channel single brand retailers and single brand retailers in
single or multiple formats; all forms of unfair trade practices across all models of e-commerce. The Consumer Protection
Rules are equally applicable on the foreign registered e commerce entity offering goods and services to consumers in
India.

Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 1986

The Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016 (the "BIS Act") provides for the establishment of a national standards body
for the harmonious development of the activities of standardization, conformity assessment and quality assurance of
goods, articles, processes, systems and services. The BIS Act provides for establishment of Bureau of Indian Standards
which will formulate, implement and certify certain standards of quality for goods, services, articles, processes and
systems. The Government of India, through Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food & Public Distribution and the Ministry
of Electronics & Information Technology, amongst others, regulate manufacturing or storing for sale, import, selling or
distribution of goods which do not conform to the Indian Standard specified in the BIS Act, by way of passing orders.
The orders can provide for compulsory registration for undertaking any of the specified activities relating to an identified
category of product.
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The Digital Personal Data Protection Bill, 2022 (“Data Protection Bill”)

The Central Government has released the draft Data Protection Bill on November 18, 2022. The Data Protection Bill
provides for collection and processing of digital personal data by companies. According to the Data Protection Bill
companies collecting and dealing in high volumes of personal data will be defined as significant data fiduciaries. These
significant data fiduciaries will be required to fulfil certain additional obligations under the Data Protection Bill including
appointment of a data protection officer who will be the point of contact between such fiduciaries and individuals for
grievance redressal. Further such data fiduciaries will also be required to appoint a data auditor who will evaluate their
compliance with the Data Protection Bill (if and once passed into law).

Shops and Establishments Legislations

Establishments are required to be registered under the provisions of local shops and establishments legislations applicable
in the states where such establishments are set up. Such legislations regulate the working and employment conditions of
workers employed in such shops and establishments including commercial establishments and provide for fixation of
working hours, rest intervals, overtime, holidays, leave, termination of service, maintenance of shops and establishments
and other rights and obligations of the employers and employees. Shops and establishments have to be registered under
the shops and establishments legislations of the respective states where they are located.

Transfer of Property Act, 1882

The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (the “T.P. Act”) governs the transfer of property, including immovable property,
between natural persons excluding a transfer by operation of law. The T.P. Act establishes the general principles relating
to the transfer of property, including among other things, identifying the categories of property that are capable of being
transferred, the persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions and conditions imposed on the transfer
and the creation of contingent and vested interest in the property. The T.P. Act also provides for the rights and liabilities
of the vendor and purchaser in case of a transaction relating to sale of property and the lessor and lessee if the transaction
involves lease of land, as the case may be.

Sale of Goods Act, 1930

The Sale of Goods Act, 1930 (the “Sale of Goods Act”) governs contracts relating to the sale of goods. The contracts for
sale of goods are subject to the general principles of the law relating to contracts. A contract for sale may be an absolute
one or based on certain conditions. The Sale of Goods Act contains provisions in relation to the essential aspects of such
contracts, including the transfer of ownership of goods, delivery of goods, rights and duties of the buyer and seller,
remedies for breach of contract and the conditions and warranties implied under a contract for the sale of goods.

The Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 (the “Acr”) was passed to consolidate all the previous legislations which were enacted in
relation to the registration of documents. This Act was promulgated to achieve the purpose of maintaining a proper
regulatory record of transactional documents with a recognized officer in order to safeguard the original copies. The Act
lays down two types of registration of documents, one being mandatory registration, which has been laid down under
Section 17 of the Act and relates to documents such as, inter alia gift deed or transfer deed for an immovable property,
non-testamentary instruments purporting to an interest in any immovable property, leasing or renting an immovable
property. The other type of registration has been laid down under Section 18 of the Act which provides for the category
of documents, registration of which is optional or discretionary and include, wills, instrument for transfer of shares,
adoption deeds, etc. Failure to register a document under Section 17 of the Act can attract severe consequences, including
declaration of invalidity of the transfer in question; however, no such consequence is attracted in case of Section 18 of
the Act. Sections 28 and 31 of the Act provide the sub-registrars and other officers, the authority to register documents
under this Act. Registration of a document, provides authenticity to a document and also acts as a conclusive proof in
relation to the execution of such a document in the court of law.

The Indecent Representation of Women (Prohibition) Act, 1986 (“IRWA”)
The IRWA prohibits indecent representation of women through advertisements, publications, writings, paintings, figures
or in any other manner. It states that no person shall publish or release any advertisements involving an obscene portrayal

of women or agree to participate in the publication or show, in any form. In the event an offence under IRWA has been
committed by a company, every person, who, at the time the offence was committed was in-charge of, and was responsible
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to, the company for the conduct of the business of the company, as well as the company, shall be deemed to be guilty of
the offence and shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly.

Factories Act, 1948

The term 'factory', as defined under the Factories Act, means any premises which employs or has employed on any day
in the previous 12 months, 10 or more workers and in which any manufacturing process is carried on with the aid of
power, or any premises wherein 20 or more workmen are employed at any day during the preceding 12 months and in
which any manufacturing process is carried on without the aid of power. State Governments have issued rules in respect
of the prior submission of plans and their approval for the establishment of factories and registration and licensing of
factories.

The Factories Act requires the 'occupier' of a factory to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all workers in the factory
premises. Further, the "occupier” of a factory is also required to ensure (i) the safety and proper maintenance of the
factory such that it does not pose health risks to persons in the factory premises; (ii) the safe use, handling, storage and
transport of factory articles and substances; (iii) provision of adequate instruction, training and supervision to ensure
workers' health and safety; and (iv) cleanliness and safe working conditions in the factory premises. If there is a
contravention of any of the provisions of the Factories Act or the rules framed thereunder, the occupier and manager of
the factory may be punished with either imprisonment or fine or both.

Laws Relating to the Specific State Where Our Establishment Is Situated Maharashtra Industrial Policy, 2019

The Maharashtra Industrial Policy, 2019 (the "Industrial Policy") envisages making Maharashtra USD 1 Trillion economy
in the country, by augmenting manufacturing ecosystem, complemented by ease of doing business initiatives, thereby
evolving it into a preferred destination for global manufacturers and investors, resulting into largest employment creating
state with balanced regional and inclusive growth, by 2025. In the Industrial Policy, the target has been to attain
manufacturing sector growth rate of 12% to 13% to reach GSDP share of 25% by 2023-24; to attract investments worth
INR 10 lakh crore by 2023-24 and to create employment opportunities for 40 lakh people by 2023-24.

Some of the objectives and strategies of the policy includes retaining leadership position in industrial investment by
providing conducive business environment, creating land bank for industries through MIDC, promoting investments
through sector specific promotion/policies with focus on identified thrust sectors, incentivizing investments in R&D and
start-ups, facilitating 'Ease of Doing Business' initiatives and strengthening Maharashtra's Single Window System i.e.
MAITRI - an online portal, making a single point for delivery of services, setting up of State level councils for promotion
of investments and exports etc.

Shops and Commercial Establishments Legislation

The Company is governed by shops and establishments legislations, as applicable in the States of Uttar Pradesh. These
regulations regulate the conditions of work and employment in shops and commercial establishments and generally
prescribe obligations in respect of inter alia registration, opening and closing hours, daily and weekly working hours,
holidays, leave, health, and safety measures, and wages for overtime work. These establishments of the company will be
governed by the acts, rules, and regulations of the respective states.

Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (""Stamp Act")

Legislations pertaining to Stamp Duty Stamp duty in relation to certain specified categories of instruments as specified
under Entry 91 of the list, is governed by the provisions of the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (“Stamp Act”) which is enacted
by the Central Government. All others instruments are required to be stamped, as per the rates prescribed by the respective
State Governments in the respective schedules of the respective legislations pertaining to stamp duty as applicable in the
State. Stamp duty is required to be paid on all the documents that are registered and as stated above the percentage of
stamp duty payable varies from one State to another. Certain State in India have enacted their own legislation in relation
to stamp duty while the other State have adopted and amended the Stamp Act, as per the rates applicable in the State. On
such instruments stamp duty is payable at the rates specified in Schedule I of the Stamp Act. Instruments chargeable to
duty under the Stamp Act which are not duly stamped are incapable of being admitted in court as evidence of the
transaction contained therein. The Stamp Act also provides for impounding of instruments which are not sufficiently
stamped or not stamped at all. Unstamped and deficiently stamped instruments can be impounded by the authority and
validated by payment of penalty. The amount of penalty payable on such instruments may vary from State to State.
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Maharashtra State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments Act, 1975

The professional tax slabs in India are applicable to those citizens of India who are either involved in any profession or
trade. The State Government of each State is empowered with the responsibility of structuring as well as formulating the
respective professional tax criteria and is also required to collect funds through professional tax. The professional taxes
are charged on the incomes of individuals, profits of business or gains in vocations. The tax payable under the State Acts
by any person earning a salary or wage shall be deducted by his employer from the salary or wages payable to such
person before such salary or wages is paid to him, and such employer shall, irrespective of whether such deduction has
been made or not when the salary and wage is paid to such persons, be liable to pay tax on behalf of such person and
employer has to obtain the registration from the assessing authority in the prescribed manner.

Maharashtra Factories Rules, 1963 ("' Factories Rules'’)

The Factories Rules were notified by State of Maharashtra within the framework of Factories Act, 1948 which is a social
legislation that has been enacted for occupational safety, health, and welfare of workers at workplace. As per the Factories
Rules an application for obtaining prior permission for the site on which the factory is to be situated and for the
construction or extension of a factory shall be made to the Chief Inspector of Factories which shall grant the license with
terms and conditions after being satisfied that there is no objection to the same.

B. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAWS

Intellectual property rights refer to the general term for intangible, intellectual, industrial property rights through patents,
copyrights and trademarks and includes geographical indications, trade secrets, and confidential information. These
property rights allow the holder to exercise a monopoly on the use of the item for a specified period.

The Copyright Act, 1957

The Copyright Act, 1957, along with the Copyright Rules, 2013 (“Copyright Laws”) governs copyright protection in
India. The Copyright Laws protect the legal rights of the creator of an ‘original work’ by preventing others from
reproducing the work in any other way. The intellectual property protected under the Copyright Laws includes literary
works, dramatic works, musical works, artistic works, cinematography, and sound recordings. Even while copyright
registration is not a prerequisite for acquiring or enforcing a copyright in an otherwise copyrightable work, registration
under the Copyright Laws acts as prima facie evidence of the particulars entered therein and helps expedite infringement
proceedings and reduce delay caused due to evidentiary considerations. The Copyright Laws prescribe a fine,
imprisonment or both for violations, with enhanced penalty on second or subsequent convictions. Upon registration, the
copyright protection for a work exists for a period of 60 years following, the demise of the author. Reproduction of a
copyrighted work for sale or hire, issuing of copies to the public, performance, or exhibition in public, making a
translation of the work, making an adaptation of the work, and making a cinematograph film of the work without consent
of the owner of the copyright are all acts which expressly amount to an infringement of copyright.

The Trademarks Act, 1999 (the “Trademarks Act”)

Trademarks enjoy protection under both statutory and common law and Indian trademark law permits the registration of
trademarks for both goods and services. The Trademarks Act governs the statutory protection of trademarks and the
prevention of the use of fraudulent marks in India. Under the provisions of the Trademarks Act, an application for
trademark registration may be made before the Trademark Registry by any person claiming to be the proprietor of a trade
mark, whether individual or joint applicants, and can be made on the basis of either actual use or intention to use a
trademark in the future. Once granted, a trademark registration is valid for 10 years unless cancelled, subsequent to which,
it can be renewed. If not renewed, the mark lapses and the registration is required to be restored. The Trademarks Act
prohibits registration of deceptively similar trademarks and provides for penalties for infringement, falsifying and falsely
applying trademarks. Further, pursuant to the notification of the Trademark (Amendment) Act, 2010 simultaneous
protection of trademark in India and other countries has been made available to owners of Indian and foreign trademarks.
The Trademark (Amendment) Act, 2010 also seeks to simplify the law relating to transfer of ownership of trademarks by
assignment or transmission and to conform Indian trademark law with international practice.

The Patents Act, 1970 (the “Patents Act”)
The Patents Act recognises both product and process patents and prescribes eligibility criteria for grant of patents,

including the requirement that an invention satisfy the requirements of novelty, inventive step and industrial applicability
in order for it to avail patent protection. However, the Patents Act also provides that patent protection may not be granted
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to certain specified types of inventions and materials even if they satisfy such criteria. Application by an Indian resident
to any foreign authority in respect of an invention made outside India is prohibited without first making an application
for the invention in India. Once granted, a patent remains valid for a period of twenty years from the date of filing of the
patent application, subsequent to which it can be renewed. While the Patents Act prohibits patentability of a ‘computer
programme’ as such, computer programmes in combination with a novel hardware are patentable. Computer programmes
on their own are excluded from patent protection and are protected as a literary work under the Copyright Act, 1957. In
terms of the Patent Act, the patentee holds the exclusive right to prevent third parties from the using, offering for sale,
selling or importing for such purposes, the patented product or product obtained directly by a process patented in India.

The Designs Act, 2000 (the “Designs Act”)

The Designs Act prescribes for the registration of designs. The Designs Act specifically lays down the essentials of a
design to be registered and inter alia, provides for application for registration of designs, copyright in registered designs,
etc. A ‘Design’ means only the features of shape, configuration, pattern, ornament or composition of lines or s or
combination thereof applied to any article whether two dimensional or three dimensional or in both forms, by any
industrial process or means, whether manual, mechanical or chemical, separate or combined, which in the finished article
appeal to and are judged solely by the eye, but does not include any mode or principle or construction or anything which
is in substance a mere mechanical device, and expressly excludes works accorded other kinds of protection like property
marks, trademarks and copyrights. Any person claiming to be the proprietor of a new or original design may apply for
registration of the same before the Controller-General of Patents, Designs and Trade Marks. On registration, the proprietor
of the design attains a copyright over the same. The duration of the registration of a design in India is initially ten years
from the date of registration. No person may sell, apply for the purpose of sale or import for the purpose of sale any
registered design, or fraudulent or obvious imitation thereof.

Municipality Laws

Pursuant to the Constitution (Seventy-Fourth Amendment) Act, 1992, the respective state legislatures in India have power
to endow the municipalities with power to implement schemes and perform functions in relation to matters listed in the
Twelfth Schedule to the Constitution of India. The respective States of India have enacted laws empowering the
municipalities to issue trade license for operating stores and implementation of regulations relating to such license along
with prescribing penalties for non-compliance.

Approvals from Local Authorities

Setting up of a Factory or Manufacturing/Housing unit/Establishments entails the requisite Planning approvals to be
obtained from the relevant Local Panchayat(s) outside the city limits and appropriate Metropolitan Development
Authority within the city limits. Consents from the state Pollution Control Board(s), the relevant state Electricity
Board(s), the State Excise Authorities, Sales Tax, are required to be obtained before commencing the building of a factory
or the start of manufacturing operations.

C. TAXLAWS

In addition to the aforementioned material legislations which are applicable to our Company, some of the tax legislations
that may be applicable to the operations of our Company include:

e Income-tax Act 1961, the Income-tax Rules, 1962, as amended by the Finance Act in respective years;

e Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Central Goods and Services Tax Rules, 2017 and various state-wise
legislations made thereunder;

e The Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and rules thereof;

o Professional tax-related state-wise legislations;

¢ Indian Stamp Act, 1899 and various state-wise legislations made thereunder; and

D. ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS
The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 (“EPA”)
The EPA has been enacted for the protection and improvement of the environment. It stipulates that no person carrying

on any industry, operation or process shall discharge or emit or permit the discharge or emission of any environmental
pollutant in excess of such standards as may be prescribed. Further, no person shall handle or cause to be handled any
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hazardous substance except in accordance with such procedure and after complying with such safeguards as may be
prescribed. EPA empowers the Central Government to take all measures necessary to protect and improve the
environment such as laying down standards for emission or discharge of pollutants, providing for restrictions regarding
areas where industries may operate and generally to curb environmental pollution.

E-Waste Management Rules, 2016 (the “E-Waste Rules”)

The E-Waste Rules apply to every manufacturer, producer, consumer, bulk consumer, collection centres, dealers, e-
retailer, refurbisher, dismantler and recycler involved in manufacture, sale, transfer, purchase, collection, storage and
processing of e-waste or electrical and electronic equipment as classified under the E-Waste Rules, including their
components, consumables, parts and spares which make the product operations. The E-Waste Rules mandate that a
manufacturer must obtain an authorisation from the state pollution control board and also submit annual returns to the
same Authority. Producers of such e-waste also have extensive responsibilities and obligations and may come under the
scrutiny of either the central pollution control board or the state pollution control board. The manufacturer, producer,
importer, transporter, refurbisher, dismantler and recycler shall be liable for all damages caused to the environment or a
third party due to improper handling and management of the e-waste and may have to pay financial penalties as levied
for any violation of the provisions under these rules by the state pollution control board with the prior approval of the
central pollution control board.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 (“Water Act”)

The Water Act aims to prevent and control water pollution and to maintain or restore wholesomeness of water. The Water
Act provides for one central pollution control board, as well as state pollution control boards, to be formed to implement
its provisions, including enforcement of standards for factories discharging pollutants into water bodies. Any person
intending to establish any industry, operation or process or any treatment and disposal system likely to discharge sewage
or other pollution into a water body, is required to obtain the consent of the relevant state pollution control board by
making an application.

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 (“Air Act”)

The Air Act aims to prevent, control and abate air pollution, and stipulates that no person shall, without prior consent of
the relevant state pollution control board, establish or operate any industrial plant which emits air pollutants in an air
pollution control area. Such person also cannot discharge or cause or permit to be discharged the emission of any air
pollutant in excess of the standards laid down by the State Boards. The central pollution control board and the state
pollution control boards constituted under the Water Act perform similar functions under the Air Act as well. Pursuant
to the provisions of the Air Act, any person establishing or operating any industrial plant within an air pollution control
area, must obtain the consent of the relevant state pollution control board prior to establishing or operating such industrial
plant.

Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 (“Hazardous Waste Rules”)
as amended by the Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Amendment Rules,
2022

The Hazardous Waste Rules regulate the management, treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous waste by imposing
an obligation on every occupier and operator of a facility generating hazardous waste to dispose of such waste without
harming the environment. The term “hazardous waste” has been defined in the Hazardous Waste Rules and any person
who has, control over the affairs of the factory or the premises or any person in possession of the hazardous waste has
been defined as an “occupier”. Every occupier and operator of a facility generating hazardous waste must obtain
authorization from the relevant state pollution control board. Further, the occupier, importer or exporter is liable for
damages caused to the environment resulting from the improper handling and disposal of hazardous waste and must pay
any financial penalty that may be levied by the respective state pollution control board.

E. FOREIGN TRADE REGULATIONS

The Foreign Trade (Regulation and Development) Act, 1992 and the rules framed thereunder (“FTA”)

The FTA is the main legislation concerning foreign trade in India. The FTA, read along with Foreign Trade (Regulation)
Rules, 1993, provides for the development and regulation of foreign trade by facilitating imports into, and augmenting

exports from, India and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. As per the provisions of the FTA, the
Government:- (i) may make provisions for facilitating and controlling foreign trade; (ii) may prohibit, restrict and regulate
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exports and imports, in all or specified cases as well as subject them to exemptions; (iii) is authorised to formulate and
announce an export and import policy and also amend the same from time to time, by notification in the Official Gazette;
(iv) is also authorised to appoint a 'Director General of Foreign Trade' for the purpose of the FTA, including formulation
and implementation of the Export-Import (“EXIM”) Policy.

The FTA prohibits anybody from undertaking any import or export except under an Importer-Exporter Code number
(“IEC”) granted by the Director General of Foreign Trade pursuant to Section 7 of the FTA. Hence, every entity in India
engaged in any activity involving import/export is required to obtain an IEC unless specifically exempted from doing so.
Failure to mention IEC number attracts a penalty of not less than 310,000 and not more than five times the value of the
goods or services or technology in respect of which any contravention is made or is attempted to be made, whichever is
made. The IEC shall be valid until it is cancelled by the issuing authority

Foreign Investment Laws

Foreign investment in India is governed by the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments)
Rules, 2019 (“FEMA Rules”) along with the Consolidated FDI Policy issued by the DPIIT, from time to time. Further,
the RBI has enacted the Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments)
Regulations, 2019 which regulate the mode of payment and reporting requirements for investments in India by a person
resident outside India. Under the FEMA Rules and Consolidated FDI Policy (effective October 15, 2020), 100% foreign
direct investment is permitted in single brand product retail trading sector, under the automatic route, subject to certain
conditions specified thereunder. Further, in the event of foreign direct investment beyond 51%, the investee entity is also
required to comply with certain local sourcing norms as specified in the FEMA Rules and the Consolidated FDI Policy.
In terms of the FEMA Rules, the total holding by each FPI, or an investor group shall be below 10% of the total paid-up
equity share capital of our Company on a fully diluted basis and the total holdings of all FPIs put together with effect
from April 1, 2020, will be upto the sectoral cap applicable to the sector in which our Company operates (i.e., upto 100%),
unless reduced by way of passing a special resolution.

F. EMPLOYMENT RELATED LAWS

In order to rationalize and reform labour laws in India, the Government of India has notified four labour codes which are
yet to come into force as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, namely, (i) the Code on Wages, 2019 which
will repeal the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, Minimum Wages Act, 1948, Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and the Payment
of Wages Act, 1936, (ii) the Industrial Relations Code, 2020 which will repeal the Trade Unions Act, 1926, Industrial
Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 and Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, (iii) the Code on Social Security, 2020
which will repeal certain enactments including the Employee's Compensation Act, 1923, the Employees’ State Insurance
Act, 1948, the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Maternity Benefit Act, 1961,
Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and
(iv) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020 which will repeal certain enactments including
the Factories Act, 1948, Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961 and the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act,
1970.

Certain portions of the Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020, have come into force upon notification
by the Ministry of Labour and Employment. The remaining provisions of these codes shall become effective as and when
notified by the Government of India. A brief summary of the aforementioned laws have been provided below:

The Code on Wages, 2019

The Code on Wages, 2019 received the assent of the President of India on August 8, 2019 and proposes to subsume four
existing laws namely, the Payment of Wages Act, 1936, the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
and the Equal Remuneration Act, 1976. The Central Government has notified certain provisions of this code mainly in
relation to the constitution of the advisory board.

The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020

The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on
September 28, 2020 and proposes to subsume certain existing legislations, including the Factories Act, 1948, the Contract
Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Service) Act, 1979 and the Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Service) Act, 1996. The provisions of this code will be brought into force on a date to be notified by the
Central Government.
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The Industrial Relations Code, 2020

The Industrial Relations Code, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on September 28, 2020 and it proposes
to subsume three existing legislations, namely, the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, the Trade Unions Act, 1926 and the
Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946. The provisions of this code will be brought into force on a date to
be notified by the Central Government.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on September 28, 2020 and it proposes
to subsume certain existing legislations including the Employee's Compensation Act, 1923, the Employees’ State
Insurance Act, 1948, the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, the Maternity Benefit
Act, 1961, the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Building and Other Construction Workers’ Welfare Cess Act, 1996 and
the Unorganised Workers’ Social Security Act, 2008. The Central Government has notified certain provisions of this
code.

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, as amended (the “ESIC Act”)

The ESI Act, provides for certain benefits to employees in case of sickness, maternity and employment injury. All
employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act are required to be insured, with an obligation imposed on the
employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In addition, the employer is also required to register itself
under the ESI Act and maintain prescribed records and registers. Employees (Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act, 1952, as amended (the “EPF Act”) The EPF Act applies to factories employing over 20 employees and
such other establishments and industrial undertakings as notified by the Gol from time to time. It requires all such
establishments to be registered with the state provident fund commissioner and requires such employers and their
employees to contribute in equal proportion to the employees’ provident fund the prescribed percentage of basic wages
and dearness and other allowances payable to employees. The EPF Act also requires the employer to maintain registers
and submit a monthly return to the State provident fund commissioner.

Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953

The Government of Maharashtra has enacted the Labour Welfare Fund Act for providing welfare benefits to the labourers
employed in establishments/factories situated in Maharashtra. It extends to the whole state of Maharashtra. The
Maharashtra Labour Fund Act, 1953 is read with Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund Rules, 1953. The rates of contribution
vary according to the category of the labourers, as it depends on the wages earned by the labourers. The Maharashtra
Labour Fund is applicable to all the companies in the state that has 5 or more persons employed. The state government
constitute the labour Welfare Fund; the fund consists of the following: (a) Fines from employees; (b) Unpaid
Accumulations; (c) Penal interest; (d) Voluntary donations; (¢) Contributions made by employer-employee; (f) Any
interest accrued on unpaid accumulations or fines realised from employees; and (g) Loan, grant in subsidy. Moreover,
the employer is required to submit a statement which states all the particulars related to the contribution made.

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“SHWW Act”)
provides for the protection of women at workplace and prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The SHWW Act
also provides for a redressal mechanism to manage complaints in this regard. Sexual harassment includes one or more of
the following acts or behaviour namely, physical contact and advances or a demand or request for sexual favours or
making sexually coloured remarks, showing pornography or any other unwelcome physical, verbal or non-verbal conduct
of sexual nature. The SHWW Act makes it mandatory for every employer of a workplace to constitute an Internal
Complaints Committee, which shall always be presided upon by a woman.

G. GENERAL CORPORATE AND OTHER ALLIED LAWS
Apart from the above list of laws which is inclusive in nature and not exhaustive — general laws like the Indian Contract

Act, 1872, Specific Relief Act, 1963, Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, Consumer Protection Act, 1986, Anti-Trust law
such as Competition Act, 2002 and corporate Acts namely Companies Act, 2013 are also applicable to the Company.
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS

CLN Energy Limited was originally incorporated as “JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited” on October 01, 2019 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur with CIN
U29309UP2019PTC121869. Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to “CLN Energy Private Limited”
vide special resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company in their meeting held on September 29, 2022 and a
fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent to the change of name was granted to our Company on May 08, 2023, by
the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur. Further, our Company was converted into Public Limited Company pursuant to
special resolution passed by the shareholders of our Company in their meeting held on April 04, 2024 and the name of
our Company was changed to “CLN Energy Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon
conversion of Company to Public Limited dated June 18, 2024 was issued by Central Processing Centre bearing CIN:
U33100UP2019PLC121869.

History and Overview

Initially Mr. Jeevan Chand & Mr. Sanjay Chopra incorporation the Company in October 2019 however Mr. Rajiv Seth
had taken over the majority control of the Company from November 2019 and till date he indirectly owns the majority
control of the Company. Mr. Rajiv Seth owns 100% of Aim Sky Limited, which in turn hold 100% of Minmax Energy
Limited and further he owns 90.61% of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. During September 2022, Minmax Energy Limited had
transferred their entire shareholding to CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, CLN
Energy Pte. Ltd. holds 76,61,238 Equity Share of % 10/- each, constituting 99.99% of our Company.

Corporate Profile of our Company

For information on our Company’s business profile, activities, services, managerial competence, and customers, see “Our
Business” and “Our Management” on page 97 and 134 respectively of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Change in registered office of our Company

Since incorporation registered office of our Company is situated at Plot No. D-09, Sector-80, Phase 11, HCL, Noida,
Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh, India, 201305. On September 20, 2023 the registered office shifted to Plot-18,
Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, 201305, Uttar Pradesh, India. Thereafter, there
have been no changes in the location of registered office of our company.

Main Objects of our Company
The main objects of our Company are as follows:

1. Tocarry on the business of manufacture, fabricate and assemble, buy, sell, import, export, distribute, marketing and
deal in batteries of all kind including but not limited to lithium-ion batteries, electric vehicle batteries, solar batteries,
inverter batteries, inverter bulb batteries, mobile phone batteries including accessories and fittings of all kinds and
to act as brokers and marketing agents for aforesaid items.

2. To carry on in India or elsewhere the business as designers, researchers, developers, manufacturers, buyers,
assemblers, modifiers, installers, reconditioners, sellers, hirers, sublessors, market makers, dismantlers, repairers,
operators, exporters, importers, distributors, and to act as an agent, broker, adatia, consignor, indenting agent,
C&F agent, representative, correspondent, franchisers, stockist, supplier, vendor, transporter, collaborator, export
house or otherwise to deal in all its branches in automatic, semiautomatic, manual or other types of tools, tackles,
instruments, apparatus, systems & equipments, including machines for manufacturing the batteries of all kinds,
manufacturing all types of automotive components and equipments and its associated machineries including but not
limited to lathes, turret-lathes, capstan lathes, engine lathes, drills, drilling machines, shaping machines, planting
machines, milling machines, grinding machines, slotting machines, broaching machines, lapping machines,
weighting machines, wrapping machines, filtration equipments, hydraulic machines and pneumatic machines,
punching machines and other allied goods, whether used for special operations or for general operations, and
whether operated from human, electrical, magnetic, electromagnetic, chemical, electrochemical, photochemical,
solar, tidal wind, nuclear, thermal, thermonuclear or other forms of energy and their parts, products, assemblies,
components, instruments, raw materials, display units, control devices, elements, gadgets, circuits, micro circuits,
used in machine tools including boules, bars, slices, rounds, wafers, sheets, clips, micro clips, powders, fluids, gases,
solids which may be polished, processed, coated, fused, diffused, or otherwise treated and to do all incidental acts
and things necessary for the attainment of the above said objects.
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To carry on the business of manufacture including production and processing and fabrication and assembling,
repairing, alternation, buying, importing, marketing, selling and exporting and otherwise dealing in all types of
automotive components, electrical components, spare parts, products, equipments for all types of two wheelers,
three-wheelers, passenger cars, light motor vehicles, multi-utility vehicles, heavy motor vehicles, All Terrain
Vehicles (ATVs) and all other types of automobiles.

To carry on the business of research and development, design, provision of technical assistance, training and
licenses, consulting and otherwise of manufacturing systems including production control and quality control and
improvement of production lines relating to above objects.

To carry on business as manufacturers, producers, processors, makers, inventors, converters, importers, exporters,
traders, buyers, sellers, indenters, packers, movers, merchants or otherwise deal in medical and surgical
instruments, equipments, apparatuses, machineries, tools including medical kits, disposable and non-disposable
syringes, medical containers, thermometers, plastic and aluminium collapsible tubes and all kinds and varieties of
disposable and non-disposable surgical instruments and Kits, their parts, fittings, components and accessories used
in healthcare, treatment, diagnosis, research, operation and for saving life of human beings.

The main objects as contained in the MoA enable our Company to carry on the business presently being carried out and
the activities proposed to be undertaken pursuant to the objects of this Issue.

Amendments to the Memorandum of Association

Sr Date of
No. Shareholders’ Particulars
' resolution

Clause V of the MoA was amended to reflect the increase in Authorised Capital of our
1 October 05, 2019 | Company from < 15,00,000 divided into 150,000 Equity Shares of I 10/- each to %
100,00,000 divided into 10,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Z 10 each.

The new clause was inserted “5. To carry on business as manufacturers, producers,
processors, makers, inventors, converters, importers, exporters, traders, buyers, sellers,
indenters, packers, movers, merchants or otherwise deal in medical and surgical
instruments, equipments, apparatuses, machineries, tools including medical Kkits,
disposable and non-disposable syringes, medical containers, thermometers, plastic and
aluminium collapsible tubes and all kinds and varieties of disposable and non-
disposable surgical instruments and Kkits, their parts, fittings, components and
accessories used in healthcare, treatment, diagnosis, research, operation and for saving
life of human beings” vide the same was approved by our Board vide meeting held on
April 23, 2020 and by our shareholder through special resolution vide meeting held
April 25, 2020 and same was approved by Registrar of Companies, Kanpur vide
certificate dated May 20, 2020 and further board took noted for the same.

2 April 25, 2020

Clause V of the MoA was amended to reflect the increase in Authorised Capital of our
December 02,

3 2021 Company from < 100,00,000 divided into 10,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of T 10
each to % 500,00,000 divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of T 10 each.
The name of our Company was changed from ‘JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited’ to

4 September 29, | ‘CLN Energy Private Limited’” and and fresh certificate of name change dated May 08,

2022 2023, by the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur. Accordingly Clause | of the MoA was
amended to reflect the change of name of our Company.

Our Company was converted from a private limited company into a public limited
company and consequently the name of our Company was changed from ‘CLN Energy
5 April 04, 2024 Private Limited’ to ‘CLN Energy Limited’ and fresh certificate of Conversion dated June
18, 2024 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Central Processing Centre.
Accordingly, Clause I of the MoA was amended to reflect the name of our Company.

Clause V of the MoA was amended to reflect the increase in Authorised Capital of our
Company from % 500,00,000 divided into 50,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10
each. To ¥ 11,00,00,000 divided into 110,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of I 10
each.

6 June 06, 2024
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Major events and milestones

The table below sets forth some of the key events, milestones in our history since its incorporation.

Year Events

2019 Incorporated our Company as JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited

2019 Issue_d 999,998 e_quity shares to Minmax Energy Limited, resulting in Minmax Energy Limited holding
a majority stake in our company.

2022 Commencement of R & D unit at Hyderabad

2022 Our company achieved revenue of Rs. 100 Crores for the first time.

2022 The factory Iicensg has been issue.d on March 03, 2022 for our Pune plant located Gat No.375/1 And
376, Koregaon Bhima, Taluka, Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra, 412216.

2022 CLN Energy Pte.Ltd acquired majority equity shares of company and classified as Promoter of Company
2023 Our company changed name of from JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited to CLN Energy Private Limited.
2023 The factory license has been issueq on Apri_l 06, 2023 for our Uttar Pradesh plant located at Plot-18,
Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office, Dadri, Gautam Buddha Nagar- 201305, Uttar Pradesh

2023 Shut down of Operations of R & D unit at Hyderabad

Company converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company vide and fresh
2024 certificate of Conversion dated June 18, 2024 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Central
Processing Centre.

Key awards, accreditations or recognitions

Our Company has received the following awards, accreditations and recognitions:

Year Events

ISO 14001 2015 Certificate for Environmental Management System, ISO 9001 2015 Certificate for
2023 Quality Management System and 1SO 45001 2018 Certificated for Occupational Health and Safety
Management System granted to our company

Time and cost over — runs in setting up projects and certain other adverse remarks

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company has not experienced any material time/cost overrun
in setting up any project or business operations

Details regarding material acquisition or disinvestments of business / undertakings, mergers, amalgamation

Our Company has not undertaken any merger, demerger or amalgamation in the last 10 years preceding the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Details of Merger/Amalgamation
There has been no merger/amalgamation pertaining to our Company in the last 10 (ten) years.
Revaluation of assets

Our Company has neither revalued its assets nor has issued any Equity Shares (including bonus shares) by capitalizing
any revaluation reserves in the last ten years.

Defaults or Rescheduling of Borrowings with Financial Institutions/ Banks

As of date of this Draft | Prospectus, there are no defaults or rescheduling of borrowings from financial institutions or
banks or conversion of loans into equity in relation to our Company.
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Launch of key products or services, entry into new geographies or exit from existing markets

For details of key products or services launched by our Company, entry into new geographies or exit from existing
markets, see “Our Business” and “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page 97 and 130 respectively of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

Significant financial or strategic partnerships

The Company does not have any significant financial or strategic partners as on the date of this Draft Red Herring
Prospectus.

Capacity/facility creation, location of plants

For details with respect to our capacity/facility creation, location of plants, see “Our Business” on page 97 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

Shareholders Agreement and Other Agreements

Our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group and / or, the Shareholders are not party
to any agreements, including any deed of assignment, acquisition agreement, shareholders agreement, inter-se
agreement/arrangement or agreements of like nature, with respect to securities of our Company and which provide any
special rights to any Shareholders / Stakeholders. We confirm there are no other clauses or covenants which our
Company, our Directors, our Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group or the Shareholder are a party to, in relation
to securities of our Company, which are material and adverse or prejudicial to the interest of the minority / public
shareholders. Further as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, there are no subsisting shareholders agreement
among our shareholders vis-a-vis our Company. Further any special rights to any shareholders / stakeholders; post listing
shall be subject to approval of the Shareholders by way of a special resolution, in a general meeting of the Company held
post listing of the Equity Shares

Key terms of other subsisting material agreements

The Company has not entered into any other subsisting material agreements including with strategic partners, joint
venture partners, and/or financial partners other than in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

Agreements with Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Managerial Personnel or Directors or Promoters or any
other employee of the Company

There are no agreements entered into by the Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Managerial Personnel or Directors or
Promoters or any other employee of the Company, either by themselves or on behalf of any person, with any shareholder
or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the
Company.

Holding Company

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, CLN Energy Pte. Ltd is the holding company of our Company. For
details, see “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 148 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our subsidiary
As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have a subsidiary company
Associate or Joint ventures of our Company

As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have any joint ventures or associate
companies.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

Our Board of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Association, unless otherwise determined in a general meeting of the Company and
subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules, the number of Directors of the Company
shall not be less than three (3) and not more than fifteen (15). As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, we have
Five (5) Directors on our Board, which includes one (1) Whole Time Director & CEO, one (1) Whole Time Director &
COO, one (1) Non-Executive Director and two (2) Independent Director out of which one (1) who is a woman director
of our Company.

Set forth below, are details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, Occupation, Term
and Nationality
Sunil Gandhi

Other Directorships

Indian Companies
Designation: Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer
1) JLNPhenix Powers Private Limited
Date of Birth: June 24, 1974 2)  Winst Management  Private
Limited

Address: 70, Ground Floor, Ashoka Enclave, Part-1, Near Kanishka | 3) Advisory Hub Private Limited
Tower, Sector 34, Amarnagar, Faridabad, Haryana 121003.
Foreign Companies
Occupation: Service
Nil
Term: Appointed as a Whole Time Director for a period of Five (05) years
with effect from June 19, 2024 until June 18, 2029 and liable to retire by
rotation

Period of Directorship: Director since August 18, 2020
Period of Holding Position as CEO: April 09, 2022
Age: 50 years

Nationality: Indian

DIN: 08433754

Manish Shah
Indian Companies
Designation: Whole Time Director and Chief Operating Officer
Nil
Date of Birth: August 28, 1973
Foreign Companies
Address: A/43, Sharanam-12, Opp.Green Acres, Prahladnagar,
Ahmadabad City, Ambawadi, Vistar, Ahmadabad, Gujarat 380015. Nil

Occupation: Service

Term: Appointed as a Whole Time Director for a period of Five (05) years
with effect from June 19, 2024 until June 18, 2029 and liable to retire by
rotation

Period of Directorship: Director since October 09, 2023

Period of Holding Position as COO: Since October 09, 2023
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, Occupation, Term
and Nationality

Other Directorships

Age: 51 years
Nationality: Indian

DIN: 10343779

Rajiv Seth
Designation: Chairman & Additional Non-Executive Director
Date of Birth: September 28, 1970

Address: 261, Gulmohar Enclave, Gulmohar Park, South Delhi, Delhi-
110049

Occupation: Business

Term: Appointed as Additional Non-Executive Director w.e.f. February
4, 2024 till ensuing Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible for re-
appointment at the Annual General Meeting.

Period of Directorship: Additional Director since February 4, 2024
Age: 54 years

Nationality: Indian®

DIN: 02156211

Indian Companies

Cosmique Products  Private

Limited@

Poly

Foreign Companies

1) Aim Sky Limited

2) Great Megha Holding Limited
3) Minmax Energy Limited

4) CLN Energy Pte. Ltd

Bhawna Hundlani

Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director

Date of Birth: December 21, 1998

Address: 694, 9th C Road, Sardarpura, Jodhpur, Rajasthan, 342003.
Occupation: Professional

Term: Appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director for a period
of Five (05) years with effect from June 19, 2024 until June 18, 2029 and
not liable to retire by rotation.

Period of Directorship: Director since June 19, 2024

Age: 26 years

Nationality: Indian

DIN: 10459772

Indian Companies
1) NAPS Global India Limited
Foreign Companies

Nil

Rakesh Kakkar
Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director

Date of Birth: May 31, 1970

Indian Companies

1) Fortune Endeavour Infrastructure
Private Limited
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Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Designation, Address, Occupation, Term
and Nationality

Address: C-401, Bestech Park View Spa, Sector 47, South City-Il, | 2) Enormous Electrotech  Private
Farrukhnagar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122018. Limited

Other Directorships

Occupation: Business Foreign Companies
Term: Appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director for a period | Nil

of Five (05) years with effect from June 19, 2024 until June 18, 2029 and
not liable to retire by rotation.

Period of Directorship: Director since June 19, 2024

Age: 54 years

Nationality: Indian

DIN: 05190517

(MRajiv Seth's residential status is listed as non-resident of India in the Income Tax Return filed for the previous year.
@Rajiv Seth was associated with Cosmique Poly Products Pvt. Ltd. (CPPPL) as a Director. According to a certificate
dated July 31, 2024, issued by Practicing Company Secretary Himanshu Gupta, CPPPL was struck off by the Registrar
of Companies (RoC) before 2006. However, the exact date of the strike-off and the reasons for it are not available on the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) portal. Due to technical issues on the MCA portal, CPPPL still appears in Mr.
Rajiv Seth's directorship record. The aforementioned certificate further confirms that Mr. Rajiv Seth's Director
Identification Number (DIN) status is active, and there are no pending litigations or actions against him
related to CPPPL.

Brief Profile of our Directors

Sunil Gandhi, aged 50 years, is a Chief Executive Officer since April 09, 2022 and became Whole Time Director of our
Company w.e.f. June 19, 2024. He holds diploma course in Electrical Engineering with Specialization in Electronics and
Television Technology from PMCA Institute of Engineering, Faridabad and has also pursued Section A & B of the
Institution Examinations in Electronics & Communication Engineering at The Institution of Engineers (India). He has
over a more than 2 decade of combined experience in Software Technology and Telecommunication Industry. He has
worked with many organizations including Reliance Infocom Limited & Bharti Airtel Limited. He is currently
responsible for the overall working of the Company and is instrumental in making strategic decisions. He is also
responsible for infusing fresh ideas into the business and developing new products, customer relationship, manufacturing
process, leading strategic planning, agile procurement practices for sustained growth and driving production targets at
our Company. He also manages the entire supply chain for the Company and being the part of the Board, he is providing
his technical knowledge and expertise for growth and expansion of our Company on day-to-day basis. His strong
leadership skill, comprehensive understanding of financial management principles, entrepreneurship with commercial
acumen and excellent management skill allow the business to grow by way of developing the new clients whilst
maintaining its existing customer base.

Manish Shah, aged 51 years, is the Whole Time Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company w.e.f. June 19,
2024. He holds bachelor’s degree in Engineering at North Maharashtra University, Jalgaon. He has over two decades of
experience in electrical & telecommunication industry. He has worked as with Reliance Group and Indus Tower Limited.
He has been associated with Company since 2019. He is responsible for driving sales, service, dealer management,
product strategies, marketing, profitability, human resources, brand and media management He primarily handles
Operations and now he is instrumental in winning new customers for the company. He is also looking into Banking and
handles the entire finance and operation of the Company.

Rajiv Seth, aged 54 years is a Chairman & Non-Executive Director (Additional Director) of our Company. He had
indirectly taken over the majority control of the Company from November 2019 and till date he indirectly owns the
majority control of the Company. He holds bachelor’s degree in Electronics & Communication Engineering at
Kurukshetra University. He has over 2 decades of experience in overall managing and promoting companies. He is the
promoter of 4 foreign companies including our holding company. As Promoter of the Company, he is providing his
expertise for growth and expansion of our Company.
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Bhawna Hundlani, aged 26 years is a Non-Executive Independent Director of our Company. She was appointed on the
Board of our Company w.e.f. June 19, 2024. She holds bachelor’s degree in Commerce as well as Law from Jai Narain
Vyas University, Jodhpur. She is an associate member of the Institute of Company Secretary of India. She has experience
in Compliance, Secretarial and Legal matters. Currently she is designated as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of Oneclick Logistics India Limited.

Rakesh Kakkar, aged 54 years is Non- Executive Independent Director of our Company. He was appointed on the Board
of our Company w.e.f. June 19, 2024. He holds bachelor’s degree in Electronics & Communication Engineering at
Kurukshetra University. He has over 25 years of experience across IT, Telecom & Software/ Software Services, Proven
Track Record, Personal Leadership, Professional Excellence. He has worked with many organizations including
Netcracker Technology India Private Limited, Alcatel Network Systems India Limited. Currently he is working with
Nextgen Telesolutions Private Limited since September 2022 as Sr. V P - Sales & Business Development.

Confirmations

i None of the Directors of our Company are Wilful Defaulters or Fraudulent Borrowers as on the date of this
DRHP. None of the Directors of our Company are declared Fugitive Economic Offenders under Section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018. Further, our Directors are not debarred from accessing the capital
markets by SEBI.

ii. None of our directors are or have been directors in any of the listed companies, which have been/ were delisted
from the stock exchange(s). None of our directors are or have been directors in any of the listed companies
whose shares have been/were suspended from being traded on the BSE Limited / National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.

iii. None of our directors are or have been directors in any of the listed companies in the 5 (five) years preceding
the date of this DRHP, whose shares have been/were suspended from being traded on any of the stock
exchange(s) during his / her tenure in that Company(ies).

iv. There is no arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to
which any of the abovementioned Directors was selected as director or member of senior management.

V. The Company has not entered into any service contracts with its Directors providing for benefits upon
termination of employment

Relationship between our Directors and any of our Directors and our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel are related to each other.

Arrangements and Understanding with Major Shareholders

None of our Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management or Directors have been appointed pursuant to any
arrangement or understanding with our major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to which any of the
directors was selected as a director or member of senior management.

Payment or Benefit to officers of our Company

Except as stated otherwise in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus and any statutory payments made by our Company, no
non-salary amount or benefit has been paid, in two preceding years, or given or is intended to be paid or given to any of
our Company’s officers except remuneration of services rendered as Directors, officers or employees of our Company.

Service Contracts

The Company has not entered into any service contracts with its Directors and Key Managerial Personnel providing for
benefits upon termination of employment.

Borrowing Powers of our Board
Our Articles of Association, subject to applicable law, authorize our Board to raise or borrow money or secure the
payment of any sum of money for the purposes of our Company. Our Company has, pursuant to a resolution passed by

the Shareholders at an extra ordinary general meeting held on June 19, 2024, authorised our Board to borrow from time
to time, any sum or sums of monies which together with the monies already borrowed by our Company (apart from
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temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from our Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed
the aggregate of the paid up capital of our Company and its free reserves provided that the total amount so borrowed by
the Board shall not at any time exceed Z 50,000 lakhs or the aggregate of the paid up capital and free reserves of our
Company, whichever is higher.

Remuneration/Compensation/Commission paid to Directors
Sunil Gandhi (Whole Time Director& CEO)

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on June 18, 2024 and approved by the
Shareholders of our Company at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 19, 2024, Sunil Gandhi was designated
as the Whole time Director [who was appointed Chief Executive Officer also] of our Company for a period of five (5)
years with effect from June 19, 2024 along with the terms of remuneration, in accordance with Sections 196, 197, 203
and Schedule V and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules prescribed thereunder. The
terms and conditions approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders have been summarised below:

Maximum Upto 150.00 lakhs per annum
Remuneration
Perquisites He shall be entitled to all the perquisites listed herein below in addition to the salary and

commission mentioned above.

a) Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred, including premium
paid on, health insurance policies, whether in India or aboard, for self and family including
hospitalization, surgical charges, nursing charges, and domiciliary charges for self and for
family.

b) Leave Travel Concession: For self and family (family includes and means the spouse and the
dependent children of the Employee) every year, subject to a maximum amount of Rs. 10
lakhs.

c) Personal Accident Insurance and Medi-claim Insurance: As per the policy of the Company.

d) Provident Fund/Pension: Contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund as per the policy
of the company, if opted for by the employee.

e) Gratuity: Gratuity payable shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Payment of
Gratuity Act.

f) Use of Car with Driver: The Company shall provide the Employee two cars with drivers at
any point in time for business and personal use.

g) Security Guard: Reimbursement of Security Guard's salary, subject to a maximum of four
Security Guards at a time.

h) Leave: Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company's rules.

i) Entertainment expenses: the Company shall reimburse the Employee entertainment expenses
actually and properly incurred in the course of business of the Company.

Minimum He shall be entitled to minimum remuneration prescribed under Sections 196, 197, 203 and
Remuneration | Schedule V and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules prescribed
thereunder.

Manish Shah (Whole Time Director & COO)

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on June 18, 2024 and approved by the
Shareholders of our Company at an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 19, 2024, Manish Shah was designated
as the Whole time Director and Chief Operating Officer of our Company for a period of five (5) years with effect from
June 19, 2024 along with the terms of remuneration, in accordance with Sections 196, 197, 203 and Schedule V and other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules prescribed thereunder. The terms and conditions
approved by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders have been summarised below:

Maximum Upto 150.00 lakhs per annum
Remuneration
Perquisites He shall be entitled to all the perquisites listed herein below in addition to the salary and

commission mentioned above.

a) Medical Reimbursement: Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred, including
premium paid on, health insurance policies, whether in India or aboard, for self and family
including hospitalization, surgical charges, nursing charges, and domiciliary charges for
self and for family.

138



CL / /ENERGY

b) Leave Travel Concession: For self and family (family includes and means the spouse and
the dependent children of the Employee) every year, subject to a maximum amount of Rs.
10 lakhs.

c) Personal Accident Insurance and Medi-claim Insurance: As per the policy of the
Company.

d) Provident Fund/Pension: Contribution to Provident Fund and Pension Fund as per the
policy of the company, if opted for by the employee.

e) Gratuity: Gratuity payable shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Payment of
Gratuity Act.

f)  Use of Car with Driver: The Company shall provide the Employee two cars with drivers
at any point in time for business and personal use.

g) Security Guard: Reimbursement of Security Guard's salary, subject to a maximum of four
Security Guards at a time.

h) Leave: Leave with full pay and allowances shall be allowed as per the Company's rules.

i) Entertainment expenses: the Company shall reimburse the Employee entertainment
expenses actually and properly incurred in the course of business of the Company.

Minimum He shall be entitled to minimum remuneration prescribed under Sections 196, 197, 203 and
Remuneration | Schedule V and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules prescribed
thereunder.

Remuneration details of Fiscal 2024 our Directors

The aggregate value of the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors in Fiscal 2024 is as follows:

S. No. Name of the Director Remuneration (Z in lakhs)
1. Sunil Gandhi 55.00
2 Manish Shah 2141

Payment of sitting fees to Non-executive Independent Directors of our Company

Pursuant to a resolution passed by our Board on June 18, 2024, our Non-Executive Independent Directors are each entitled
to receive a sitting fee of upto T 5,000 each for attending meeting of our Board and % 5,000 for every meeting of the
various committees of our Board.

Except as stated in this DRHP, no amount or benefit has been paid by our Company within the 2 (two) preceding years
or is intended to be paid or given by our Company to any of our Company’s officers including our Directors and key
managerial personnel.

Our Company does not have any bonus or profit-sharing plan for its Directors.

Loans to Directors

There are no loans that have been availed by the Directors from our Company that are outstanding as on the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Shareholding of Directors in our Company

Except as stated below, none of our Directors holds any Equity Shares of our Company as on the date of filing of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name of Director Number of Equity Shares % of the pre-lIssue Equity Share Capital
1 Sunil Gandhi 2 Negligible
2 Manish Shah 2 Negligible

* Our Articles of Association do not require our Directors to hold any qualification Equity Shares in the Company.
Interest of our Directors
Our Executive Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration paid to them for services rendered

as a Director of our Company and reimbursement of expenses, if any, payable to them. For details of remuneration paid
to our see “Terms of appointment and remuneration of our Executive Directors” above.
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Our Directors may also be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held by them or held by the entities in which
they are associated as promoters, directors, partners, proprietors or trustees or kartas or coparceners or held by their
relatives or that may be subscribed by or allotted to the companies, firms, ventures, trusts in which they are interested as
promoters, directors, partners, proprietors, members or trustees, pursuant to this Issue. Except as disclosed in “Financial
Information” and “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” beginning on Page Nos. 154 and 148, respectively of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus, our Directors are not interested in any other company, entity or firm.

Except as stated in “Restated Financial Information — Related Party Transactions” from the chapter titled “Restated
Financial Information” on Page No. 154 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Directors do not have any other
interest in the business of our Company.

Interest as to property

Except as mentioned in “Our Business - Land and Property” and “Restated Financial Information — Annexure VI - Note
32 — Related Party Transactions” from the chapter titled “Restated Financial Information” on Page Nos. 97 and 154 of
this Draft Red Herring Prospectus our Directors do not have any interest in any property acquired or proposed to be
acquired by our Company.

Changes in our Board during the Last Three Years

Except as disclosed below, there have been no changes in our Board during the last three years.

Name of Director | Date of Appointment | Date of Cessation | Reasons for Change/ Appointment
Sunil Gandhi June 19, 2024 - Re-designated as Whole Time Director
. Re-designated as Whole Time Director and

Manish Shah June 19, 2024 - Chief Operating Officer

Bhawna Hundlani June 19, 2024 i Appomted as Non-Executive Independent
Director

Rakesh Kakkar June 19, 2024 i éﬁpég;g:ed as Non-Executive Independent

Jeevan Chand October 01, 2019 February 21, 2024 | Resigned as Executive Director

Rajiv Seth February 14, 2024 i Appomted as Additional Non-Executive
Director

Manish Shah November 22, 2023 - Regularized as Executive Director

Manish Shah October 09, 2023 - Appointed as Additional Executive Director

Sunil Gandhi September 21, 2020 - Regularized as Executive Director

Sunil Gandhi August 18, 2020 - Appointed as Additional Executive Director

Corporate Governance

As our Company is coming with an issue in terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as amended from
time to time, as on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the requirement specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,
22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to our Company. The applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 will be applicable to our company immediately up on the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. However,
our Company has complied with the corporate governance requirement, particularly in relation to appointment of
independent directors including woman director on our Board, constitution of an Audit Committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. Our Board functions either on its own or through committees constituted thereof, to oversee
specific operational areas.

Committees of the Board in accordance with the SEBI Listing Regulations

Our Board has constituted following committees in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations:

a) Audit Committee;

b) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee;

c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ; and

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
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As on June 18, 2024 our Board Constitute above mentioned Committees and details of each of these committees are as
follows:

a) Audit Committee:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Bhawna Hundlani Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
Rakesh Kakkar Non-Executive Independent Director Member
Sunil Gandhi Whole Time Director & CEO Member

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times a year with maximum interval of 120 days between two meetings of
the Audit Committee.

The role of the Audit Committee shall be in accordance with section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting and Its Powers) Rules, 2014, and
any other law for the time being enforce. The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

(1) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) recommendation for appointment, re-appointment and replacement, remuneration and terms of appointment of
statutory auditors of the Company ;

(3) approval of payments to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission
to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the board’s report in terms
of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended;

b. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

€. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the management;

d. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. compliance with all legal requirements relating to financial statements; f. disclosure of any related party transactions ;
and

g. qualifications/modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission
to the board for approval;

(6) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in
the offer document / Prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take
up steps in this matter;

(7) reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process; 215

(8) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and omnibus
approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by our Company subject to such conditions
as may be prescribed,;

(9) formulating a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of related party transactions;

(10) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(11) valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

(12) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(13) establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances;

(14) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;

(15) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
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(16) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

(17) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board,;

(18) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

(19) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

(20) to review the functioning of the whistleblower mechanism;
(21) approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading
the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of

the candidate; and

(22) carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee and any other terms
of reference as may be decided by the Board and/or specified/provided under the Companies Act, 2013 or any other law.

b) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Rakesh Kakkar Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
Bhawna Hundlani Non-Executive Independent Director Member
Sunil Gandhi Whole Time Director and CEO Member

The frequency of meetings of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is at least once in a year.

The role of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall be in accordance with Section 178 and all other applicable
provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting and Its Powers) Rules, 2014, and any other
law for the time being enforce and is as follows:

(1) efficient transfer of shares including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and
debentures;

(2) redressing of shareholders and investor complaints such as non-receipt of declared dividend, annual report,
transfer of Equity Shares and issue of duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates;

(3) monitoring transfers, transmissions, dematerialization, re-materialization, splitting and consolidation of Equity
Shares and other securities issued by our Company, including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission
of shares and debentures;

(4) allotment and listing of shares in future;

(5) review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and debentures;

(6) reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances;

(7) ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; and

(8) to do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers.

c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Bhawna Hundlani Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman
Rakesh Kakkar Non-Executive Independent Director Member
Rajiv Seth Non-Executive Director Member

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet at once a year.
The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be in accordance with Section 178 and all other applicable

provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meeting and Its Powers) Rules, 2014, and any other
law for the time being enforce as follows:
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(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
®)

(6)
()

(8)
©)

formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal;
whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

determining our Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including pension
rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors;

determining compensation levels payable to the senior management personnel and other staff (as deemed
necessary), usually consisting of a fixed and variable component;

reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indian
market in accordance with applicable laws;

(10) framing suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation, by any employee of any

applicable laws in India or Overseas;

(11) performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or specified/provided under

the Companies Act, 2013

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

Name of the Directors Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Sunil Gandhi Whole Time Director and CEO Chairman
Rakesh Kakkar Non-Executive Independent Director Member
Manish Shah Whole Time Director and COO Member

The role of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall be in accordance with Section 135 and all other
applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder, and any other law for the
time being enforce as follows: .

(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)

formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company;

recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred by the Company for CSR;

monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time; and

to do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the exercise of the above powers

Compliance with SME Listing Regulations

The provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures) Regulations, 2015 will be applicable to our Company
immediately upon the listing of Equity Shares of our Company on SME Platform of BSE Limited.
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Management Organizational Structure

u Board of Directors

| | I | |
Sunil Gandhi Rajiv Seth
(WTD & CEO) (C & NED)
T - T Ty

Manish Shah Sorel rshish

anwar
(WTD & COO) (CS & CO) (CFO)

Ml _ A A : A . | . A : )
o Suresh i Karunesh Mainak Bhanja i Rajat
Vijay Kumar i Sumit Kumar N Sanni Kumar
L (Mgr-HR & L g:lrgsar (GM L (Asst.  GM- L Shukla L (Asst.GM L (SM-R&D- L Choudhary

Admin) Marketing ) ¢ IT) (S%SI\S/BGM- l?/l%;gnical) Electrical) (Ospz\gr-ation)
Terms & Abbreviations

C & NED - Chairperson and Non-Executive Director
WTD & CEO - Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer
WTD & COO - Whole Time Director and Chief Operating Officer
CFO - Chief Financial Officer
CS&CO - Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Mgr-HR & Admin - Manager- HR & Admin
GM-Sales & Marketing - General Manager-Sales & Marketing
Asst. GM-IT - Assistant General Manager- Information Technology
Asst. GM-SCM - Assistant General Manager- Supply Chain Management
Asst.GM- R&D- Mechanical - Assistant General Manager- Research and Development in Mechanical
SM-R&D-Electrical - Senior Manager- Research and Development in Electrical
SM-Operation - Senior Manager -Operation

Our Key Managerial Personnel

In addition to our Managing Director whose details have been provided under paragraph above titled ‘Brief Profile of
our Directors’, set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of filing of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus:

Ashish Kumar, aged 32 years, is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce
from Delhi University. He also hold membership with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. In the past, he has
worked as Assistant Manager with Bharat IT Service Limited, Vectus Industries Limited and Jubilant Agri & Consumer
Products Limited. He has been associated with our Company since July 2022 in the capacity of Senior Manager — Finance
& Accounts and has received remuneration of X 15.14 lakhs during Fiscal 2024. He was promoted as the Chief Financial
of our Company with effect from June 18, 2024 and oversees finance and accounts of our Company. Further from April
01, 2024 he was apprised with revised remuneration of X 20.36 lakhs.

Sonal Jhanwar, aged 38 years, is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. She holds a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from Gujarat University, Bachelor’s of Law from Sri L.A. Shah Law College
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Ahmedabad, Gujarat University, Diploma in Banking from Ahmedabad Management Association and Bachelor’s of
Education from Gujarat University. She is an associate member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. In the
past, she was associated with Shri Ajit Senior Secondary School, St. Paul’s HR. SEC. School, Rohit Bajpayi &
Associates, Company Secretaries & Lakshya Powertech Private Limited. She has almost a year of experience in
secretarial and compliance matters. She has been associated with our Company since June 2024 with remuneration of X
2.16 lakhs.

All our Key Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.
Our Senior Managerial Personnel

Apart from our Managing Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, whose
details have been provided under paragraph above titled ‘Brief Profile of our Directors’ and ‘Our Key Managerial
Personnel’, set forth below are the details of our Senior Managerial Personnel as on the date of filing of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus:

Karunesh Shukla, aged 35 years is Assistant General Manager-Supply Chain Management of our Company. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in Technology in Electronics and Communication Engineering from Gautam Bhudh Technical
University, Lucknow. In the past, he was associated with ESP Safety Private Limited, Stering Components India Private
Limited, Waree Energy Limited & Khati Solution Private Limited. He has been associated with our Company from
August 2022 as Senior Manager- Supply Chain Management and has received remuneration of % 21.46 lakhs during
Fiscal 2024. Further from April 01, 2024 he was promoted to Assistant General Manager-SCM with revised remuneration
of X 24.98 lakhs.

Mainak Bhanja, aged 39 years is Assistant General -R&D Mechanical of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in Technology from West Bengal University of Technology & completed his Master of Science with Commendation
from University of Hertfordshire having followed approved programme in Automotive Engineering. In the past, he was
associated with Bhilai Engineering Corporation Limited. He has been associated with our Company from October 2020
as Engineer-R&D and has received remuneration of X 17.42 lakhs during Fiscal 2024. Further from April 01, 2024 he
was promoted to Assistant General Manager- R&D Mechanical with revised remuneration of % 21.60 lakhs.

Rajat Choudhary, aged 33 years is Senior Manager-Operations of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
Technology in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from Gautam Bhudh Technical University, Lucknow. In the past, he
was associated with Medigraph Systems, Jayanita Exports India Private Limited, Coslight India Telecom Private Limited,
Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited. He has been associated with our Company from February 2023 as Manager
- Quality and has received remuneration of % 16.04 lakhs during Fiscal 2024. Further from April 01, 2024 he was
promoted Senior Manager-Operations with revised remuneration of X 19.79 lakhs.

Sanni Kumar, aged 30 years, is the Senior Manager — R& D Electrical of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in Technology in Electrical & Electronics Engineering from Dr. A.P.J. Abdul Kalam Technical University, Uttar Pradesh.
He has been associated with our Company from September 2019 as Sales Engineer and gradually promoted to Senior
Manager - R&D Electrical. He has received remuneration of % 19.38 lakhs during Fiscal 2024. Further from April 01,
2024 he was apprised with revised remuneration of X 28.00 lakhs.

Sumit Kumar aged 33 years, is Manager-1T of our Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Arts in Political Science
from CH Charan Singh University, Ghaziabad. He has completed Jetking Certified Hardware & Networking Professional
Premium, Additional certification in Azure Fundamentals and AWS Services Fundamentals from Skillup. In the past, he
was associated with Resbird Technologies Private Limited, Pal Facility management Services Private Limited. He has
been associated with our Company form November 2022 as Manager-IT and has received remuneration of % 8.35 lakhs
during Fiscal 2024. Further from April 01, 2024 he was apprised with revised remuneration of X 11.34 lakhs.

Suresh Kumar, aged 44 years, is General Manager-Sales and Marketing of our Company. He holds a Certificate of
Diploma in Electronics and Telecommunication Engineering from Rajasthan Vidyapeeth (Deemed) University. In the
past, he was associated with Bharti Comtel Ltd., Bharti Airtel Services Limited, Alcatel Lucent Network Management
Services India Limited, Su-Kam Power Systems Limited, Eastman Auto & Power Limited, Okaya Power Private Limited.
He has been associated with our Company from April 2024 as General Manager-Sales and Marketing with remuneration
of T 30.00 lakhs.

Vijay Kumar, aged 33 years is Manager-HR & Admin of our Company. He h has completed Master of Business
Administration in Human Resources Management from Uttar Pradesh Technical University, Uttar Pradesh. In the past,
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he was associated with Passion Trail Limited, Amity Global Business School, Thomson Digital (India Today Group),
East India Technologies Private Limited. He has been associated with our Company form October 2022 as Deputy
Manager HR & Admin and has received remuneration of ¥ 9.97 lakhs during Fiscal 2024. Further from August 01, 2023
he was promoted Manager- HR & Admin with revised remuneration of Rs. % 11.50 lakhs.

Other Confirmations

i Further, our Company has not entered into any service contracts, pursuant to which it’s KMPs are entitled to
benefits upon termination of employment. Except statutory benefits upon termination of their employment in our
Company or superannuation, no KMPs are entitled to any benefit upon termination of employment or
superannuation.

ii.  There is no arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or any others pursuant to
which any of the abovementioned KMPs have been recruited as KMPs.

iii.  All the key managerial personnel mentioned above are permanent employees of our Company and none of them
are related to each other or to any Director of our Company.

iv. Ason the date of filing of this DRHP, our Company does not have a performance linked bonus or a profit sharing
plan with the KMPs.

v.  There is no contingent or deferred compensation payable to our KMPs, which does not form part of their
remuneration.

vi. No non-salary-related payments or benefits have been made to our KMPs based on targets achieved and general
performance.

vii. Attrition of KMPs in the Company is not high as compared to the industry.

Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management with our Directors, Promoters and / or other
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

Except as disclosed below, none of our KMPs and SMPs hold any Equity Shares in our Company as on date of the this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Name of . % of Pre-Issue Equity | %  of  Post-Issue
S . Director/KMP/SM 1@, @ (FEUAE7 Ehalies fEld Shares Capital A Equity Shares
1 Sunil Gandhi, 2 Negligible Negligible
2 Manish Shah 2 Negligible Negligible
3 Mainak Bhanja 2 Negligible Negligible
4 Sanni Kumar 2 Negligible Negligible
Employees

As of March 31, 2024, we have of 249 comprising of 116 permanent employees including 10 Senior Manager and 133
on Contract workers.

Employee stock option and stock purchase schemes

As on date of this DRHP, our Company does not have any employee stock option and stock purchase schemes.
Payment or benefit to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of our Company

Except as disclosed in this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, no amount or benefit has been paid or given within two
preceding years or is intended to be paid or given to any of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management except
the normal remuneration for services rendered by them. Additionally, there is no contingent or deferred compensation
payable to any of our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management in the Last Three Years

In addition to the changes specified under “Changes in our Board during the Last Three Years”, set forth below, are the

changes in our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management in the last three years immediately preceding the date
of filing of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus:
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Name Designation Date of change Reason
Vijay Kumar Senior & Admin Manager- HR & Admin July 01, 2024 Promotion
Sonal Jhanwar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer June 18, 2024 Appointment
Ashish Kumar Chief Financial Officer June 18, 2024 Promotion
Rajat Choudhary | Senior Manager-Operation April 01, 2024 Promaotions
Mainak Bhanja, | Assistant General -R&D Mechanical April 01, 2024 Promaotion
Karunesh Shukla | Assistant General Manager-SCM April 01, 2024 Promaotion
Suresh Kumar General Manager-Sales and Marketing April 01, 2024 Appointment
Vijay Kumar Manager-HR & Admin August 01, 2023 Promaotion
Rajat Choudhary | Manager - Quality February 27, 2023 Appointment
Sumit Kumar Manager-IT November, 10, 2022 Appointment
Vijay Kumar Deputy Manager-HR & Admin October 12, 2022 Appointment
Karunesh Shukla | Senior Manager - SCM September 15,2022 Appointment
Ashish Kumar Senior Manager — Finance & Accounts June 13, 2022 Appointment
Mainak Bhanja Senior Manager - R&D (Mechanical) April 01, 2022 Promaotion
Sanni Kumar Senior Manager - R&D (Electrical) April 01, 2022 Promaotion
Sanni Kumar Manager- R&D August 01, 2021 Promaotion
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OUR PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP
Our Promoters
The Promoters of our Company are CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. and Rajiv Seth.

As on date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoter i.e. CLN Energy Pte.Ltd hold 76,61,238 Equity Shares in
our Company, representing 99.99% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and

Rajiv Seth does not hold any Equity Shares in our Company.

For details of the build-up of the Promoters’ Equity shareholding in our Company, see “Capital Structure — History of
the Equity Share capital held by our Promoters”, on page 59 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Details of the Individual Promoter:

Name and Details

Rajiv Seth, aged 54 years, is the Promoter, Chairman and Non-Executive Director of our
Company. For his complete profile along with the details of his date of birth, address,
educational qualification, experience in the business, positions/posts held in past,
directorships held, other ventures, special achievements, his business and financial activities,
see “Our Management - on page 134 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

PAN: ABAPS3607C

Other Interests:

Aim Sky Limited

Great Megha Holding Limited
Minmax Energy Limited

CLN Energy Pte.Ltd

Ghverse Pte Limited

AR

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number(s), driving license and Aadhaar card
numbers of Rajiv Seth shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Details of the Corporate Promoter:
CLN ENERGY PTE. LTD.
Corporate Information:

CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. was incorporated as a private company on August 02, 2021 under Singapore Companies Act. Its
UEN Number is 202126784N. The registered office of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. is situated at 2 Venture Drive, #13-30,
Vision Exchange, Singapore, 608526.

Nature of Business
The principal activities of the Company are those of other holding companies

The following table sets forth the details of the shareholding pattern of the CLN Energy Pte. Ltd., as on the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. No Name of Shareholder Number of Ordinary Shares Percentage (%) of shareholding
1. Rajiv Seth 2,75,000 90.61%
Y. Kumar 28,500 9.39%
Total 3,03,500 100.00%
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Promoters of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd.

The promoters of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. is Rajiv Seth who is also promoter of Company

Board of Directors of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd.

The directors of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. are Rajiv Seth, Y. Kumar and Vilvarayanallur Kannan Varathan.
Change in control of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd.

There has been no change in the control of CLN Energy Pte. Ltd during the last 3 (three) years preceding the date of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Company confirms that the permanent accounts number, bank account number(s), and as applicable, corporate
registration shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the
Stock Exchanges.

Other ventures of our Promoter:

Except as set out in this chapter under heading “Promoter Group” and in the chapter titled “Our Management - Board of
Directors” our Promoters are not involved with any other venture.

Change of control of our Company

Our Promoters are not the original promoters of our Company. Our Company was incorporated on Oct 01, 2019 and on
Nov 14, 20219, Rajiv Seth had indirectly acquired 99.99% stake of our Company via Minmax Energy Limited and
currently he is indirectly holding 99.99% stake of our Company via CLN Energy Pte. Ltd. For details, please see “Capital
Structure — Shareholding of our Promoters” on page 59 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Experience of our Promoters in the business of our Company

Our Promoters hold experience in the business of our Company. For details in relation to experience of our Promoters in
the business of our Company, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on Page No. 134 of this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Interest of our Promoters
Interest in promotion of our Company

Our Promoters are interested in our Company to the extent that they have promoted our Company and to the extent of
their shareholding in our Company and the dividends payable, if any, and any other distributions in respect of their
shareholding in our Company or the shareholding of their relatives in our Company. For details of the shareholding and
directorships of our Promoters in our Company, please refer to the chapter titled “Capital Structure”, “Our Management”
and “Restated Financial Information - Related Party Transactions” beginning on Page Nos. 59, 134 and 154respectively
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Interest of Promoters in our Company other than as a Promoter

Our Promoter, Rajiv Seth is the Chairman and Non- Executive Director of our Company, therefore, may deemed to be
considered interested to the extent of any remuneration which shall be payable to him in such capacity. Except as stated
in this section and the section titled “Our Management”, “Financial Indebtedness” and “Restated Financial Information
- Related Party Transactions” beginning on Page No. 134, 199 and 154respectively, our Promoters do not have any
interest in our Company other than as Promoters.

No sum has been paid or agreed to be paid to our Promoters or to the firms or companies in which our Promoters is
interested as members in cash or shares or otherwise by any person, either to induce them to become or to qualify them,
as directors or promoters or otherwise for services rendered by our Promoters or by such firms or companies in connection
with the promotion or formation of our Company.
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Interest in the properties of our Company

Our Promoters are not interested in the properties acquired by our Company in the three years preceding the date of filing
of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus with BSE or proposed to be acquired by our Company, or in any transaction by our
Company for the acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery.

Other Interest and Disclosures

Except as stated in this section and the chapters titled “Our Management”, “Our Business”, “Financial Indebtedness”
and “Restated Financial Information - Related Party Transactions” beginning on Page No. 134, 97, 199 and 154our
Promoters does not have any interest in our Company other than as a Promoters.

Except as disclosed in “Financial Statements” and “Financial Indebtedness” on page 154and 199 respectively in this
Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group have (i) not extended any personal
guarantees and (ii) have not provided their personal properties, for securing the repayment of the bank loans obtained by
our Company. Our Promoters have also advanced certain unsecured loans to our Company, for further details, please
refer to the chapter titled “Financial Indebtedness” on page 199 of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Our Promoters are not interested in any transaction in acquisition of land or property, construction of building and supply
of machinery, or any other contract, agreement or arrangement entered into by the Company and no payments have been
made or are proposed to be made in respect of these contracts, agreements or arrangements.

There is no conflict of interest between the suppliers of raw materials and third party service providers (crucial for
operations of our Company) and our Company, Promoters, Promoter Group, Key Managerial Personnel, Directors,
Subsidiary and its Group Company and its directors.

Payment or benefits to our Promoters and Promoter Group during the last two years

Except as stated in this chapter and in chapter titled “Restated Financial Information - Related Party Transactions”, there
has been no payment of any amount of benefits to our Promoters or the members of our Promoters’ Group during the last
two years from the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus nor is there any intention to pay or give any benefit to our
Promoter or Promoters’ Group as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus. For further details, please refer to

chapter titled “Restated Financial Information - Related Party Transactions” beginning on Page No. 154 of this Draft
Red Herring Prospectus.

Material Guarantees

Our Promoters have not given any material guarantees to third parties with respect to the Equity Shares of the Company.

Details of Companies / Firms from which our Promoters have disassociated in the last three years

Our Promoters have not disassociated themselves from any companies, firms or entities during the last three years
preceding the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Further, the list of companies, firms or entities from which our Promoters have resigned during the last three years
preceding the date of Draft Red Herring Prospectus is given below:

Sr. Name of Name of the Entity from which . L Reason for
- . Date of disassociation . .
No. Promoter Promoter has disassociated disassociation
1. Rajiv Seth RV Solutions Private Limited September 04, 2023 Resignation ~ from —the

position of a director.
N_av_yug Technologies Private February 01, 2024 Res_lgnatlon _from the
Limited position of a director.

2. Rajiv Seth

Compliance with Regulation 5 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are as follows:
1. Our Promoters or members of our Promoter Group are not debarred from accessing the capital markets by SEBI.

2. None of the Promoters of our Company is a Promoter of any other company, which is debarred from accessing the
capital market by SEBI.
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3. None of our Promoters have been categorized as a Wilful Defaulter or a Fraudulent Borrower (as defined in the SEBI
ICDR Regulations).

4. None of our Promoters have been declared a fugitive economic offender in accordance with the Fugitive Economic
Offenders Act, 2018.

Compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Rules, 2018 and amendments thereof

Our Promoters confirm that they are in compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Owners) Rules, 2018, as
amended, to the extent applicable to them, as on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

OUR PROMOTERS’ GROUP

In addition to our Promoters, the following individuals and entities form part of our Promoter Group in terms of
Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations:

Individuals forming part of the Promoter Group:

S.No. | Name of member of our Promoter Group | Relationship with our Promoter
Rajiv Seth*

1. Lt. Madan Mohan Seth Father

2. Neeru Seth Mother

3. Pooja Seth Sister

4. Divya Seth Sister

5 N/A Spouse*

* Rajiv Seth was married to Vandana Seth and has been separated as per the Order of Family Court dated 20 December,
2023.

Entities forming part of the Promoters’ Group:

Except as stated below, no other company, firm or HUF are forming part of the promoters’ group:

Sr. No. Name of the entities
1. Aim Sky Limited
2. Great Megha Holding Limited
3. Minmax Energy Limited
4, Ghverse Pte Limited
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OUR GROUP COMPANIES

Under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the definition of ‘group companies’ includes (a) such companies (other than the
promoters) with which there were related party transactions, during the period for which financial information
(“Relevant Period”) is disclosed in the Issue Documents, as covered under applicable accounting standards, and (b)
such other companies as are considered material by the Board. With respect to (a) above, all such companies with
which our Company had related party transactions during the Relevant Period covered in the Restated Financial
Information, in accordance with AS 18, ‘Related Party Disclosures’; shall be considered as a Group Company in
terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In addition, for the purposes of (b) above, all such companies shall be
considered ‘material’ and will be disclosed as a ‘Group Company’, if such companies (i) currently form part of the
Promoter Group; and (ii) have transacted with our Company in the most recent financial year included in the Relevant
Period, being Fiscal 2024 and the value of such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, exceeded 5% of the
total restated revenue or expenses of the Company for Fiscal 2024.

Accordingly, based on the parameters outlined above, our Company does not have any group company as on the date
of this Draft Red herring Prospectus.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends, if any, will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the
Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law, including the
Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to, net operating
profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash flow required to meet contingencies,
outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes including dividend distribution tax payable by our Company. In addition,
our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants under loan or
financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of, or may enter into, to finance our fund requirements for our
business activities. As on the date of this Draft Red Herring Prospectus, our Company does not have a formal dividend
policy.

Upon listing of the Equity Shares of our Company and subject to the SEBI Listing Regulations, we may be required to
formulate a dividend distribution policy which shall be required to include, among others, details of circumstances under
which the shareholders may or may not expect dividend, the financial parameters that shall be considered while declaring
dividend, internal and external factors that shall be considered for declaration of dividend, policy as to how the retained
earnings will be utilized and parameters that shall be adopted with regard to various classes of shares, as applicable.

Our Company has not declared any dividends during the last three Financial Years. Further, our Company has not
declared any dividend in the current Fiscal. There is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid in future.
For details in relation to the risk involved, please refer section titled “Risk Factors” on Page No. 23 of this Draft Red
Herring Prospectus.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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To,

SECTION VII- FINACIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Board of Directors,

CLN Energy Limited

(Formerly Known As JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited)
Plot-18, Sector-140, Phase-2, Nepz Post Office,

Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, Uttar Pradesh,

India, 201305.

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

We have examined the attached Restated Financial Statement along with the Significant Accounting Policies and related
notes of CLN Energy Limited (Formerly Known As JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited) (the ‘Company’) as at and for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 annexed to this report and prepared by the
Company for the purpose of inclusion in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus ("DRHP”) (being collectively referred as
“Offer Document”) in connection with its proposed Initial Public Offer (“IPO”) on the SME Platform of the BSE Limited
(“BSE”).

1.

The said Restated Financial Statements and other Financial Information have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of:

i)  Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III to the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) read with Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014;

ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018
(“ICDR Regulations”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) in pursuance to Section
11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and related amendments / clarifications from time
to time;

iii) The terms of reference to our engagements with the Company requesting us to carry out the assignment, in
connection with the Offer Document being issued by the Company for its proposed IPO of equity shares on
SME Platform of the BSE Limited (“BSE”); and

iv) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectus (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“Guidance Note™).

We have examined the accompanied ‘Restated Statement of Profit and Loss’ (Annexure — 1) for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, the ‘Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities’
(Annexure-1) as on above dates and ‘Restated Financial Statement of Cash Flows’ (Annexure-I11) as on above
dates, forming part of the ‘Financial Information’ dealt with by this Report, detailed below. Both read together with
the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure — IV & V) thereon. The Restated Financial
Information has been prepared by Company’s management. The information has been extracted from the financial
statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022.We have re-audited the
financial statement for the financial year 2023-24 as per the generally accepted accounting principles in India as the
previous statutory auditor did not hold peer-review certificate. The Financial Statement for the year ended March
31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 were audited by Suraj Mishra & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
being the Statutory Auditor of the Company, which were approved by the Board of Directors as on June 03, 2024,
October 31, 2023, September 20, 2022 respectively and upon which we have placed our reliance while reporting.

In terms of Schedule VI (Part A) (11) (I1) (i) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and other provisions relating to
accounts of CLN Energy Limited, we, M/s. D G M S & CO, Chartered Accountants, have been subjected to the peer
review process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and hold a valid certificate issued by the
Peer Review Board of the ICAL.

Based on our examination, we report that:

The “Restated Financial Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as set out in Annexure I, “Restated Financial Statement
of Profit and Loss” as set out in Annexure Il and “Restated Financial Statement of Cash Flows” as set out in
Annexure 111 to this report, of the Company as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 is prepared by
the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. These Restated Financial Statements have been arrived at
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after making such adjustments and regroupings to the financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were
appropriate and more fully described in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as set out in
Annexure IV & V to this Report.

b. The Restated Financial Statements have been made after incorporating adjustments for:

i The changes, if any, in accounting policies retrospectively in respective financial years to reflect the same
accounting treatment as per the changed accounting policy for all the reporting period /years.
ii. Prior period and other material amount in the respective financial years to which they relate.
iii. Extra-ordinary items, if any, that needs to be disclosed separately in the accounts requiring adjustments,
which are stated in the Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure V.

c. There were no qualifications in the Audit Reports issued by Statutory Auditor(s) for the period ended on March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022.

5. At the request of the company, we have also examined the following financial information ("Other Financial
Information™) proposed to be included in the offer document prepared by the management and approved by the board
of directors of the company and annexed to this report:

Annexure of Restated Financial Statements of the Company:-

i.  Statement of Equity Share Capital, as restated (Note— 3 of Annexure V)

ii. Statement of Reserves & Surplus, as restated (Note - 4 of Annexure V)
iii. Statement of Long Term Borrowings, as restated (Note- 5 of Annexure V)
iv. Statement of Other Long term liability, as restated (Note- 6 of Annexure V)
V. Statement of Trade Payables, as restated (Note - 7 of Annexure V)

Vi. Statement of Other Current Liabilities, as restated (Note- 8 of Annexure V)
vii. Statement of Short-Term Provisions, as restated (Note- 9 of Annexure V)
viii. Statement of Property, Plant and Equipment, as restated (Note- 10 of Annexure V)

iX. Statement of Capital work in progress, as restated (Note- 11 of Annexure V)
X.  Statement of Long Terms Loans and Advances, as restated (Note- 12 of Annexure V)

Xi. Statement of Other non-current assets, as restated (Note- 13 of Annexure V)
Xii. Statement of Deferred Tax Assets, as restated (Note- 14 of Annexure V)
xiii. Statement of Inventories, as restated (Note- 15 of Annexure V)

Xiv. Statement of Trade Receivables, as restated (Note- 16 of Annexure V)
XV. Statement of Cash and Bank Balances, as restated (Note - 17 of Annexure V)

XVi. Statement of Short Terms Loans and Advances, as restated (Note- 18 of Annexure V)
XVil. Statement of Other Current Assets, as restated (Note - 19 of Annexure V)
Xviil, Statement of Revenue from Operations, as restated (Note — 20 of Annexure V)

XiX. Statement of Other Income, as restated (Note — 21 of Annexure V)
XX, Statement of Raw Material Consumed, as restated (Note — 22 of Annexure V)

XXI. Statement of Change in Inventories, as restated (Note — 23 of Annexure V)
XXil. Statement of Employee Benefit Expenses, as restated (Note — 24 of Annexure V)
XXiil. Statement of Depreciation and amortization expense (Note- 10 of Annexure V)

XXIV. Statement of Other Expenses, as restated (Note — 25 of Annexure V)
XXV. Statement of Employee benefit plans, as restated (Note — 26 of Annexure V)

XXVi. Statement of Lease commitments, as restated (Note — 27 of Annexure V)
XXVil. Statement of Value of import on CIF basis, as restated (Note — 28 of Annexure V)
XXViil. Statement of Earning in foreign currency, as restated (Note — 29 of Annexure V)

XXIX. Statement of Unhedged foreign currency exposures, as restated (Note — 30 of Annexure V)
XXX. Statement of MSME Creditors, as restated (Note — 31 of Annexure V)

XXXI, Statement of Related Party Transactions, as restated (Note — 32 of Annexure V)
XXXil. Statement of Earnings per share, as restated (Note — 33 of Annexure V)
XXXiil. Statement of Exceptional items, as restated (Note — 34 of Annexure V)

XXXIV. Statement of Ratio analysis, as restated (Note — 35 of Annexure V)
XXXV. Statement of Other Statutory Information, as restated (Note — 36 of Annexure V)
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6.

In our opinion, the Restated Financial Statements and the other Financial Information set forth in Annexure | to VIII
read with the significant accounting policies and notes to the restated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with section 26 of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations and the Guidance Note on the reports
in Company Prospectus (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL).

Consequently, the financial information has been prepared after making such regroupings and adjustments as were,
in our opinion, considered appropriate to comply with the same. As a result of these regrouping and adjustments, the
amount reported in the financial information may not necessarily be the same as those appearing in the respective
audited financial statements for the relevant years.

This report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any of
the financial statements referred to therein.

We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the report.

This report is intended solely for your information and for inclusion in the Offer document in connection with the
Company's proposed IPO of equity shares and is not to be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose
without our prior written consent.

As per our report of even date attached.
For M/s.DG M S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W

SD/-

Hiren Jayantilal Maru

Partner

Membership No. 115279

Date: July 22, 2024

Place : Mumbai

UDIN: 24115279BKBWLE9388
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CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

Annexure I - Restated Financial Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars Nl\(l)(t)e As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
(I) [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |[Shareholder's Fund
a) |Equity share capital 3 340.50 113.50 113.50
b) |Reserves and Surplus 4 996.84 244.99 172.12
Total Equity 1,337.34 358.49 285.62
2 |Non-Current Liabilities
a) |Long term Provisions 5 26.77 46.95 21.15
b) [Other Long term liability 6 2,643.17 3,143.44 1,501.78
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,669.94 3,190.39 1,522.93
3 |Current Liabilities
a) |Trade Payables
Dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 7 76.45 40.76 34.03
Dues of Others 5,552.84 5,724.07 3,126.26
b) |Other Current Liabilities 8 1,054.50 1,378.94 1,109.57
¢) |Short-term Provisions 9 636.31 269.75 126.43
Total Current Liabilities 7,320.10 7,413.52 4,396.29
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,327.38 10,962.41 6,204.85
(II) |ASSETS
1 | Non-Current Assets
a) [Property, Plant & Equipment 10 1,600.81 1,374.82 452.55
b) |Intangible Assets 153.68 236.74 0.20
c) |Capital work in progress 11 - 296.88 600.38
d) [Long term loans and advances 12 - 130.51 94.18
e) [Other non-current assets 13 103.65 349.01 92.68
f) [Defferred tax Assets (Net) 14 268.81 124.69 28.97
Total Non-Current Assets 2,126.94 2,512.65 1,268.95
2 |Current Assets
a) [Inventories 15 3,548.56 3,192.72 3,710.76
b) [Trade Receivables 16 2,477.82 2,520.70 762.18
¢) |Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 378.96 175.40 99.09
d) [Short-term Loans and Advances 18 938.59 701.70 324.80
e) |Other Current Assets 19 1,856.51 1,859.24 39.07
Total Current Assets 9,200.44 8,449.76 4,935.90
Total Assets 11,327.38 10,962.41 6,204.85

The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation and the Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure IV, Notes to the
Restated Financial Information appearing in Annexure VI.

For and on behalf of board of directors
CLN ENERGY LIMITED
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

As per our report of even date attached.
For M/s. DGM S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W

SD/- SD/- SD/-
Hiren Jayantilal Maru Sunil Gandhi Manish Shah
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 115279

Date : July 22, 2024

Place : Mumbai

UDIN: 24115279BKBWLE9388
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DIN: 08433754
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Ashish Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BOHPK7918D
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

DIN: 10343779
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Sonal Jhanwar
Company Secretary
PAN : AFMPC1589B
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida



CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

Annexure II - Restated Financial Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars Note No | As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
I |INCOME
Revenue from Operations 20 13,270.86 12,881.94 12,168.96
Other Income 21 15.07 6.45 1.04
Total Income 13,285.93 12,888.39 12,170.00
II |[EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 1,816.76 5,177.92 8,336.36
Raw Material Consumed 22 7,483.10 4,276.50 2,682.74
Change in Inventories 23 (335.27) (173.26) (373.40)
Employee Benefit Expenses 24 1,289.13 916.42 401.92
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 10 642.58 577.32 134.45
Other Expenses 25 1,165.36 1,353.51 486.77
Total Expenses 12,061.65 12,128.40 11,668.83
11| Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary and exceptional items 1,224.28 759.99 501.17
Exceptional item 34 - 669.61 -
IV|Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 1,224.28 90.38 501.17
Current Tax 389.56 113.23 34.87
Deffered Tax 14 (144.12) (95.73) 102.17
Total tax 245.44 17.51 137.04
V [Profit/(Loss) for the year 978.85 72.87 364.13
Earning per share (Face Value-10)*
Basic 33 12.78 0.95 4.82
Diluted 12.78 0.95 4.82

*Based on weighted average number of shares

The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation and the Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure IV, Notes to the Restated Financial

Information appearing in Annexure VI.

As per our report of even date attached.

For M/s.DGM S & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W

SD/-

Hiren Jayantilal Maru

Partner

Membership No. 115279

Date : July 22, 2024

Place : Mumbai

UDIN: 24115279BKBWLE9388
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For and on behalf of board of directors

CLN ENERGY LIMITED
CIN : U33100UP2019PTC121869

SD/-

Sunil Gandhi
Director

DIN: 08433754
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Ashish Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BOHPK7918D
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Manish Shah
Director

DIN: 10343779
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Sonal Jhanwar
Company Secretary
PAN : AFMPCI1589B
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida




CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

Annexure III - Restated Cash Flow Statement

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
(I) |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,224.28 90.38 501.17
Adjustments
Add : Depreciation 642.58 577.32 134.45
Add: Profit on sale of fixed asset (1.16) - -
Add :Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ (gain) 197.52 273.61 (19.81)
Less : Interest Income (13.91) (6.45) (0.45)
Add : Provision for warranty claims 45.92 24.42 10.77
(Increase)/ Decrease in Deferred Tax Asset/Liabilities (144.12) (95.73) 102.17
Operating profit before working capital ch 1,951.11 863.54 728.30
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables (333.05) 2,330.93 1,698.68
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 300.48 144.72 130.58
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Long term liability (824.72) 1,911.00 2,541.98
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (355.84) 518.04 (3,146.66)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables 42.88 (1,758.52) (648.30)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Short & Long Term Loans and advances (106.39) (413.22) (267.71)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Current & Other Non Current Asset 248.10 (2,076.50) (106.97)
Cash flow from operations 922.57 1,519.98 929.89
Less: Tax paid during the year 245.44 17.51 137.04
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 677.13 1,502.48 792.85
(I) [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of PPE (Net of Capital WIP) (473.37) (1,137.42) (928.57)
Purchase of Intangible Asset (21.39) (295.19) (0.16)
Sale of PPE 7.26 - -
Interest Income 13.91 6.45 0.45
Investment in Fixed Deposit 9.53 (109.50) -
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (464.05) (1,535.66) (928.28)
(III)|CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issued Equity Share Capital During the year - - 13.50
Security Premium received during the year - - 189.00
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities - - 202.50
(1v)|Net change in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( I+IT+I1I) 213.07 (33.18) 67.08
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents (IV)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 65.90 99.09 32.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 278.97 65.90 99.08
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer Anx - 19]
Cash In Hand 2.19 2.01 0.77
Balances with banks : - - -
- Current accounts 149.20 63.89 82.81
- Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 127.60 - 15.50
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 278.98 65.90 99.09

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard -3 (AS-3) on Cash Flow Statement issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India

2. The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation and the Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure IV, Notes to the Restated Financial
Information appearing in Annexure V.

For and on behalf of board of directors
CLN ENERGY LIMITED
CIN : U33100UP2019PTC121869

As per our report of even date attached.
ForM/s. DGM S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W
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Hiren Jayantilal Maru

Partner

Membership No. 115279

Date : July 22, 2024
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UDIN: 24115279BKBWLE9388
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ANNEXURE 1V: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

)

d)

¢)

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

CLN Energy Limited ( Formely known as JLNPhenix Energy Private Limited) (‘the Company’) was incorporated in India on 01 October 2019 under the
Companies Act, 2013.The Company is a subsidiary of CLN Energy Pte. Limited, Singapore. The Company is primarily involved in manufacturing of lithium-ion
battery, and motor and trading of powertrain components.

RESTATED SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the year presented in these financial statements.
Basis of Preparation of R d Fi ial Stati t:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ('GAAP') in India under the historical cost convention
on the accrual basis of accounting. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter together referred to as 'the Act') and Schedule III of the Act.

The restated financial information has been prepared for inclusion in the Draft Red Hearing Prospectus ("DRHP" or "offer document") to be filed by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI”) in connection with proposed Initial Public Offering of its equity shares of face value of Rs 10
each of the Company comprising a fresh issue of equity shares and offer for sale of equity shares held by the certain existing shareholders (the “Offer”), in
accordance with the requirements of:

a) Section 26 of part I of Chapter I1I of the Act

b) relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2018, issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India

('SEBI') as amended in pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992; and

¢) Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI™).

The Restated financial information have been compiled from:

a) the audited financial statement of the Company as at March 31, 2024 which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 03,
2024

b) the audited financial statement of the Company as at March 31, 2023 which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on October 31,
2023.

¢) the audited financial statement of the Company as at March 31, 2022 which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on September

20, 2022.
There wera na analificatione in the Andit Renarte icened hv Qtatutary Auditar(c) far the nerind anded an March 21 2024 March 31 2023 March 21 2027

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP (Generally accepted accounting principles) requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumption and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Going Concern
The financial accounts of the Company are prepared on the assumption of going concern concept.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

« It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Current liabilities includes the current portion of long term financial liabilities. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
In determining the cost, FIFO method is used.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

The proportionate amount of additional duty of customs paid on finished goods imported for trading and lying unsold as at the year end has been included in the
value of the finished goods stock.

The comnarison of cost and net realisahle value is made on an item-hv-item hasi
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2)

h)

k)

m)

n)

0)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
acquisition price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use, pre-operative expenses including financial charges and adjustments on account of foreign exchange fluctuations, wherever applicable; any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed asset should be capitalised only if they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance otherwise expenditure should be written off.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the management which are

equal to the useful lives prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 . The useful lives estimated by the management are mentioned below:

Furniture and fixtures : 10 years
Electrical fitting and fixing : 5 years
Computer and related equipment  : 3 years

Plant & Machineries have been depreciated over a period of 10 years which is the economic useful life of those machineries as per management.
Leasehold improvements is amortised on a straight line basis over the remaining period of the lease or the economic useful life, whichever is lower.

The useful lives are reviewed by the management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged
over the revised remaining useful life. Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use. Property, Plant and
Faninment is eliminated from the financial statements on disnosal or when no further henefit is exnected from its nse and disnosal

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss (if any).

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits to the specific assets to which it relates.

Intangible assets are amortised in Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use based on the expected
pattern of consumption of economic benefits of the assets. Accordingly, at present these are being amortised on written down value method over a period of three
years based on the useful economic life.

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is estimated to be significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortisation method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefit is expected
from its use and disposal.

Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the assets, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any indication exists, the recoverable
amount of asset is estimated. For assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Recognition of Revenue and Expenses
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must be also met before revenue is recognized

Sale of goods:

Revenue in respect of service income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of specific contracts, provided the consideration is
reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net of applicable taxes.

Income from services:

Revenue in respect of service income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of specific contracts, provided the consideration is
reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection. The amount recognised as revenue is net of applicable taxes.

Expenses:
Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all known losses and expenses.

Transactions in foreign currency

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of such transactions. Realized gains and losses on foreign exchange
transactions during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance
sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date. The resultant exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Lease Accounting

Assets acquired under leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. The total lease rentals (including scheduled rental increases) in respect of
an asset taken on operating lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is mor
representative of the time pattern of the benefit.
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p)

qQ

r)

Employee benefits
Short term employee benerits

It includes salaries, short term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related employee service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related services and non monetary benefits (such as medical care) for current employees are estimated and measured on an
undiscounted basis.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay
any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund to Government administered Provident Fund
scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which tha amnlavas randare tha ralatad carvica

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit (PUC) method made at the end of
each financial year.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

« The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

« The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

« Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
« Net interest expense or income

Compensated Absences

Employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on
termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.Gratuity

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit (PUC) method made at the end of
each financial year.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

« The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

« The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

« Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
« Net interest expense or income

Compensated Absences

Employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on
termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Other long term benefits

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation
on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term
employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Segment Reporting
The Company operates in a single primary business segment . Hence, there are no reportable segment as per AS 17 Segment Reporting.

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year. The Company does not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years presented to calculate diluted EPS and
hence the diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.
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u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to present value and are determined based on best estimate
required to settle the obligation on the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A
disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Disclosure is also
made in respect of a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of resource, where it is not possible to make a reliable estimate
of the outflow. Possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company are also included in the disclosure of the contingent liability. Where there is a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the
financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balance with banks on current accounts. The Company considers all highly liquid investments, including
bank deposits with an original maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash
equivalents. Further, bank deposits having maturity of more than 12 months have also been disclosed separately by the company under this head. Moreover, the
cash flow statement is prepared using indirect method

General

Accounting policies not specifically referred to, are consistent with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and are followed consistently.
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a)

b)

)

CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

Annexure V - Restated Financial Information

3 Share capital

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Authorised share capital

Equity Shares (in nos)

Shares at the beginning of the year 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000

Equity Share Capital ( in lakhs)

Share Capital at the beginning of the year of FV Rs 10/- each 500.00 500.00 500.00

Total 500.00 500.00 500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up

Equity Shares ( in nos)

Shares at the beginning of the year 1,135,000 1,135,000 1,000,000

Shares issued during the period 2,270,000 - 135,000
3,405,000 1,135,000 1,135,000

Equity Share Capital ( in lakhs)

Share Capital at the beginning of the year of FV Rs 10/- each 113.50 113.50 100.00

Share Capital issued during the year 227.00 - 13.50

Total 340.50 113.50 113.50

The reconciliation of the numbers of shares outstanding and amount of share capital as at year end is set out below:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Equity Shares (in nos)

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,135,000 1,135,000 1,000,000

Shares issued during the period 2,270,000 - 135,000

Shares Outstanding at the end of the period 3,405,000 1,135,000 1,135,000

Equity Share Capital (in lakhs)

Share Capital outstanding at the beginning of the year 113.50 113.50 100.00

Share Capital issued during the year 227.00 - 13.50

Equity Shares Capital at the end of the period 340.50 113.50 113.50

Shares held by holding company

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023 2022

Equity Shares ( in nos)

CLN Energy Pte Ltd 3,404,994 1,134,998 135,000

Minmax Energy Limited - - 999,998

Equity Share Capital ( in lakhs)

CLN Energy Pte Ltd 340.50 113.50 13.50

Minmax Energy Limited - - 100.00
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d)

€)

g)

Name of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares

Name of Shareholder No of shares held | % of Holding | ° Change during
the Year

CLN Energy Pte Ltd
March 31, 2024 3,404,994 100.00% 0.00%
March 31, 2023 1,134,998 100.00% 88.11%
March 31, 2022 135,000 11.89% 0.00%
Minmax Energy Limited
March 31, 2024 - 0.00% 0.00%
March 31, 2023 - 0.00% -88.11%
March 31, 2022 999,998 88.11% 0.00%
Shares held by promoters at the year end

Name of Shareholder No of shares held | % of Holding | ° Change during

the Year

CLN Energy Pte Ltd
March 31, 2024 3,404,994 100.00% 0.00%
March 31, 2023 1,134,998 100.00% 88.11%
March 31, 2022 135,000 11.89% 11.89%
Minmax Energy Limited
March 31, 2024 - 0.00% 0.00%
March 31, 2023 - 0.00% -88.11%
March 31, 2022 999,998 88.11% 0.00%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity share having a par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote
per share with a right to receive per share dividend declared by the Company. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders
of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

No dividend is declared by the Company during the year ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Notes:

i) The Shareholders have all other rights as available to equity shareholders as per the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013, read
together with the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable.

ii) On November 01, 2023, the Company has allotted 22,70,000 fully-paid-up equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each pursuant to a
bonus issue approved by the shareholders in the ratio of 2:1. The bonus shares once allotted shall rank pari passu in all respects and
carry the same rights as the existing equity shareholders and shall be entitled to participate in full, in any dividend other corporate
action, recommended and declared after the new equity shares are allotted.

iii) On January 01, 2022 the Company has allotted 1,35,000 fully-paid-up equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each pursuant to a
Preferential issue at the price of 150 /-per share.
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CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

Annexure VI - Restated Financial Information

Reserves and Surplus

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 55.99 (16.88) (381.01)
Addition during the yeai 978.85 72.87 364.13
Utilised for bonus issue (38.00) - -
Closing Balance 996.84 55.99 (16.88)
Securities Premium
Opening balance 189.00 189.00 -
Addition during the yeai - - 189.00
Utilised for bonus issue (189.00) -
Closing Balance - 189.00 189.00
Total 996.84 244.99 172.12
Long Term Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Long Term Provision for Gratuity 9.13 24.80 8.85
Leave Encashment Payable 17.64 22.16 12.30
Total 26.77 46.95 21.15
Other Long term liability
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Liability for lease equalisatior 39.57 35.02 1.78
Deferred Income 3.60 8.41 -
Acceptance from Vendors 2,600.00 3,100.00 1,500.00
Total 2,643.17 3,143.44 1,501.78
Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
- Total outstanding dues of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 76.45 40.76 34.03
- Total outstanding dues other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise: 5,552.84 5,724.07 3,126.26
Total 5,629.29 5,764.83 3,160.29
Ageing of Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
(i) Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Less than 1 year 76.45 40.76 34.03
Total 76.45 40.76 34.03
(ii) other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymen
Unbilled 26.18 30.16 2291
Less than 1 year 3,799.20 5,447.50 3,080.90
1-2 years 1,675.76 226.85 15.41
2-3 years 31.55 15.73 7.03
More than 3 years 20.15 3.83 -
Total 5,552.84 5,724.07 3,126.26
(iii) Disputed Dues MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - -
Total 5,629.29 5,764.83 3,160.29
Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Advance from Customers 286.85 130.64 340.84
Statutory Liabilities 372.77 654.34 431.52
Liability for lease equalisatior 9.54 0.37 0.75
Creditors for capital expenditure 374.84 581.91 335.52
Deferred Income 4.80 4.79 -
Others 5.69 6.90 0.95
Total 1,054.50 1,378.94 1,109.57403
Short-term provisions
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Payable to Employees 152.39 111.07 79.20
Provision for Income Tax 399.50 118.75 33.87
Provisions for Gratuity 0.18 0.06 0.02
Provision for Leave Encashmen 1.57 3.12 1.01
Provision for warranty 82.68 36.75 12.34
Total 636.31 269.75 126.43
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Capital Work in Progress

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Capital work-in-progress - 296.88 600.38
Total - 296.88 600.38
Ageing of CWIP
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Projects in progress*
Less than 1 year
Tangible Asset - 296.88 338.76
Intangible Asset - - 261.62
1-2 years - - -
2-3 years - - -
1-3 year - - -
More than 3 years - - -
Total - 296.88 600.38

*There were no projects that were suspended at the end of reporting period accordingly disclosure on expected date of completion of
suspended project has not been given. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its

original plan.
Long term loans and advances
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Capital advances - 130.51 93.86
Prepaid expenses - - 0.32
Total - 130.51 94.18
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Security Deposits 79.32 303.51 92.68
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 24.33 45.50 -
Total 103.65 349.01 92.68
Deffered Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the yeai 124.69 28.97 131.14
Add: During the year adjustment (144.12) (95.73) 102.17
Balance at the end of the year 268.81 124.69 28.97
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 225.80 91.78 21.47
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 2.34 6.26 2.23
- Bonus 2.67 2.13 1.28
- Compensated absences 4.83 6.36 3.35
Liability for lease equalisatior 12.36 891 0.64
Warranty provision 20.81 9.25 -
Balance at the end of the year 268.81 124.69 28.97
Inventories
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Finished Goods 1,206.93 582.68 603.96
Work In progress 102.42 391.41 196.86
Raw Materials 2,239.21 2,218.64 2,909.94
Total 3,548.56 3,192.72 3,710.76
Trade Receivables
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Unsecured, Considered good 2,477.82 2,520.70 762.18
Unsecured, considered doubtful 107.85 36.55 -
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 107.85 36.55 -
Total 2,477.82 2,520.70 762.18
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Ageing of Trade Receivables

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

(i) Unsecured, Considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymen

Less than 6 months 2,153.56 2,178.23 717.01

6 months -1 year 25.92 298.07 38.87

1-2 years 298.33 44.40 6.30

2-3 years - - -

More than 3 years - - -

Total 2,477.82 2,520.70 762.18

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Cash In Hand 2.19 2.01 0.77

Balances with banks :

- Current accounts 149.20 63.89 82.81

- Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 127.60 - 15.50

Other bank balances

- Bank deposits with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 month 99.97 109.50 -

Total 378.96 175.40 99.09

Short-term loans & advances

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

(Unsecured , Considered Good)

Advances to supplier 138.89 219.17 53.25

Advances to employees 3.79 3.21 9.01

Balance due with Revenue Authorities ( Input GST 795.91 479.32 262.55

Total 938.59 701.70 324.80

Other Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 17.30 6.26 0.25

Insurance receivable against fire clain 1,781.71 1,781.71 -

Duty script 0.39 8.32 27.35

Prepaid Expenses 57.10 62.95 11.46

Total 1,856.51 1,859.24 39.07
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Revenue from operation

Parti As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
articulars 2024 2023 2022
Sale of Products
Manufacturing Goods 8,936.82 5,398.17 2,762.35
Trading Goods 2,029.89 5,753.24 9,366.70
Service income 2,270.36 1,706.49 24.05
Other operating revenue
Gain on purchases of duty script - 15.35 15.86
Lease rent 33.79 8.69 -
Total 13,270.86 12,881.94 12,168.96
Other Income
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Other Non Operating revenue
Interest Income 13.91 6.45 0.45
Foreign Exchange Gair - - 0.59
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1.16 - -
Total 15.07 6.45 1.04
Raw Material Consumed
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Opening Stock of Raw Material 2,218.64 2,909.94 136.69
Add : Purchase of Stock of Raw Material 7,336.53 5,783.24 5,387.92
(incl import duties and custom charges)
Add : Direct Expenses
Factory Expenses 65.33 11.67 19.55
Electricity Power & Fuel 92.72 79.68 43.69
Loading and unloading charges 9.09 3.14 4.83
Less : Loss of inventory due to fire shown as exceptional iterr - (2,292.54) -
Less : Closing Stock of Raw Material 2,239.21 2,218.64 2,909.94
Total 7,483.10 4,276.50 2,682.74
Change in Inventories
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 582.67 603.96 383.51
Closing Stock of Finished Goods 1,206.93 582.67 603.96
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods (624.26) 21.29 (220.45)
Opening Stock of Work in Progress 391.41 196.86 43.90
Closing Stock of Work in Progress 102.42 391.41 196.86
Change in Inventories of Work in Progress 288.99 (194.55) (152.96)
Total 335.27) (173.26) (373.40)
Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Salaries & wages 1,121.38 762.00 324.70
Contribution to Gratuity & leave encashmen 2.50 25.67 17.51
Director Remuneration 92.50 78.02 40.85
Contribution to Provident Fund & ESIC 29.33 24.52 11.89
Staff Welfare Expenses 43.42 26.21 6.97
Total 1,289.13 916.42 401.92
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Other Expenses
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Rent Expenses 204.55 203.83 48.22
Consumables 8.02 5.29 50.58
Legal and Professional Fees 95.17 101.61 5891
Auditor Remmuneratior 3.00 3.50 9.50
Rates & Taxes 15.75 293 3.99
Repairs & maintenance Expenses 15.27 6.81 9.47
Bank charges 0.98 0.05 0.70
Contractual manpower and job work charges 274.41 267.42 217.06
Insurance 69.74 27.42 3.13
Exchange fluctuation loss (net’ 80.07 507.50 -
Commission & Brokerage 6.71 0.39 9.84
Warranty Expenses 45.92 24.42 10.77
Provision for Doubtful debts 71.30 36.55 -
Freight & Transportation Expenses 48.40 34.60 7.88
Interest on statutory dues 16.95 7.00 2.69
Advertisement and Sales promotion expenses 18.95 2.18 3.65
Housekeeping expenses 23.80 17.24 2.12
Membership and subscription fee 13.18 2.76 1.68
Security expenses 3491 34.97 10.45
Communication Expenses 9.95 8.97 -
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 57.08 41.80 15.33
General Expenditure 51.25 16.25 20.79
Total 1,165.38 1,353.51 486.77
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees 3.00 3.50 9.30
- Other Matters - - 0.20
Total 3.00 3.50 9.50
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10 Property, Plant and Equif t: (Rs in lakhs)
Property, Plant & Equipment
Eaticulars Leasehold Plant & Compategand Furniture and |Electrical Fitting i A
. . related . Total of PPE
improv t Machinery . fixtures & fixing
equipments
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2021 7.28 282.89 11.73 11.82 34.01 347.73 0.97
Additions 24.25 263.80 0.78 7.37 31.99 328.19 0.16
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 31.53 546.69 12.50 19.19 66.01 675.92 1.13
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2021 4.83 76.04 2.17 3.58 2.64 89.26 0.60
Charge for the year 6.24 90.07 4.70 321 29.89 134.12 0.33
On disposals - - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 11.07 166.11 6.88 6.79 32.53 223.38 0.93
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 20.46 380.58 5.63 12.40 33.48 452.55 0.20
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 31.53 546.69 12.50 19.19 66.01 675.92 1.13
Additions 102.87 1,133.20 100.77 35.54 131.69 1,504.07 295.19
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 134.41 1,679.89 113.27 54.73 197.69 2,180.00 296.32
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01,2022 11.07 166.11 6.88 6.79 3253 190.85 0.93
Charge for the year 61.42 349.14 34.49 11.79 55.81 512.65 58.67
On disposals - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 72.49 515.25 41.37 18.58 88.34 736.02 59.60
Accumulated impairment loss
As at April 01, 2022 - - - - - - -
Impairment for the year 6.00 53.56 - 4.50 5.10 69.16 -
Transfers
As at March 31, 2023 6.00 53.56 - 4.50 5.10 69.16 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 55.92 1,111.09 71.91 31.65 104.25 1,374.82 236.74
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01,2023 134.41 1,679.89 113.27 54.73 197.69 2,180.00 296.32
Additions 161.79 578.19 21.10 6.69 2.49 770.25 21.39
Disposals 0.84 - - - 6.43 7.26 -
As at March 31, 2024 295.36 2,258.08 134.37 61.42 193.76 2,942.98 317.71
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01,2023 72.49 515.25 41.37 18.58 88.34 736.02 59.60
Charge for the year 87.26 342.89 50.94 10.28 46.79 538.14 104.43
On disposals 0.41 - - - 0.75 1.16
As at March 31, 2024 159.34 858.14 92.30 28.86 134.38 1,273.01 164.03
Accumulated impairment loss
As at April 01,2023 6.00 53.56 - 4.50 5.10 69.16 -
Impairment for the year - - - - - - -
Transfers
As at March 31, 2024 6.00 53.56 - 4.50 5.10 69.16 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 130.02 1,346.39 42.07 28.06 54.28 1,600.81 153.68
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26 Employee benefit plans

(a) Defined contribution plan

(Rs in lakhs)

The Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees as
per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government of India. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. This expenses has been
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head Employee Benefit Expense.

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Employer contribution to provident fund 28.47 23.11 11.11

Employer contribution to ESIC 0.86 1.41 0.78

(b) Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic
salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

Actuarial assumptions:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Discount rate as at 7.22% 7.39% per annum | 7.26% per annum
Future salary increases 10.00% per annum | 10.00% per annum| 10.00% per annum
Mortality rate TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate
Normal retirement age 60 years 60 years 60 years
Withdrawal rates
Upto 30 years 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%
from 31 to 44 years 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%
Above 44 years 12.00% 12.00% 12.00%
Notes:
The Company asseses these assumptions with the projected long - term plans of growth and prevalent
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - - (1.85)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial Assumption 0.37 (0.20) 3.70
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment (13.94) (1.01) (1.95)
Net actuarial gain / loss recognized (13.57) (1.21) (0.10)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and movements in the net defined benefit obligation (DBO) are as follows :
. . . As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
Change in the present value of obligation 2024 2023 2022
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 24.86 8.87 2.48
Current service cost 12.85 16.56 6.32
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest cost 1.84 0.64 0.17
Benefits paid - - -
Acturial loss/(gain) (13.57) (1.21) (0.10)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 25.98 24.86 8.87
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Current Liability 0.18 0.06 0.02
Non - Current liability 25.80 24.80 8.85
Less: Fair value of plan assets 16.67 - -
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 9.30 24.86 8.87]
Fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period - - -
Acquisition adjustment - - -
Actual return on plan assets - - -
Employer contribution 16.67 - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss - - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 16.67 - -
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. . As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 2024 2023 2022
Current service cost 12.85 16.56 6.32
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest cost 1.84 0.64 0.17
Acturial loss/(gain) (13.57) (1.21) (0.10)
Total expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 1.12 15.99 6.39
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(b) Compensated absences

Changes in the present the value of the obligation for the year ended are as follows :

Change in the present value of obligation

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 25.28 13.31 2.19
Current service cost 11.13 18.91 10.76
Past Service Cost - - -
Interest cost 1.87 0.97 0.15
Benefits paid (13.10) - -
Acturial loss/(gain) (5.97) (7.91) 0.21
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 19.21 25.28 13.31
27 Lease commitments
(i) The Company has taken operating leases for office premises. Rent expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to 3204.55 lacs
(ii) Future minimum lease payments
As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023 2022
Not later than one year 157.29 172.24 3245
Later than one year and not later than five years 604.06 666.50 67.69
Later than five years 230.16 370.27 -
28 Value of import on CIF basis
As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023 2022
Purchase of raw materials 5,046.47 10,363.57 11,447.02
Purchase of capital goods 6.83 475.57 420.90
Total 5,053.30 10,839.14 11,867.92
29 Earning in foreign currency
As at March 31, | As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023 2022
Sale of R&D 2,184.38 1,645.38 -
Sale of goods 951.10 222.23 -
Total 3,135.48 1,867.61 -
30 Unhedged foreign currency exposures
. Amoul'lt Amount
Particulars (In foreign
(In %)
currency)
As at March 31, 2024
Payables
USD 92.25 7,689.48
Total 92.25 7,689.48
As at March 31, 2023
Payables
USD 106.17 8,729.08
Total 106.17 8,729.08
As at March 31, 2022
Payables
USD 61.56 4,666.60
Total 61.56 4,666.60

* (Closing rate: USD 1= 83.3585, USD 1 = 382.2169 and USD 1=%75.8071 as on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023

and March 31, 2022 respectively.
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31 MSME Creditors

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

A. The principal amount and the interest due there (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting period
-Principal

-Interest

B. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting period.

C. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
period) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006.

D, The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting period.

E. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance, as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, small and Medium enterprises
Development Act,2006

76.45
4.98

0.62

40.76
0.62

34.03
0.41
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CLN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PTC121869

Annexure VI - Restated Financial Information

Related Party Transactions

Related Parties

(Rs in lakhs)

Name of the party

Nature of relationshi

i

(a) Entities exercising control of the company
CLN Energy Pte Limited
Minmax Energy Limited, Hong Kong

(b) Key Management Personnel

Mr. Sunil Gandhi
Mr. Rajiv Seth

Mr. Manish Shah
Mr. Jeevan Chand

List of companies, in which any of person listed in (a) and (b)
have significant influence or control

JLNPhenix Powers Private Limited
Minmax Energy Limited, Hong Kong
CLN Energy Pte Limited

Advisory Hub Private Limited

Winst Management Private Limited
Navyug Technologies Private Limited

Holding company (w.e.f. Setember 1st, 2022)
Holding company (upto August 31st, 2022)

Director and Chief Executing officer

Additional Director
Director

Director (resigned on 21.02.2024)

(from September 01, 2022)

(upto August 31st 2022)

Transactions during the year

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,
2022

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Jeevan Chand

Managerial remuneration
Advances given during the year
Advances repaid during the year

Mr. Sunil Gandhi
Managerial remuneration

Mr. Manish Shah**
Managerial remuneration

16.08

55.00

21.41

18.55

3.80

59.46

30.00

14.34
5.00
1.20

26.51

14.03

*KMP also participate in post employment benefits plans provided by the Company. The amount with respect to post employment benefits

attributable to KMP cannot be segregated as these are based on actuarial valuation for all employees of the Company.
**Manish Shah has been receiving salary till October 08, 2023 as an employee. From October 09, 2023, he was appointed as Director in the

Company.

Balances as at the year end:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,
2024 2022

Managerial remuneration

Mr. Jeevan Chand 1.10
Mr. Sunil Gandhi 32.14 3.50 1.59
Mr. Manish Shah 8.10 - -
Advances payable

Mr. Jeevan Chand - - 3.80
Notes:

(i) The above transactions are in ordinary course of business and are in compliance with section 188 of the Act.

(ii) The transactions from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

Earnings per share

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 As at March 31, 2023 2022

Profits attributable to the equity holders of the Company 978.85 72.87 364.13
Actual number of equity shares (no's) 3,405,000 1,135,000 1,135,000
Weighted average no of shares 7,661,250 7,661,250 7,559,538
Earnings per share (basic) 12.78 0.95 4.82
Earnings per share (diluted) 12.78 0.95 4.82
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 10.00
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a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

g)

h)

On 1 June 2022, the production plant of the Company located at Plot No.18, Sector 140, Phase-1I, Noida caught major fire. Except for the
amount of inventory, fixed assets and certain toolings, all other assets were lost in the fire. The Company has adequately covered its assets by a
fire policy and the Company has filed insurance claim of 1,820.72 and insurance company has accepted claim amounting to Rs. 1,781.71 Lacs
for the loss incurred. The total amount of loss claimed by the Company is ¥2,457.32 lacs which includes carrying value of inventories of
%2,388.16 lacs (including expenses) and carrying value of property, plant and equipment of 269.16 lacs.

Ratio Analysis
. As at March 31, As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 As at March 31, 2023 2022
Current Ratio 1.26 1.14 1.12
Current Asset 9,200.44 8,449.76 4,935.90
Current Liability 7,320.10 7,413.52 4,396.29
Debt- Equity Ratio
Total Debt
Shareholder’s Equity N-A. N-A. N-A.
Debt Service Coverage ratio
Earnings for ‘del?t service (EBIT+ Depn) NA. NA. NA.
Interest & Principal Repayments
Return on Equity ratio 1.15 0.23 2.55
Net Profits after taxes 978.85 72.87 364.13
Average Shareholder’s Equity 847.92 322.06 142.81
Inventory Turnover ratio 3.25 3.23 5.67
Revenue from sales of products 10,966.72 11,151.41 12,129.05
Average Inventory 3,370.64 3,451.74 2,137.43
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 5.31 7.85 27.78
Revenue from operations 13,270.86 12,881.94 12,168.96
Average Trade Receivable 2,499.26 1,641.44 438.03
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 1.29 0.92 1.00
Purchase of Goods 7,336.53 4,103.24 2,309.33
Average Trade Payables 5,697.06 4,462.56 2,320.86
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 7.06 12.43 22.55
Revenue from operations 13,270.86 12,881.94 12,168.96
Working capital 1,880.34 1,036.23 539.60
Net Profit ratio 0.07 0.01 0.03
Net Profit 978.85 72.87 364.13
Revenue from operations 13,270.86 12,881.94 12,168.96
Return on Capital Employed 0.92 0.25 1.75
Earnings before interest and taxes 1,224.28 90.38 501.17
Total Capital Employed 1,337.34 358.49 285.62
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q Change from 22-23 | Change from 21-22 to 22-
Particulars t0 2324 23 Reasons
Current Ratio 10.27% 1.52%| -
Return on Equity ratio 80.40% -91.13%

The Company has earned higher margin on its sales in year 2023-24 and in the year 2022-23 there was loss due to fire.

The Company's net worth increased from negative to positive in f.y 2021-22 due to its earning and there was loss in F.Y 2022-23 due to fire
accident.

Inventory Turnover ratio [ 0.71%] -43.07%]

In F.Y 2022-23 there was significant rise in inventories as compared to f.y 2021-22 leading to negative percentage.

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio -32.34%] -71.75%]

In F.Y 2023-24 there was significant rise in debtors as compared to f.y 2022-23 leading to negative percentage.

In F.Y 2022-23 there was significant rise in debtors as compared to f.y 2021-22 leading to negative percentage.

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio [ 40.05%] -7.59%]

In F.Y 2022-23 there was significant rise in trade payable as compared to f.y 2021-22 leading to negative percentage.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio -43.23%] -44.88%]

The working capital gap of Company has changed significantly changed in all the three financial year while the revenue from operation did no
rise significicantly.

With the rise in capital each year and slight increase in revenue has led to decrease in net capital turnover ratio.
Net Profit ratio [ 1203.88%]

In f.y 2023-24, the Company has earned higher profit margin on its revenue leading to increase in profit.

In fly 2022-23, Company has to face significant loss due to fire incident in the manufacturing unit leading to decrease in profit.

Return on Capital Employed 263.12%] -85.63%]

In f.y 2022-23, Company has to face significant loss due to fire incident in the manufacturing unit leading to decrease in return earned.

-81.09%]

In fly 2023-24, the Company has earned higher profit margin on its revenue leading to increase in return on its capital.

36  Other Statutory Information
o The Company do not have any Benami property and no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.
(i)  The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(iii) The Company have registered all its charges or satisfaction with ROC within the statutory period.
(iv) The Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period covered by the Restated Financial
)
Statements.
(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(viii) The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)  Balance shown under head Sundry debtors, creditors and advances are subject to confirmation.
(x)  The Company is not required to transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(xi) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in
progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(xii) The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
(xiii) The Company has no borrowings from bank and financial institution as on the balance sheet date.
(xiv) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classification.

(xv) Capital commitment (net of advances) as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are Rs. nil, Rs. 52.78 lakhs & nil.

As per our report of even date attached.

For M/s.DGM S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 0112187W

SD/-

Hiren Jayantilal Maru
Partner

Membership No. 115279
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Mumbai

UDIN: 24115279BKBWLE9388

For and on behalf of board of directors
CLN ENERGY LIMITED
CIN : U33100UP2019PTC121869

SD/-

Sunil Gandhi
Director

DIN: 08433754
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida

SD/-

Ashish Kumar

Chief Financial Officer
PAN: BOHPK7918D
Date : July 22, 2024
Place : Noida
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SD/-
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Company Secretary
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Place : Noida



CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)
CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

ANNEXURE VI - Note on Reconciliation of Profits & Reconciliation of Networth

Reconciliation of Profits

(Rs in lakhs)

Particul F:l)r dt l;vi pel;o;ll For the Year ended |For the Year ended

Arfienars encded MarchSh | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022
2024

Net Profit after tax as per Audited profit & loss account 939.84 111.89 364.13

Adjustment : On account of fire loss expense 39.01 (39.01) -

Net Profit after tax as Restated 978.85 72.88 364.13

Reconciliation of Networth
Particulars ll::;r dt l;:zel;o;il For the Year ended |For the Year ended
ende 20 4° > | March31,2023 | March 31,2022

Net Worth after tax as per Audited profit & loss account 1,337.34 397.51 285.62

Adjustment : On account of fire loss expense - (39.01)

Net Worth after tax as Restated 1,337.34 358.50 285.62

Appropriate adjustments have been made in the restated summary statements, wherever required, by a reclassification of the corresponding items of income,
expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows in order to bring them in line with the groupings as per the latest audited financial statements of the Company,
prepared in accordance with Schedule III and the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018 (as amended).
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CLN ENERGY LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS JLNPHENIX ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN : U33100UP2019PLC121869

ANNEXURE VII - Statement of accounting ra

tio as restated

The accounting ratios required under Clause 11 of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are given below: (Rs in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Restated Profit after tax as per P & L Account 978.85 72.87 364.13
EBITDA 1,866.86 667.70 635.62
Actual number of equity shares outstanding as on the date (nos)* 3,405,000 1,135,000 1,135,000
Equivalent weighted average number of equity shares as on the date (nos)* 7,661,250 7,661,250 7,559,538
Share capital 340.50 113.50 113.50
Reserves & surplus 996.84 244.99 172.12
Net Worth 1,337.34 358.49 285.62
Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic EPS ( based on actual no of shares) 28.75 6.42 32.08
Diluted EPS ( based on actual no of shares) 28.75 6.42 32.08
Basic EPS (based on equivalent weighted avg no of shares) 12.78 0.95 4.82
Diluted EPS (based on equivalent weighted avg no of shares) 12.78 0.95 4.82
Return on net worth (%) 73.19% 20.33% 127.49%
Net asset value per share (Rs) - based on actual no. of equity shares at the end of the year

« 39.28 31.59 25.16
Net asset value per share (Rs) - based on equivalent weighted avg no. of equity shares 17.46 4.68 3.78
Face value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 10.00

*The Company has issued bonus shares of 42,56,250 shares in the ratio of 125:100 on June 07, 2024 has been considered for calculation of weighted

average number of shares.

The above statement should be read with the Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts appearing in Annexure IV & V respectively.

Formulas used for calculating above ratios are as under:

Basic /Diluted EPS : Net profit after tax / Equivalent weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Return on Net worth : Profit after Tax / Net Worth
*Net ass